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Corporate Profile
DEEN

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The shares of
the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on |7 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd.
("MOBI Shenzhen"), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji'an) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI
Jian"), MOBI Technologies (Xi'an) Co,, Ltd. (“MOBI Xian"), MOBI Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK"), MOBI Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., Shenzhen MOBI
Shiye Development Co., Ltd, Xi'an Shengrong Communication Technologies Co.,, Ltd,
Shenzhen Shengyuzhihui Network Technology Co,, Ltd, Jian Jinshengjing Technology Co.,
Ltd, Wuhan MOBI Technology Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen MOBI Network Communication
Co, Ltd.

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and base
station Radio Frequency (“RF”) subsystems in China. Our business consists of the design,
manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and solutions
that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems, including,
wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-SCDMA,
CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), 4G (TD-LTE and FDD-LTE), 5G, MIMO Antenna,
satellite communication and microwave transmission networks. We sell our products to
network operators in China and overseas directly for deployment into the networks they
are constructing and operating. We also sell our products to some of the world’s leading
wireless network solution providers who incorporate our products into their wireless
coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they then sell to network

operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long term

relationships with our customers.
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Corporate Information
NEER

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY'I-1 104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1902, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Liao Dong

Non-executive Directors
Qu Degian
Chen Zhaojun (Note 1)

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Ge Xiaojing (Note 2)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lau Wing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hu Xiang
Lau Wing

(Note 1): On 13 July 2018, the board of directors approved the re-designation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun
from executive director to non-executive director with effect from 13 July 2018. On 21
March 2019, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun from non-

executive director.

(Note 2):  On 3 August 2018, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Li Guinian from
independent non-executive director and approved the appointment of Ms. Ge Xiaojing as

independent non-executive director with effect from 3 August 2018.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Zhang Han (Chairman)
Li Tianshu

Ge Xiaojing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Li Tianshu (Chairman)

Zhang Han

Ge Xiaojing

Qu Degian

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Ge Xiaojing

Qu Degian

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wancha,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
China Merchants Bank
[/F, Wenhua Building, Shennan Road East, Shenzhen, China

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-27150701 (ext 390)
Chen Zhaotong

Email: ir@mobi-antenna.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947
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Financial Highlights
BB E

Analysis of revenue by business type Analysis of revenue by customer type
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KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(All amounts are expressed in RMB' million unless otherwise stated)

Financial Highlights

TEMHRIE

MBHE

(BRREHAN METEOUARKEE

TTZ5)

2018 2017

2018 F 20175

Revenue A 1,257.2 14224

Gross profit EH 258.0 2461
Profit/(Loss) before taxation TAFE, (&E) 10.0 (61.0)
Net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders RRER A F A E (&5 18) 16.7 (48.5)
Total assets BEE 23024 23480
Net current assets MBNEEFE 637.9 649.3
Net assets attributable to shareholders DR R e & B T 5 1,162.8 [,1772
Inventories turnover days FEREXH 157 17
AR turnover days FEW AR TUBEE R & 232 228
AP turnover days FERTRR BB RS 278 195
Current ratio BN 1.57 1.56
Gearing = V=R 8.5% 12.2%
No. of issued shares, million shares BRI EA (BER) 820.2 820.7
Net assets value per share, RMB BREEFEARET) 1.42 143
Basic eamnings (loss) per share, RMB cents FREREN(ER) (ARKES) 2.03 (592)
Retum on average equity TR AR R 1.43% -4.00%
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Chairman’s Statement

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of MOBI Development Co., Ltd, | am pleased to
present to the shareholders the business development of the Company and its subsidiaries

(the "Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year").

In the immediate past year of 2018, global political and economic turbulence, more
complicated domestic and international environment as well as the transition of domestic
communication equipment industry challenged the Company's business development.
Through product technology innovation, continuous market expansion and optimization
of customer structure, the Company has achieved large-scale growth in overseas markets,
maintained its leading position in the industry, and obtained leading position among most

competitors in 5G wireless communication technology.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2018, the Company realized approximately RMBI,257.22 million of operating revenue,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately |1.6%, while net profit amounted
to approximately RMB16.69 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 134.4%; basic

earnings per share was approximately RMB0.02.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2018, there were fluctuations in our sales throughout the year due to certain changes
in the global mobile communications market and financial environment. On the one
hand, there were intergenerational upgrades and a certain periodicity in domestic mobile
communication network building and equipment investment, as well as present transition
between 4G and 5G industry development. Every periodic change means technological
upgrade, switch of market focuses and significant adjustment of client structure, thus a
process for the restructuring of market competition. It can be noted that the 4G network
construction of major domestic telecom operators has entered the middle and late stages,
leading to decline in operators’ overall capital expenditures. In addition, as affected by the
impact of trade friction on China's economy as well as the slowdown of economic growth,
the industry experienced slowdown in overall growth, and some bottom feature appeared

in the short term.

On the other hand, globally, 4G technology was still the mainstream in the global
network construction, while there is a golden opportunity in the international market
that the market share of Chinese base station antenna manufacturers has expanded
rapidly. Capitalizing on our advantages on customers, technology and costs, the Company
deepened its cooperation with leading customers worldwide, so as to meet customers'
demand for products with high performance and price ratios, and to further increase our
international market share. In 2018, the scale of our international direct sales business
increased by 43.5% compared with the same period of last year, and the revenue from
sales to Nokia increased by more than 16.6%, maintaining a high growth momentum for
two consecutive years. Meantime, we were also positioned as the core supplier, or even

the whole- network exclusive antenna supplier, with some European operators.

To sum up, the above analysis, the Company is one of the world's few RF technology
providers with leading-edge technologies in both TD-LTE and FDD-LTE, and is also one
of the few providers that can provide the multi-frequency and multi-system antenna
technology. The Company believes that the Company is a leader of 4G and 5G antenna

and RF subsystem product technologies.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

In 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company recommended the payment of a final

dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to the future, the Company believes that the popularity of smart
terminals has driven the application of mobile Internet into a rapid development pace and

a new wave of technology is upcoming.

According to the Three-Year Action Plan for Expanding and Upgrading Information
Consumption (2018-2020) issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
and the National Development and Reform Commission in 2018, it requires to promote
in-depth coverage of 4G and ensure the commercial use of 5G in 2020, further identifies
the importance of information consumption in economic growth, and officially puts
forward with target requirements for the commercial use of 5G in 2020. The State
Council issued the Guiding Opinions on Further Expanding and Upgrading Information
Consumption to Constantly Release Domestic Demand Potentials, which clearly
pointed out that it will focus on promoting 5G standard research, technology testing and
industrial promotion, and strive to launch commercial use in 2020. It is expected that 5G
standard-setting and trial commercial operation will be completed between 2019 and
2020, and will be officially on commercial use since 2020. 5G is the beginning of a new-
round technology wave and the engine of new economic wave, which will bring new
opportunities for industrial development and industry consolidation. On the one hand, 5G
base stations will increase, including the demand for the construction of new base station
and reconstruction of the roof of existing base station. On the other hand, the demand
of large-scale antenna arrays for base station antennas and base station RF devices will
increase significantly, and the technical threshold and difficulty will also rise. With the
Company's leading position in customer channels and 5G technology, the Company is in

place to capture early opportunities riding on the development waves of 5G.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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The Company has always adhered to the important strategy of international development.
In the global arena, the overseas 4G cycle will last much longer than that in China.
Although 5G is coming soon, 4G technology will still be the mainstream in the global
network construction for a long time in the future. With its leading product technology
of overseas multi-frequency system, the Company achieved satisfying breakthroughs in
multinational operators in 2018 particularly its significant improvement in various aspects
such as product technology, quality standards and technical process experiences. In
future, the Company will further develop the markets of overseas network operators,
continuously enter the short lists of multinational and major regional network operators
and continue to increase the Company's share in the global market on a long-term basis.
[t is foreseeable that the global market share of the Company is still extremely small at
present, as such, the continuous expansion of the global market will not only push the way
up in periodic development for the next few years, but also achieve sustained growth in a

longer period.

Meanwhile, the Company will also actively explore the development of new businesses,
including exclusive network coverage for governmental enterprises and the application of
wireless solutions, to expand new growth momentum for the business of the Company.
The Company believes that 5G development will bring huge opportunities for mobile
communication. Wireless will be widely applied no matter in man-to-man communication,
man-to-object communication or object-to-object communication. The Company will

grasp the opportunity to achieve a record high result in the next few years.

I 'would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and customers for
their kind support and trust, and to our Directors and staff for their diligent work. The
Company and the Board will continue to optimize the customer base and structure,
adapt strategies of product differentiation based on technology and costs to enhance the
integrated competitiveness and ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the
Group. The Company strives to become a top class global provider of radio frequency
technology for mobile communication in order to maximize the returns to its shareholders

and the society.

Hu Xiang
Chairman and Chief Executive Office

Shenzhen, the PRC
26 March 2019
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

When compared with last year, revenue decreased by approximately RMBI165.22 million,
or approximately |1.6%, to approximately RMBI,257.22 million in 2018 (2017: approx-
imately RMB1,422.44 million).

Sales of antenna system decreased by approximately 5.6% to approximately RMB712.49
million (2017: approximately RMB754.79 million), while sales of base station RF subsys-
tem decreased by approximately 22.3% to approximately RMB460.72 million (2017: ap-
proximately RMB592.81 million). In addition, sales of products of coverage extension
solution increased by approximately 12.2% to approximately RMB84.00 million (2017:
approximately RMB74.84 million).

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD
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Management Discussion and Analysis

There were intergenerational upgrades and a certain periodicity in the network con-
struction and equipment investment of China's domestic mobile communications, leading
to continuous decline in operators’ capital expenditures. Currently, the industry is in the
transition period between 4G and 5G. Each cycle change means upgrading of technology,
switching of market focuses and major adjustment of customer structure. As such, it is also

the reshuffle process of every market competition.

There were fluctuations in the sales of 2018. The Company's revenue decreased by
13.4% in the first half of 2018 as compared with last year, mainly due to the impact of
the activation of denial order by the United States Department of Commerce on ZTE
in the second quarter of 2018; while in the second half of 2018, the Company's revenue
recorded a year-on-year increase, resulting in the decrease of annual revenue was nar-
rowed as compared with the first half of the year, which was mainly attributable to Chi-
na Mobile's network construction of NB-loT project as well as the substantial growth of

overseas sales.

The Company also believes that as the Company is a leader in the 4G and 5G antenna
and RF subsystem product technology in the PRC and by leveraging its product technolo-
gy and market advantages, it is positioned to generate greater benefits from 4G network

building and future 5G network building.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWR DN

Antenna system

The Group's products of antenna system are primarily sold to the domestic network
operators and network operators in overseas markets (such as Asia, Europe and Ameri-
cas); whilst a portion of our products of antenna system are sold to operators worldwide

by way of network solution provider customers such as ZTE and Nokia.

In 2018, the Company's antenna products continued to maintain a leading position in
the domestic market, and our continuously improving antenna product technologies and

reliability were recognised by more and more international clients.

China Mobile continued the constructing of Narrowband loT network and LTE network.
Capitalizing on advantages in product technology and cost, sales of the Company's TD/
TD-LTE antennas increased significantly by approximately 27.6% to approximately
RMB60.21 million in 2018 as compared with last year, while sales of WCDMA/FDD-
LTE antennas increased by approximately 8.5% to approximately RMBI128.13 million. As
promoted by both domestic technological upgrade and increasing demands of overseas
operators, sales of multi-frequency and multi-system antennas grew greatly by approxi-
mately 44.8% to approximately RMB293.62 million. Multi-frequency and multi-system
antennas are expected to be a major growth driver for antennas business in the coming
period. However, since China Telecom and China Unicom postponed the construction of
some networks, and the progress is slower than expected, the procurement demand de-

clined, thus offsetting some growth of above-mentioned markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In addition, the Company continued to actively develop the overseas operator market
in 2018 and won positive feedback from the customers. The Company's direct sales to
overseas operators are primarily antenna products, which also recorded substantial in-
crease in 2018 and remain in good momentum. The Company believes that the upgrades
in 5G technology and overseas growth will be the powerhouses for growth in antennas

business of the Company in the years to come.

Base station RF subsystem

The Group is a supplier of core RF subsystems for international communication
equipment manufacturers, such as ZTE and Nokia, and provides them with a variety of
products and solutions. The competition of base station RF subsystem was highly intense
in 2018. The Company continued to maintain a leading supplier position among leading
global telecommunication equipment manufacturers. The revenue from the Company's
base station RF subsystem in 2018 decreased by approximately 22.3% to approximately
RMB460.72 million, mainly due to the impact of the activation of denial order by the
United States Department of Commerce on ZTE in the second quarter of 2018 as well
as China Telecom and China Unicom'’s delay in network construction and slowdown of

demands.

The competition of base station RF subsystem was more intense in 2018. On one hand,
the product technology and quality requirements continued to improve. On the other
hand, the price of the product continued to decline. Through the product structural
optimization and continuous cost reduction, the Group's gross profit has been recovered
gradually as compared with 2017. In the second quarter of 2018, the sales of the Group's
RF subsystem business were affected due to the impact of ZTE's event. However, the
Group's growing product competitiveness is recognized by the clients, with further
enhanced market share and significant increase in sales to international equipment
manufacturers, which offset some impacts of decreased sales mentioned above. The
Company believes that, after the market baptism in 2018, our product competitiveness
is better recognized by the clients, with further enhanced market share. In particular, the
Company's securing of more overseas projects will bring about more opportunities for the

Company's growth in 2019.
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Coverage extension solution

In 2018, revenue from the Company's coverage extension solutions increased by ap-
proximately 12.2% to approximately RMB84.00 million, mainly due to an increase of ap-
proximately 257.1% in its revenue from other constructions to approximately RMB[4.37
million. The Company has secured major shares in China Mobile and China Telecom'’s
national bidding exercise for aesthetic antennas, and it has reached the large-scale de-livery
stage. Given the increasing scarcity of sites for base stations and the operation of Tower
Company (#3872 7)), the demand for aesthetic antennas by operators will continue to

increase substantially.

Customers

In 2018, the Company noted that a change in market pattem resulted in a change in
customer revenue structure, and the Company's in-depth cooperation with telecom-
munication equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators allowed the
Company to enjoy distinctive competitive strengths in changing market opportunities. In
addition, the Company proactively made adjustment and took the initiative in the indus-
try cycle and hotspot switching in 2018, and successfully realized the optimization of its

revenue structure.

Due to the temporary impact of ZTE's event as well as operators’ procurement delay and
decline of demands, the Company's sales to the PRC equipment manufacturer customers
in 2018 decreased by approximately 49.3% to approximately RMB332.24 million, and its
proportion in sales revenue also dropped by approximately 20 percentage points, while
the proportion in total revenue was approximately 26.4%. Except that, the Company's

sales to other major client groups all recorded growths.
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Sales to PRC operators increased by approximately 16.9% to approximately RMB432.56
million, and its proportion in total revenue increased by approximately 8 percentage
points to approximately 34.4%. In particular, sales to China Mobile grew significantly
from 2017 by approximately |,184.7% to approximately RMB290.77 million, mainly
driven by the large-scale demand for TD-LTE Phase 5 and NB-loT base station antenna.
However, China Telecom and China Unicom postponed some network construction,
and the progress is slower than expected. It is expected to rebound and usher in large-
scale construction in 2019, which will bring a new round of market opportunities for the

Company.
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In addition, the Company's sales to international equipment manufactures in 2018
increased by approximately 23.4% to approximately RMB309.60 million, and its proportion
in total revenue increased by approximately 7 percentage points to approximately 24.6%.
The Company believes that the Company continued to maintain a leading supplier
position among leading global telecommunication equipment manufacturer customers.
The Company's quality performance was also recognized by the customers, the
relationship with customers continued to be strengthened and reinforced. The Company
secured many overseas projects, and were more involved in the 5G project, thereby laying

a foundation for increase of sale and profit in 2019.

In 2018, the Company made major breakthroughs in direct sales markets, including
overseas operators, and won positive feedback from the customers. In 2018, the
Company's direct sales to overseas operators increased by approximately 43.5% to
approximately RMBI161.04 million, and its proportion in total revenue increased by
approximately 5 percentage points to approximately 12.8%. Benefiting from the golden
opportunity in international market, and with the increasingly intense international
competition, the demands for products with high price-to-performance ratio are growing
rapidly, whereas the overseas peers have great difficulties in cost reduction, thus Chinese
manufacturers’ market share were continuously expanding. In 2018, apart from the
significant year-on-year increase in the business scale of international direct sales, we
were also positioned as the core supplier, or even the whole- network exclusive antenna
supplier, with some European operators. Meantime, the exchange of business and
technology between other major European operators and the Company has been further
deepened, and there will be continuous breakthroughs in the short lists. We believe that it

will bring a new round of growth opportunities in the near future.

The deployment of the Company's products in the network systems of our diversified

international customers strengthened worldwide awareness of the brand name of MOBI.
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Gross profit

In 2018, gross profit of the Company increased by approximately 4.9% to approximately
RMB258.03 million (2017: approximately RMB246.09 million), and gross profit margin
increased to approximately 20.5%. The Group improved the overall gross profit margin
through the constantly optimizing products sales portfolio, increasing the proportion of

high-tech products in sales and implementing effective control of intemal costs.

The Company noticed that the technology path in the 3G/4G era is relatively short. As
the mature and rapid spread of technology, there will be highly intense price competition
in the later stage of technological development, which will impact the profitability of the
industry. As 5G is coming soon, the technology evolution path will be longer, and there
will be significant increase in technical difficulties, product solutions, quality requirements
and application scenarios, which will significantly reduce qualified suppliers and be
conducive to the improvement of competitive environment, enabling the Company
to more focus on improving product technology. The Company believes that with the
continuous evolution of technology products, the Company was full of confidence both in

the future recovery and growth of profit margins.

Other income and expenses

Other income and expenses increased to approximately RMB41.07 million, mainly due to
the increase in cash discount from suppliers upon settlement as well as net exchange gains

of the Company.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately 10.1% from approximately
RMB91.71 million in 2017 to approximately RMB82.45 million in 2018, mainly due to
strengthened cost management and the reduced business activities, resulting in decrease

in business expenses, advertising costs, logistics costs, agency fees and consulting expenses.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 12.5% from approximately
RMBI18.1'1 million in 2017 to approximately RMB103.38 million in 2018, mainly due to

the decrease in expenses on wages, business expenses, traveling fees, rents and legal costs.

Research and development costs

During the year, the Company recognised development costs of approximately RMB24.08
million as intangible assets. After the capitalisation, development costs decreased by
approximately 16.6% from approximately RMB106.75 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB89.07 million in 2018, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in salaries
for research and development activities, communication costs, business expenditures,
transportation expenses and costs of research and development materials. As the
development demand of 5G technology and overseas projects increased significantly, the
Company's R&D investment is expected to rise rapidly in 2019, which is expected to bring

business opportunities in the future.
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Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately 9.5% from approximately RMBI14.57 million in
2017 to approximately RMBI3.18 million in 2018, mainly due to the partial repayment of
bank borrowings. In 2018, bank borrowings of the Company decreased by approximately
RMB90.66 million to approximately RMB196.80 million.

Profit before Taxation

In 2018, profit before taxation increased to approximately RMB10.02 million (2017: a loss
before taxation of approximately RMB60.98 million). Net profit margin before taxation

charges increased from approximately -4.3% in 2017 to approximately 0.8% in 2018.

Taxation

Current income tax expenses decreased by approximately 95.5% from approximately
RMBO0.426 million in 2017 to approximately RMBO0.019 million in 2018. Effective tax rates
calculated from the tax charged to the profit (loss) before taxation of the Company were

approximately 0.2% and approximately -0.7% for 2018 and 2017 respectively.
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Profit for the year

Profit for the year 2018 increased by approximately |34.4% to a profit of approximately
RMB16.69 million (2017: a loss for the year of approximately RMB48.51 million). The
Company's net profit margin was approximately 1.3% in 2018, compared to approximately
-34% in 2017. The increase in our net profit margin was mainly due to the decrease in
distribution and sales expenses, administrative expenses and research and development

costs.

Relationships with equipment manufacturers, operators and suppliers

The Group mainly sells antenna products and RF subsystem products to
telecommunication equipment manufacturer customers (such as ZTE) who builds
complete networks for delivery to telecommunication operators (such as China
Mobile), thus enabling the Group to establish close and stable relations with equipment

manufacturers.

The Group is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions
to both global and domestic telecommunication operators (such as China Mobile, China
Unicom and China Telecom) and telecommunication equipment manufacturers (such
as ZTE and Nokia), which enables the Company to maintain a leading edge in product
technology and continuous expansion of customer channels, and thus to build close and

solid relations with global and domestic telecommunication operators.
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Suppliers of the Group include raw material suppliers and contract manufacturers. The
Group has developed solid and steady relationships with many of its key suppliers.
Given solid and steady relationships with the suppliers, the Group believes that its
suppliers generally provide supplies to the Group with a priority and the Group has not
experienced any material shortage or delays in receiving supplies or services from the

suppliers during the track record period.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the Group. Major

risks and uncertainties are summarized below.

Brand/Reputation Risk

The Company has established and maintained its MOBI brand that aims to brand the
products of the Group including antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage
extension solution, primarily targeting leading system equipment manufacturers and
telecommunication operators worldwide for provision of its RF solution. If the Group
is unsuccessful in promoting its MOBI brand or fails to maintain its brand position and
market perception, system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators’
acceptance of its MOBI brand may erode, and the Group's business, financial condition,

results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

Any negative publicity or dispute relating to the Group's MOBI brand, products,
sponsorship activities or management, the loss of any award or accreditation associated
with the Group’s MOBI brand or products or the use of the “MOBI" trademark or brand
name by other businesses could materially and adversely affect the Group's business,

financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
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Market Trend

The Group's success depends on the market perception and customer acceptance of
MORBI brand and the Group's products, which in large part, rely on the Group's ability to

anticipate and respond to different market demands in a timely manner.

If the Group is unable to utilize new technologies and processes, anticipate and respond
to market and new technology trends and customer preferences in a timely manner,
demand for MOBI products may decrease. The Group's business would also suffer if
product creations or modifications do not respond to the needs of customers, are not
appropriately timed with market opportunities or are not effectively brought to market.
Any failure by the Group to offer products that respond to changing market and customer
preferences, or any shift in market or new technologies and processes and customer
preferences away from MOBI brand and the Group's products, could adversely affect

customers' interest in the Group's products.

Competition

Currently, the Group's antenna system products, base station RF subsystem products
and coverage extension solution products face different levels of competition in their
respective market sectors. As competitors with similar brand positioning may emerge
and intensify the current competition, there can be no assurance that the Group will be
able to compete effectively against competitors who may have greater financial resources,
greater scales of production, superior technology, better brand recognition and a wider
and more diverse distribution network. To compete effectively and maintain the Group's
market share, the Group may be forced to, among other actions, reduce prices and
increase capital expenditures, which may in turn negatively affect the Group's profit

margins, business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group's production process is carried out with low emissions and low energy
consumption, and it will not produce great amount of pollutants. The Group has been
endeavoring to ensure that the production process is in compliance with relevant

environmental rules and regulations.

In the past, the Group has not been in breach of any relevant environmental rules and
regulations and has not been imposed any relevant penalty. It is expected that the future
operational activities of the Group would not be affected by the environmental policies.
The Group strives for energy conservation and consumption reduction. In reducing the

operating costs, the Group also puts efforts in environmental protection.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in mainland
China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group's operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report,
to the best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong, and there was no material breach of or

non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Prospects

Looking forward, the Company will pay attention to both domestic and overseas markets
simultaneously and will continue to focus on the area of RF technology for wireless
communication, especially on base station RF technology and RF technology for other

wireless communications.
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The Company believes that the popularity of smart terminals has driven the application
of mobile Internet into a rapid development pace and a new wave of technology is
upcoming. According to the Three-Year Action Plan for Expanding and Upgrading
Information Consumption (2018-2020) issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology and the National Development and Reform Commission in 2018, it requires
to promote in-depth coverage of 4G and ensure the commercial use of 5G in 2020,
further identifies the importance of information consumption in economic growth, and
officially puts forward with target requirements for the commercial use of 5G in 2020.
The State Council issued the Guiding Opinions on Further Expanding and Upgrading
Information Consumption to Constantly Release Domestic Demand Potentials, which

clearly pointed out that it will focus on promoting 5G standard research, technology
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testing and industrial promotion, and strive to launch commercial use in 2020. It is
expected that 5G standard-setting and trial commercial operation will be completed
between 2019 and 2020, and will be officially on commercial use since 2020. 5G is the
beginning of a new-round technology wave and the engine of new economic wave, which
will bring new opportunities for industrial development and industry consolidation. On
the one hand, 5G base stations will increase, including the demand for the construction
of new base station and reconstruction of the roof of existing base station. On the other
hand, the demand of large-scale antenna arrays for base station antennas and base station
RF devices will increase significantly, and the technical threshold and difficulty will also
rise. With the Company’s leading position in customer channels and 5G technology, the
Company is in place to capture early opportunities riding on the development waves of
5G.
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The Company has always adhered to the important strategy of international development.
In the global arena, the overseas 4G cycle will last much longer than that in China.
Although 5G is coming soon, 4G technology will still be the mainstream in the global
network construction for a long time in the future. With its leading product technology
of overseas multi-frequency system, the Company achieved satisfying breakthroughs in
multinational operators in 2018 particularly its significant improvement in various aspects
such as product technology, quality standards and technical process experiences. In
future, the Company will further develop the markets of overseas network operators,
continuously enter the short lists of multinational and major regional network operators
and continue to increase the Company's share in the global market on a long-term basis.
[t is foreseeable that the global market share of the Company is still extremely small at
present, as such, the continuous expansion of the global market will not only push the way
up in periodic development for the next few years, but also achieve sustained growth in a

longer period.

Customers

The Company adheres to the visionary target of "becoming a global leading provider of
RF technology for mobile communications”, and strives to offer its RF solution to leading

system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators around the world.

The Company is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions
to both global system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators, which
enables the Company to maintain a leading edge in product technology and continuous

expansion of customer channels.

In 2018, the Company continued to maintain a leading share in the domestic operator
market. We experienced a substantial increase in sales to China Mobile, and obtained a
leading share in China Telecom and China Unicom's procurement tender and maintained
powerful cooperation. As the network construction progress of China Telecom and China
Unicom was slower than expected, the Company will maintain the dominant position in
the implementation of projects in 2019, including China Unicom'’s centralized procurement
of 900M antenna and China Telecom's centralized procurement of Phase Il 800M base

station antenna.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of domestic equipment manufacturers, the Company still possess advantage as a
leading supplier with its leading competitiveness in aspects such as product technologies
and customer communications. At the same time, the Company is in closer cooperation
with domestic equipment manufacturers in 5G technology research and development.
Due to the increasing complexity of 5G technology and the improved value of antenna
and RF subsystem, the Company's close strategic partnership with domestic equipment

manufacturers will further prominent the Company's advantages in the future market.

As for international equipment manufacturers, in 2018, the Company maintained
overall growth in sales of antenna and RF subsystem products to Nokia, representing
over approximately [6.6% in overall growth rate. In addition, the Group continued
to implement orders from Ericsson, leading to revenue growth. It is believed that the
Company will make a promising business performance regarding international equipment

manufacturers in 2019.

After years of efforts, the Company has been making new breakthroughs in the expansion
of overseas direct sales markets. As one of the mobile communications markets with
largest procurement scale, most difficult technology and most complex application
scenarios in the world, European operators are also the long-term strategic direction
of the Company. In 2018, the Company's revenue from direct sales to international
operators increased significantly by over approximately 43.5% as compared with last year,
which was recognized by many European customers. In 2019, the Company will intensify
efforts to promote the technological upgrading and coverage of products to meet the
demand of overseas customers. The Company believes that the direct sales growth in
interational operators will become another strong driving force for the business growth

of the Company in the next few years.
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Products

5G is approaching closer. In June 2018, the SA function of 5G NR was officially frozen at
the 3GPP conference, and the early 5G Release|5 version with NSA architecture was
completed in December 2017, the Phase | full-featured standardization work of 5G has
been completed. In December 2018, the three major domestic operators obtained the
test band use permit for nationwide 5G mid-band and low-band test. The determination
of the first version of 5G standards and the issuance of band use permit for 5G system
test to three major domestic operators will further accelerate the construction of 5G
network and the development of industrial chain in China. It is expected that 5G standard-
setting and trial commercial operation will be completed in 2019, and will be officially on
commercial use since 2020. There will be overall performance in bandwidth, delay and
synchronization in the 5G era. It will bring certain stock and increment opportunities,
including the demand for the construction of new base station and reconstruction of the
roof of existing base station, leading to increasing demand for high-end antennas. The

Company believes that benefiting from our strong R&D capabilities and leading position
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Management Discussion and Analysis

in the industry chain, the technical threshold of advanced high-end antennas can be
favorable for the Company's competition. Meantime, with the increasing complicated 5G
radio frequency subsystems, the Company has already established strategic partnership
with customers. In general, the Company believes that by virtue of the Company's
leading position in technologies of 5G antennas and radio frequency subsystems, and the
integrated and source-based development of antenna and RF subsystem, the Company
is in place to capture early opportunities riding on the network construction of 5G

depending on our technology and customer accumulation these two segments.

Globally, the overseas LTE network construction are still growing vigorously. Although
5G is coming soon, 4G technology will still be the mainstream in the global network
construction for a long time in the future. Further technology upgrading of multi-frequency
and multi-system antennas will be provided by overseas LTE network construction and
multi-network stations, getting closer to limit design. The Company has been accumulating
experience for many vyears in the technology of multi-frequency and multi-system
antennas, which is belived to enable the Company to accomplish the upgrading of antenna
development platform with its capability, catering for the ever-evolving demand for

international operators.

For coverage extension products, given the increasing scarcity of sites for base stations
and the operation of Tower Company, the demand for aesthetic antennas by domestic
telecom operators will continue to increase substantially. As such, the Company will
invest more R&D resources in aesthetic antennas in 2018, and develop towards high-end
products. The Company's product technology will contribute to obtaining a leading share

and capturing early opportunities.
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Conclusion

The Company is one of the few one-stop solution providers of RF technology for global
network operators and system equipment manufacturers in the PRC, capitalizing on
a wide range of well-known customers and diversified income sources positive for its

healthy and stable growth.

The Company believes that the telecommunication equipment industry is expected to
see another growth cycle due to the continuous development of 4G network and the
forthcoming 5G construction over the next few years. The Company and the Board
will continue to optimize the size and mix of customer base and adopt differentiated
competition strategies underpinned by technology and cost advantages to maximize the
market opportunities in LTE, 5G and next generation wireless technologies, thus enhancing
the Company's overall competitiveness to ensure the robust business performance of the

Group and create more value for shareholders and the society.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations and capital requirements from cash generated from our
operations, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings. Our primary
uses of cash have been for our increased working capital needs, capital expenditures
on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land use rights for our real

properties in Shenzhen, Ji'an and Xi'an in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets of approximately RMB637.91
million (2017: approximately RMB649.26 million) including inventories of approximately
RMB448.69 million (2017: approximately RMB413.38 million), trade receivables and
notes receivable of approximately RMB692.79 million (2017: approximately RMB905.57
million) and trade payables and notes payable of approximately RMB803.56 million (2017:
approximately RMB720.69 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group maintained effective management of its working capital. For the year ended
31 December 2018, average inventories turnover, average receivables turnover and
average payables turnover are approximately |57 days (2017: 117 days), 232 days (2017:
228 days) and 278 days (2017: 195 days) respectively. We offer credit terms generally
accepted in the antenna and base station RF subsystem manufacturing industry to our
trade customers. In general, the average credit period for local network operators is

longer than global network operators and solution providers.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a pledged bank balance of approximately
RMBI71.74 million (2017: approximately RMBI166.66 million), cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB296.34 million (2017: approximately RMB190.46 million) and recorded
bank borrowings of approximately RMB196.80 million (2017: approximately RMB287.46
million). The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) increased from
approximately 1.56 times as at 31 December 2017 to approximately .57 times as at
31 December 2018. The gearing ratio (bank borrowings divided by total assets) was
approximately 8.5% as at 31 December 2018 as compared with a gearing ratio of
approximately 12.2% as at 31 December 2017. The interest rates on the Group's bank

borrowings are designated as fixed rates or floating rates based on prevailing market rates.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position and
adequate resources to satisfy necessary operating capital requirements and foreseeable

capital expenditures.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than RMB expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales and purchases and certain
trade receivables and bank balances are denominated in USD, Euro, CHF and HKD.
We currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management

monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 3,004 staff. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB281.59 million for the year ended 2018. The
remuneration of the Group's employees is determined on the basis of their responsibilities
and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the skills and expertise of
relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible

staff based on their performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, bank balances of approximately RMB171.74 million were
pledged to bank to secure bank borrowings and bills payable granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 3| December 2018, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During 2018, a total amount of 487,000 shares of the Company had been repurchased at
prices ranging from HK$0.86 per share to HK$0.93 per share by the Company via Stock
Exchange. The Company had subsequently cancelled all these shares repurchased during
the year. Save as mentioned above, neither the Company nor the Company or any of
its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the

current year.
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DIVIDEND

To share the fruitful results of the Group among all the shareholders, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share out of distributable
reserve of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018. The date of
closure of the register of members of the Company regarding the entitlement of final
dividend will be published in due course. The proposed final dividend will be paid on 3
July 2019 following approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM").

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 22 May 2019 (“2019 AGM"), the Register
of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 17 May 2019 to Wednesday
22 May 2019, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
2019 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the Company's
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited (the “Company's
Registrar)at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wancha,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 May 2019.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the final dividend, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 28 May 2019 to
Wednesday, 29 May 2019, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the Company's share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 27 May 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report

3 '#ﬁﬁhéxﬁﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance

to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices and
continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control management and

reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises seven Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The following sets

out the composition of the Board, by category of Directors:

Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Liao Dong

Non-executive Directors:
Qu Degian
Chen Zhaojun (Note 1)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Ge Xiaojing (Note 2)

The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard to the
business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required expertise to
the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have extensive management
experience in the wireless communication antennas and base station RF subsystems
industry. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and senior management

are set out on pages 83 to 90 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships among

members of the Board.

(Note 1): On 13 July 2018, the board of directors approved the re-designation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun
from executive director to non-executive director with effect from 13 July 2018. On 21
March 2019, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun from non-

executive director.

(Note 2):  On 3 August 2018, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Li Guinian from
independent non-executive director and approved the appointment of Ms. Ge Xiaojing as

independent non-executive director with effect from 3 August 2018.
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Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted with the
responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business, including establishing
and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business plans, financial objectives,
capital investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing its
business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group's businesses to the

executive Directors and members of senior management of the Group.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by
business needs. During the year ended 31 December 2018, four Board meetings, two
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) meetings, one remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) meeting and one nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) meeting were convened. Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of
the members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least 14 days prior to
the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the agenda.
The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the Directors not less
than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make an informed

decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as

set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.
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Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.6 of Corporate Governance Code, the Board has adopted
a Board Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the Company's
approach to achieving diversity of its Board. The Company recognises that an increase
in diversity at the Board level will support the achievement of its strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to increase Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business model and specific

needs from time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development directions for the
Group and for the daily management of the business of the Group, implementation of the
policies, business objectives and plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board

for the overall operation of the Group.

Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Hu Xiang
is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hu is one of the
founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the telecommunication industry.
Given the current stage of development of our Group, the Board believes that vesting
the two roles in the same person provides our Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of our Group's business
strategies. We shall nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the

prevailing circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company's Articles of Association,
one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting provided that every Director

shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Director, namely Li Tianshu,
Zhang Han and Ge Xiaojing and one non-executive Director, namely Qu Degjan. The

Remuneration Committee is chaired by Li Tianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors and
senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
. formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

. recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration of

Directors and senior management;

. determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,

including benefits in kind and compensation payments;

. review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for

misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and
. determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.
No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the Company's remuneration policies, the terms of the service
contracts and the performance of all executive Directors and senior management. Details
of attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings of each of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note 10 to

the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Li Tianshu, Zhang Han and Ge Xiaojing, one non-executive Director, namely Qu Degian
and one executive Director, namely, Hu Xiang. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Hu Xiang. Currently all new appointments to the Board will be considered by the Board

whose deliberations are based on the following criteria:

. possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board;

. ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively;
and

. possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
organizations.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Details of attendance of Nomination Committee meeting of
each of the members of the Nomination Committee are meeting of each of the members
of the Nomination Committee set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit Committee comprises
all the independent non-executive Directors. Zhang Han is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the Directors,
the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties relating to, among
other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and external audits and
to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing independent view and

supervision of financial reporting.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

REZES

EESCDRNEIANAKRIREZEZE
g ErTEERESEIAEREREL-
REZESRE-RBUNITESEX
7 RARBES  FRTEFERRER
TESHA - HARRELELZEGIFR - EF
SNMAENEZEEIEKRETSERN U TER
RBAEME

o FTESH BEETRREFEARN
ARBIEBOEENHANH  LRE
EEZRAEENRBEE AR

o BEHLERA BUMETRE K
o BRME /HBRAEENZSELR-

BZE0ISFI2A3NBILEE REZE®
BRA-RSERITESSHICEE A
BERER  UWRESEZAFESADAE
BERNHENH - R RER  SREE
EERELRREZEEERLFBEANT
X[BEFSRHEER]

BREEE

EZECHUERZES  BREEERER
EIREREREML - BRREGRENE
BUFRTES - RERBEZZBEER

>t

ZZEERES EREMLM KRR
B (Eh B MR E MR - ARG
PONBEZBENTIREBER  TRER
EXQRMBUER RE BB BIARE
EXEQRETRE -

&3
=l



Corporate Governance Report

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

. to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of

external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such appointments;

. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

. to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for non-

audit services;

. to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports and
the auditor’s report to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced

assessment of the Group's financial position;
. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

. to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and internal

control systems;

. to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal

control system; and

. to review the external auditor's management letter and any questions raised by the

auditor to the management and the management's response.

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December
2018. The Audit Committee reviewed, together with the management and the external
auditors, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and statutory compliance.
In addition to reviewing the Group's risk management and internal control systems and
the effectiveness of the internal audit function, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
independence of the external auditors and approved the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors. Details of attendance of Audit Committee meetings
of each of the members of the Audit Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual

Directors at Meetings” below.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The Code Provision stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 times

a year at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors

at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the

Nomination Committee, the annual general meeting during the year ended 3| December

2018, respectively, is set forth in the table below:

Name of Director

Hu Xiang

Liao Dong

Chen Zhaojun (Note 1)

Qu Degian

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han
Li Guinian (Note 2)

Ge Xiaojing (Note 2)

EEpS

a2l

=]
3

BRKE (FRE 1)

R

FREF
O
FrREME2)

s (E2)

Board
Exg

44

4/4

34

4/4

4/4
4/4
24

2/4

Remuneration

Committee

FHEES

N/A
TiEA
N/A
i
N/A
NER
/1

[/1
/1
[/1

N/A
i

(Note I): On 13 July 2018, the board of directors approved the re-designation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun

from executive director to non-executive director with effect from 13 July 2018. On 21

March 2019, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun from non-

executive director.

(Note 2):  On 3 August 2018, the board of directors appoived the resignation of Mr. Li Guinian from

independent non-executive director and approved the appointment of Ms. Ge Xiaojing as

independent non-executive director with effect from 3 August 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills. The Directors had fulfilled the

relevant requirements under A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code during the year

ended 3| December 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

Pursuant to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than
I'5 hours of relevant professional training in each financial year. The Company Secretary
is Mr. Lau Wing and has taken more than |5 hours of relevant professional development

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without prejudice to
and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth in the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since |7 December 2009,
the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange adopted a stringent system
to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting transactions (“Relevant Transactions”) in
which any Directors are interested in, and transactions with any of our connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any company in which the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually
or collectively, owns a direct or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including
transactions with ZTE Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd, Shenzhen
Zhongxingxindi Technologies Co., Ltd, and Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd.)

(“Relevant Companies”), as follows:

(1) Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a majority
of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, provided
that any non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director interested
in the transactions in question will declare his or her interest and will abstain from

voting on such matters;

(2)  Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in matters

relating to the Relevant Transactions;
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(3)  An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) comprising the chief financial
officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been established to
monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to prepare semi-annual
report in relation to the execution of the Relevant Transactions (“Semi-annual

Report") for the supervisory committee’s (the “Supervisory Committee”) review;

(4)  The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of
conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms and
conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions, devise
and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow, review
Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings to the Board
and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the Relevant Transactions
will be entered into in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole;

and

(5)  The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory Committee

in the Company's interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two meetings were held by the Supervisory
Committee to review the report on Relevant Transactions in respect of the sales and
purchase entered into by the Group with the Relevant Companies pepared by the
Executive Committee. As reported by the Supervisory Committee, (i) it had reviewed
and approved the master agreements entered into by the Group and the Relevant
Companies and considered the terms and conditions therein were fair and reasonable; (ii)
it had reviewed the supplier procurement bidding documents and interal procurement
procedures of the Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed rules and guidelines for
Executive Committee and the Executive Committee had followed accordingly; and (iv)
it had reviewed the report submitted by the Executive Committee. The Supervisory
Committee considered Relevant Transactions conducted during the review period were
in line with the respective master agreements and the intemal procedures of the Group,
were on fair and normal commercial terms and there was no other matter that needs to

be brought to the attention of the Board and shareholders of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants ("Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with the

audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total remuneration in respect of audit services

provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMB2.55 million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders” approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed as
the external auditors of the Company for 2019.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position and prospects. The management provides such
explanations and information to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the

matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of
the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with

applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of three

months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The main objectives of the Group's risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting

mechanism to facilitate the Group in managing risks across its business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the Board
of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Taskforce. The Board of
Directors determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and has overall responsibility for monitoring the design,
implementation and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control

systems.
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The Group has formulated and adopted a Risk Management Policy for providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks on at least an annual basis, the Risk
Management Taskforce identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of
standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans are established and risk owners are then assigned

for the management of those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to assist the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee with ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
interal control systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of
internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for their remediation.
Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the

Board of Directors on a timely basis to ensure that they are promptly addressed.

Risk management and internal control reports are submitted to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors at least once a year. The Board of Directors performs an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
including, but not limited to, changes in the nature and extent of significant risks after
the review in the prior year, the Group's ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality of the management's ongoing
monitoring of risks and internal control systems; results of internal audit work; the extent
and frequency of communication of the results of monitoring of risk management and
internal control systems to the Board of Directors; significant failures or weaknesses
identified and their related implications; and the effectiveness of the Group's processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. Following its review for the year ended
31 December 2018, the Board of Directors considers the Group's risk management and

interal control systems are effective.

The risk management and intemal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable

and not absolute assurance against matenial misstatement or loss.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has established an Inside Information Policy for the handling and dissemination
of Inside Information. The Group complies with requirements of the Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO™) and the Listing Rules. It discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours,
as provided in the SFO. Before information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures that it is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached,
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensuring that information contained in announcements is not false or
misleading as to material fact, or omission of material fact, and to presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, including through equal disclosure of both positive and negative

information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders” meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Stock Exchange after each shareholders” meeting,
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 79 of our Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
An extraordinary general meeting may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 30 Days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.
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(i)  Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meetings may
achieve so by means of convening an extraordinary general meeting following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

As regards the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director, they are available on our Company's website (www.mobi-antenna.com).

(i)  Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquires to our Company by addressing them to the Company Secretary by mail at

Room 1902, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December, 2018, there has not been any change in the

Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of the
Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The Group is
going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular dialogue with

investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each

substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.
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INTRODUCTION

CORPORATE PROFILE OF MOBI

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The shares of
the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 17 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and base
station Radio Frequency (“RF”) subsystems in China. Our business consists of the design,
manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and solutions
that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems, including,
wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-SCDMA, CDMA
2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), 4G (TD-LTE and FDD-LTE), 5G, MIMO antennas, satellite

communication and microwave transmission networks.
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We sell our products to network operators in China and overseas directly for deployment
into the networks they are constructing and operating. We also sell our products to some
of the world's leading wireless network solution providers who incorporate our products
into their wireless coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they

then sell to network operators worldwide.

The Company relies on scientific management and a people-oriented corporate
culture in pursuing “dedication, devotion, pragmatism and pioneership”. We deem it
our responsibility to provide our employees with an ideal working environment and
development opportunities so that they can exert their full potential. Through scientific
management, we aim to create a good working atmosphere for employees while providing
reasonable incentives to promote their healthy growth. It is our relentless pursuit to satisfy

customers, employees, investors and the whole community.

The Company adheres to the principle of sustainable development and lays great
emphasis on environmental protection throughout its entire product life cycle in the
course of its business operations, from product design and development, procurement of
parts and components, manufacturing to product delivery. Through systematic planning
and operation, we ensure that the impact on the environment is minimized, and that the
use of resources is efficient from the source so as to reduce resource consumption and

achieve energy conservation.

In the establishment of its management system, the Company passed the 1SO 900!
Quality Management Systems Certification, TL 9000 Quality Management System
Certification, I1SO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification and
OHSASI8001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certification. It
made efforts in Electronics Industry Citizenship Coalition (EICC), social responsibility
management, risk management, carbon emission and corporate governance by setting
up and strictly complying with corresponding policies and standards, thereby achieving

substantial results.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long-term

partnerships with our customers.

COMPANY VISION

“Becoming a global leading provider of RF technology for mobile communications.”
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CORPORATE MISSION

“Explore and walk on the path to survival and development of the Company with
collective intelligence from employees; continuously bring management and technology
innovation into practice; and develop MOBI into a global leading provider of RF

technology for mobile communications.”

CORE VALUES OF THE COMPANY
“Accountability, devotion, diligence and efficiency, team-spirit, care for people, mutual

respect.”

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT PHILOSOPHY OF THE COMPANY
“Human resources is the core to the sustainable rapid development of the Company, we
pay close attention to the performance and remuneration of the employees, as well as

their development.”

TABLE OF CONTENTS
About this report
Environmental/Occupational Health and Safety Policy of MOBI
General Rules on Corporate Social Responsibility of MOBI
Devotion to Environmental Protection
Emissions
Use of Resources: Energy, water and other raw materials
Environment and Natural Resources
Conflict Minerals
Establishment of a Team of Excellence
Staff Employment
Health and Safety
Development and Training
Labor Standards
Staff Activities: Cultural Campaigns and Recreational Sports
Responsible Supply Chain and Product Liability Management
Supply Chain Management
Product Liability
Compliance in Operation
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
Anti-corruption
Community Involvement and Charity Activities
Community Involvement

Charity Activities
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the requirements set out in the ESG Reporting Guidelines, Appendix 27
of the Main Board Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the
Company is pleased to publish this report on the environmental, social and governance
aspects for the disclosure on the relevant information (this “Report™). This Report covers
the period from | January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”). This
Report mainly covers the performance of MOBI Development's subsidiaries in three
places of operation (Shenzhen, Guangdong; Xi'an, Shaanxi, and Ji'an, Jiangxi) with respect

to environmental, social and governance.

The Board of Directors of the Company assumes full responsibility for the overall
environmental, social and governance strategy and reporting of the Company. The Board
is responsible for assessing and determining the issuers’ risks in relation to environment,
society and governance and for ensuring that the Company establishes appropriate and
effective environmental, social and governance risk management and internal control
systems, while the management is responsible for monitoring and managing the risks
associated with environment, society and governance and the effectiveness of the
management system. The management personnel will be responsible for checking the
information disclosed in this Report, while the Board of the Company will be responsible

for review and approval thereof.

The Company conducts business activities in a responsible and sustainable manner
to create value for employees, customers and shareholders, as well as to fulfill its
commitment to the environment and society. We understand that exhaust gases
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land and generation of
waste can adversely affect the environment and we understand the scarcity of natural
resources. Therefore, the Company will persist in adopting appropriate measures to
achieve sustainable development during its business operation. We are convinced that
sustainability in business is not just window dressing, but is essential to the development of
the Company. By adopting sustainable practices, we will gain a competitive edge, increase
our market share and bring value to our shareholders in the long run. On top of that,
we will keep a focus on social responsibility and continue to take practical actions for the

benefit of the community.
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The Company understands the importance of the stakeholders' participation in achieving
its sustainable development, so the Company persists in communicating with relevant
internal and external stakeholders regularly to know about their opinions on the
Company's business development, environmental, social and governance aspects, and to
help us satisfy the stakeholders” expectations. The Company's key stakeholders and the

communication methods with them are as follows:

Stakeholders Communication Methods
K& BELE
Investors and shareholders *  Website of the Group
REERRE o  KE®

®  Shareholders’ meeting

s BEK®
Employees *  Website of the Group
BT o KE®UM

d Internal email

. ANESD

d Employee training

«  BIR
Customers *  Website of the Group
eSS o KE®uM

° Customer hotline
o XPHRE

Suppliers *  Website of the Group
HREm o«  KE@U

®  Business meeting
\ A
° ESV e

° Performance evaluation

o KRHAFE
Government and regulatory authorities o Public consultation
LGS EAR T LN VS

e Emall

. BH
Media and the public *  Website of the Group
BRERAR o«  KE®
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° Staff Activities
o BIEH
° Performance evaluation
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®  Questionnaire survey
e [HEHE
®  Plant visit

e REEER

° Evaluation report
. B

° Press release
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The management of the Group regularly reviews the operation of its various departments,
identifies relevant environmental, social and governance issues and assesses the significance
of these issues to our business and our stakeholders. We will disclose in this Report the
environmental, social and governance issues we deem to be most material. The materiality

assessment results are shown as follows:

Important Issues

RiE  #HERERES

AEEEEETHRT S BPIEFERNLE
BIMARERE - HEREIAEE - LHE1EH
EEHBMANEBUALZHNENERIE
KB AERNRE HERELHERE
RARES - BRUFHERHENMT

EERE
Environmental

BiR
®  Emissions ®  Environment and Natural Resources
LI 31167 o RERKRABR
®  Use of Resources *  Conflict Minerals
s EBREM s BREE

Social

i
*  Staff Employment o Staff Activities
e BIER o BIEH
®  Health and Safety ®  Supply Chain Management
s REAZZ o fEEER
®  Development and Training ®  Product Liability
o BRERKIFI s EmEf
®  Labor Standards e Community Involvement
o HBTAR| s HERZHE

Governance

&R
®  Compliance with Laws and Regulations ®  Anti-corruption
o EWERNER e REF
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Based on the mateniality assessment results, this Report serves to provide an overview
of our sustainable development principles, policies and actual practices under five topics,
namely Devotion to Environmental Protection, Establishment of a Team of Excellence,
Responsible Supply Chain and Product Liability Management, Compliance in Operations

and Community Involvement.

ENVIRONMENTAL/OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY OF
MOBI

We are committed to: conducting our business activities in a manner that take
responsibility for the environment and the health and safety of our staff, fulfilling our
responsibilities in protecting the environment and promoting the health and safety of our

staff, in order to provide more competitive products and services to our customers.

To this end, we have developed a clear environmental/occupational health and safety

management policy, requiring us to:

Maintain precautions for strengthening risk management,

Comply with environmental and safety regulations, raise the awareness of all parties,
Promote green operations, step up emissions reduction,

Pay attention to employee health, ensure safe production,

Optimize environmental and safety performance, encourage continuous improvement,

Collaborate with all stakeholders, achieve synergies and progress.
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Details of the environmental/occupational health and safety management policy are as

follows:

> Adhere to the ideology of maintaining precautions in the first place, establish
and maintain a documented management system, to achieve systematic and
standardized management, and strengthen the identification, assessment and
control of sources of danger and environmental risk factors, to prevent pollution

and accidents;

> Comply with international conventions, laws and regulations and other
requirements, continue to provide education and training on the environment and
health and safety, enhance the awareness, knowledge and skills of employees in
terms of the environment and health and safety, to enhance the initiatives of all

employees in taking part;

> Promote the philosophy of green operations and adhere to the sustainable
development strategy, taking into account the whole life cycle of product, and
adopting concrete measures in all aspects to prevent harm to the environment,

reduce energy and resource consumption, and strive for environmental affinity;

> Put the health and safety of our staff in the first place to ensure that all business
activities strictly comply with respective working procedures and policies, so as to
create a healthy and safe working environment for our employees and pursue zero

injuries and zero accidents;

> Continuously optimize environmental and health and safety management
performance, persevere in developing new technologies, processes and products
that are beneficial to the environment and the health and safety of our employees,

and always search for better solutions;

We advocate the concept of environment, health and safety (“EHS"), and incorporate
related requirements into our supply chain management activities, to improve performance
from the perspective of the overall supply chain, with a pursuit of a harmonious balance
between corporate development, social responsibility and the health and safety of our

employees and common progress.
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Safe production is a core value of the Company. It is the Company's basic responsibility
to prevent casualties and fatalities of our employees and to create a safe and healthy
working environment. The Company strives to become an outstanding organization with
continuous improvement and long-term development. In developing the Company's
strategic objectives, action decisions and in conducting daily operations, the Company will

consider such factors as economy, environment, health, safety and social responsibility.

All of our management personnel are the medium to promote our priorities in the
environment, health and safety, and the exponent for putting such ideas into practice. All
employees are required to comply with the Company's safety regulations and policies.
Employees are the Company's most essential wealth and each employee's contribution
to the Company is unique and value-adding. The Company encourages, recognizes and
rewards employees for their active contributions to the Company's environmental, safety

and health performance.

GENERAL RULES ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY OF MOBI
The Company manages its social responsibility and commitment within the scope of
its control and influence, and ensures that the management system and regulations it
formulates comply with national laws and regulations and internationally recognized
SAB000 ethical standards.

This includes the principles of the following international agreements and the relevant
national laws, regulations and policies: International Labor Organization Convention 29
and Convention 105 (forced labor and debt-bondage), International Labor Organization
Convention 87 (freedom of association), International Labor Organization Convention 98
(right to organize and collective bargaining), Intemational Labor Organization Convention
100 and Convention |11 (equal remuneration and anti-discrimination), International Labor
Organization Convention 135 (workers' representatives), International Labor Organization
Convention 138 and Recommendation 146 (minimum age and recommendations),
Intemational Labor Organization Convention 155 and Recommendation |64 (occupational
safety and health), International Labor Organization Convention 159 (vocational
rehabilitation and employment), Interational Labor Organization Convention |77 (home
work), The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child under The Universal
Declaration of Human Rights, Prohibition of Using Child Labor (Order No. 81 of the State
Coundil) under The Labor Law of the People's Republic of China, Regulatory Standards
for Penalties Against the Employment of Child Labor (Ministry of Labor, MOF Document,
Laolizi(1992) 27), Regulations on the Special Protection of the Minority Workers and
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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The Company hires, manages and assigns employees in accordance with the requirements
under relevant laws and regulations, including the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC, the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, the Employment
Promotion Law of the PRC, the Implementation Regulations of the Labor Contract Law of
the PRC, the Special Rules on Labor Protection of Female Employees, and the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor to pay the salaries of employees at standards
higher than local minimum wages and complies with the provisions of the Labor Law
on working hours, overtime compensation and remuneration. We strictly prohibit the

recruitment of child labor.

The Company undertakes not to use any form of forced or involuntary labor and does
not require employees to pay a “deposit” or hand in identification documents at the

beginning of their employment.

The Company has appointed a senior management representative to be responsible for
the health and safety of all employees, and has formed the Safety Production Committee
which is responsible for ensuring and achieving safe production on the part of the
Company. The Company has established an occupational health and safety mechanism
to effectively identify sources of danger and to reduce and prevent potential threats
to employees' health and safety through hazard assessment, preventive measures and

emergency response mechanisms.

The Company is committed to providing a safe, clean, healthy and productive working
environment for all employees by providing drinking water, medical and sanitation facilities,
fire safety and proper ventilation conditions. The Company will also take necessary
measures on its own initiative to minimize possible hazards in the workplace when
possible in order to avoid work-related accidents and health hazards. The Company
regularly focuses on reviewing health and safety conditions in the workplace, canteens and

dormitories, and makes constant improvements based on issues identified.

The Company provides training for all employees on health and safety, energy
conservation, environmental protection and various management systems and standards. It

also provides induction training for new staff, and retraining for transferring staff.
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The Company has formed a trade union which helps its members to safeguard their
legitimate rights and interests, encourages regular communications between employees
and the Company, and assists with solving any special difficulties they have. The Company
respects the freedom of all employees to participate in the trade union, and collective

bargaining as well as their freedom of association.

The Company is strictly prohibited from engaging in or supporting matters based on
race, ethnicity, social hierarchy, nationality, religion, physical disability, gender, age, sexual
orientation, trade union membership or political discrimination in matters relating to the
appointment, remuneration, welfare, training opportunities, promotion, discipline, dismissal

or retirement.

The Company fully respects the personal religious beliefs and ethnic customs of
employees. We prohibit any personal discrimination and infringement of rights. The
Company does not interfere with the rights of employees to observe their religious beliefs

and customs.

The Company undertakes to respect and treat every employee impartially. It prohibits
compulsive, abusive or exploitative acts of intrusion in the form of gesture, language and
physical contact. The Company also prohibits the engagement or support of corporal

punishment, mental or physical persecution and verbal humiliation.

The Company actively takes measures against extortion and bribery or any form of

corruption, advocates fair and orderly competition and prohibits unfair competition.

In assessing and shortlisting suppliers, the Company considers the ability of suppliers to
meet the requirements of this policy and prioritizes them on the basis of their ability to

meet the requirements.
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If necessary, the Company may provide information and communicate with stakeholders
on, including but not limited to, the results of its management reviews and audits.
The Company may provide stakeholders with reasonable information and access to
information for them to determine whether the Company fulfills its social responsibility
and ethical commitments. If there is any doubt as to whether the Company fulfills its
obligation on social responsibility and ethical commitments, the Company will conduct
timely investigations before handling and responding to related enquiries. If any employee
presents a question as to whether the Company complies with the requirements of those
provisions, the Company will not penalize, dismiss or discriminate against the employee
for it. If any violation of corporate social responsibility and ethical commitments is found,
the Company will take appropriate remedial measures and correctible actions against in

accordance with the severity of its nature.

The Company engages third parties to conduct annual tracking and auditing of the
relevant management system to ensure that it complies with relevant management
system requirements and standards. In recent years, the Company has also received more
surveys on the environment, safety and health, carbon emissions, conflict minerals from
key customers, to which the Company has given positive feedback. During the Reporting
Period, the Company has not received any complaints and penalties from government,

third parties and customers in these respects.

DEVOTION TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company persists in operating its business in an environmentally responsible manner
and adheres to the concept of sustainable development by taking various measures to
reduce the environmental impact arising from its production and business activities with
an aim of achieving harmonious coexistence with the society, the environment and its
stakeholders. The concept of innovation and environmental consciousness have also been
infilttrated into our entire product life cycle and all business processes from research and
development, production, logistics to customer service. We spare no effort in reducing

energy consumption, resource consumption and carbon dioxide emissions.

The Company has been monitoring and managing our emissions for many years. In recent
years, we have also begun to monitor greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption.
We hope to strike a balance between business growth and environmental protection by
improving our business operations and practice, and encouraging employees to work in an

environmentally responsible manner in the workplace.
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The Company complies with the EU RoHS and China RoHS-related Directive. We
conduct comprehensive management of hazardous substances from product design,
procurement, production to delivery, to avoid the use of prohibited substances, and
to ensure that the volume of restricted substances is within relevant restricted ranges.
The Company also provides declarations of hazardous substances and the content
of substances for customers that require them. Where necessary, the Company may
also provide inspection reports from third parties on the composition of substances to

customers as required.

The Company complies with the EU WEEE Directive and adopts ecological product
design with full consideration of recyclability of products, generalized design and the most
economical design principle, to satisfy the recovery rate and the recycling rate of products

and to minimize the environmental impact on the product life cycle from the source.

In general, the Company's production process and business nature enable low-emission,
low-energy consumption and low pollutant generation. We are committed to operating
our entire business in compliance with relevant environmental protection laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not violate any relevant

environmental regulations and was not subject to any related penalty either.

EMISSIONS

The Company focuses on the waste management arising from its operating process.

The Company mainly adopts mechanical processing, assembly and testing for its
production and does not discharge industrial wastewater. The Company's domestic
wastewater mainly comes from the drainage of office washrooms and water from
its kitchen. There is no discharge of toxic, hazardous or special substances. For oily
wastewater produced from cleaning canteen kitchens, solid waste is first filtered through
cleaning tank filters. Preliminary fittered kitchen wastewater will flow towards a three-stage
grease trap, where major pollutants are removed during grease treatment before being
discharged into the municipal sewage pipe network. Toilet sewage will go through septic
tank treatment in the industrial area, and will be discharged through the local municipal

sewage pipe network.
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Industrial air emissions arising from the production process of the Company mainly come
from residual lead-free solder exhaust, which is collected from exhaust gas collection
devices installed in the workshops and led to the top floor of the workshops through
pipelines to achieve high-altitude emissions. Meanwhile, we continue to improve the
ventilation of our workshops. The emission of exhaust gases after treatment meet the
"“Air Pollutant Emission Limit" standards and produces little impact on the surrounding

environment.

The noise sources of the Company include certain production equipment, such as the
CNC punch press, stamping equipment, die-casting equipment, air conditioning units, air
compressors, cooling towers, fans, pumps and other ancillary power equipment. With
machine layout of the workshops and routine regular equipment maintenance, the noise
generated in the production process meets the “Standard of Boundary Noise of Industrial

Enterprise” and has limited impact on the surrounding environment.

The solid waste produced by the Company includes general industrial solid waste,
domestic waste and a small amount of hazardous waste. Among these, the general
industrial solid waste mainly comprises of production packaging materials, metal scrap,
lead-free slag and plastic scrap, which are sold to relevant extemal parties after collection
by category, for recycling treatment. Domestic waste is handled by environmental and
health departments after collection by category. Residual hazardous waste produced
during the production process mainly comprises of oily rags, oily gloves and waste oil,
the volume of which falls below the minimum requirements for transport, and so they
are regularly delivered to external parties with relevant qualifications in hazardous waste

disposal for collective treatment.

In addition, through continuous improvement of our production process, including the
gradual shift to semi-automatic or fully automated production methods, the Company
strives to enhance production capacity and reduce labor input to increase production
efficiency, while improving staff training and management to improve operating
performance, consummating and standardizing the management system of the Company,
vigorously promoting clean production, and actively pursuing energy-saving measures by
using environmentally friendly materials and improving the utilization of raw materials.
We always use recyclable packaging materials (consumed total of 1,709 tons in 2018) to

reduce pollutant emissions and achieve advanced circular economic standard.
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The Company's statistics on waste in 2018 are as follows:
. Industrial wastewater: none.

Domestic sewage: 140,594.00 tons discharged through the local municipal sewage
pipe network. The domestic sewage declined due to the decrease of personnel
in 2018 as compared with 2017, which affected the water consumption of staff

dormitories, offices and canteens.

2. Lead-free solder exhaust: traces in compliance with regional environmental standard

and without significant environmental impact.
3. Factory noise: in compliance with regional environmental standards.

4, General solid waste (recyclable): 69.03 tons, less than that in 2017. The amount
of general solid waste (recyclable) declined as compared with 2017, due to the
decrease in consumption of packaging materials in 2018 and the increasing effort in

recycling.

5. Household waste: 348.20 tons, less than that in 2017, the domestic sewage
declined as compared with 2017 due to the decrease of personnel in 2018 as

compared with the last year.

6. Hazardous waste: 1.12 tons. The amount of hazardous waste declined due to the

decrease of output in 2018 as compared with the last year.

The Company's total greenhouse gas emissions in 2018 were equivalent to 9,737.85 tons
of carbon emissions (carbon dioxide (CO2) equivalent), equivalent to 2.02 kg/working
hours. The Company consumed total electricity of 10,242,419.00 KWh in 2018, which was
equivalent to approximately 9,405.61 tons of indirect carbon emissions (carbon dioxide
(CO2) equivalent), and 1.95 kg/working hour (total working hours in 2018: 4,825,369.50);
49,617.56 liters of liquefied gas, 48,271.56 liters of gasoline and 107,078.96 liters of diesel,
which were equivalent to 332.24 tons of direct carbon emissions (carbon dioxide (CO2)
equivalent), and 0.07 kg/working hour. The total direct or indirect carbon emissions and

the emissions per working hour have both declined as compared with those in 2017.

(Note: Total working hours in 2018: 4,825,369.50)
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USE OF RESOURCES: ENERGY, WATER AND OTHER RAW MATERIALS

The main raw materials consumed in the Company's production are aluminum, copper,
steel, plastic, PCB boards and others. At the product level, we focus on the efficient use of
resources. In the product development stage, we conduct rigorous design and assessment
to assure product features and performance while using a variety of materials in the most
frugal manner by the use of environmentally friendly and recyclable or reusable materials.
This not only ensures that costs can be controlled, but also reduces the consumption of
resources. We promote clean production and strengthen equipment maintenance while

improving energy efficiency.

In our daily office operations, we advocate the concept of energy-saving. Through regular
self-examinations, inspection and reporting, we enhance the awareness and capability
of our staff in energy-saving and reducing emissions. We advocate a paperless office
to reduce the use of paper, and always reuse recyclable wastepaper such as paper for

printing and copying.

The Company attaches great importance to electric energy conservation, and puts great
effort into the promotion of environmental protection and energy conservation policies
and measures implemented. For example, we make full use of natural light when the
weather is bright. We always choose energy-saving products when purchasing lamps
and electrical appliances. We switch off idle lights, computers and electrical appliances. In
summer, our air conditioning is generally set at room temperature of above 26 degrees.
We conduct timely maintenance of air conditioners to ensure their good operation. We
encourage the use of telephone and video conferencing systems to reduce business travel.
We also post some energy-saving tips on our intranet to remind employees to practice

energy-saving ideas.

In terms of water saving, water in the Company comes from the city water supply
system. It is mainly used as domestic water in our offices. Our production process does
not involve industrial water and therefore does not have a serious adverse impact on
rivers, lakes and underground water. We develop and refine water-saving management
system with the use of a water saving faucet, to ensure that the concept of water-saving is

implemented in practice.
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Achieving the efficient use of resources not only requires a sound management system, BRERER TEZFETSNEREGE
and implementation of relevant policies, but also the cooperation and support of staff. HRARENEEEARNEINEAMX
The Company strives to create a corporate culture that treasures resources, enhances o ARAE N ELBERNEEL
employee awareness of environmental issues, and encourages employees to actively REETINRREH  HEE THEGIEM
participate in environmental protection and fulfill our environmental commitments. BEBIRREG ©

The major energy and resources consumed by the Company are electricity, water, paper, AREHREENETERRNERAE N
natural gas, gasoline and diesel. The following table shows the use of energy resources for K ok RARMAMER - TRITR

2018 and 2017:

Energy Consumption

2018

2018 FEFI2017 FERIBE

2018 F 201

Total Consumption

Consumption

per working hour  Total Consumption

REIRERIER

2017

¥
Consumption

per working hour

RERHE HERE EUTIREEE HERE EBUIRERE
Electricity (KWh) 1024241929 2.1226/working hour 12,724337.67  2.2143/working hour
E(THE) 21226/ IH 22143/ Ik
Water (Tons) 25671154 0.053/working hour 22436562 0.039/working hour
7K (W) 0053,/ Ik 0039/ T
Paper (Sheets) 6,273919.93  1.3002/working hour 4295,101.24  0.7475/working hour
(%) 13002,/ TF 07475/ 16%
Canteen liquefied gas (Litres) 4961756  0.0103/working hour 64,650.00 001 13/working hour
RERILR() 00103,/ TH 00113/ TH
Motor gasoline (Litres) 4827156 001/working hour 5437597  0.0095/working hour
B () 001 /TH 0.0095,/ T
Motor and power generator diesel (Litres) 10707896  0.031/working hour 32158447  0.056/working hour
ERREEHAA () 0031 /T 0.056,/ T
Among which, Hep e
I. The total consumption of water in 2018 increased over that in 2017, mainly due to: |~ KEI20I18FEEFAEE017FEAR
1) a newly-built salt spray laboratory in Xi'an Company; 2) newly built RF assembly Frigon: FZRA: | )L AR
workshops and fiber reinforced plastic workshops in Jfan Company, leading to the HBEERE )T ARFIEs A

increase in water consumption;

2. The total consumption of papers in 2018 increased over that in 2017, mainly due 2

to: newly-increased printers for the product lines of J'an Company, for printing the

product packaging specifications;

EEBMEEMER - SRAKEE

o

BRI
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3. The total consumption of motor diesel in 2018 declined as compared with 2017,
mainly due to: the fact that Shenzhen Company scrapped two vehicles, resulting in

a decrease in motor diesel consumption;

4. The consumption of water and paper per working hour in 2018 also increased over
that in 2017, mainly due to: I) the increase in total consumption arising from the
aforesaid reasons; 2) total working hours (4,825,369.50) in 2018 declined by 16%
as compared with the total working hours (5,746,201.00) in 2017.

Type %5l

RF (PCS) STER (1)

Antenna (PCS) REg (1)

Microcell antenna (PCS) PRI RR (1)
Integrated aesthetic antennas (PCS) —BEERE(HF)
Cable (M) BECK)

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Based on the nature of the Company's main business, our business activities will not have
a significant impact on the environment and natural resources. However, the Company
will continue to enhance environmental protection to reduce any adverse effects on the

environment brought about by our business operations.
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According to the environmental laws, regulations and relevant policies of the PRC,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Environment Protection Tax Law of People's Republic of China, Law of the People's
Republic of China on Water Pollution Prevention and Control, Law of the People's
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Law of the
People's Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution, Law of the
People's Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes and the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China,
when carrying out project construction, the Company will assess the potential pollution
arising during the construction and production process, the feasibility of governance
measures, whether production processes and products are in line with clean production
requirements, and the impact of the actual discharge of pollutants on surrounding
environment. An Environmental Impact Assessment Report (“EIA Report”) will be
submitted to the environmental protection department in accordance with the laws and

regulations.

CONFLICT MINERALS

Since the late 1990s, most of the minerals mining in the Democratic Republic of the
Congo and its neighboring countries and territories has contributed to local armed
conflicts, leading to long-term instability in the region and creating serious human rights
and environmental problems. In 2012, the US Securities and Exchange Commission has
required all securities issuers whose production processes involve the use of four types of
minerals, namely tantalum, tin, tungsten and gold, to disclose their mineral sources. These
four types of conflict minerals are widely used in the information and communications
technology products manufacturing industry. The Company takes the initiative to refrain
from using minerals from conflict-affected and other high-risk areas and conducts surveys
on conflict minerals every year in cooperation with clients. The Company has signed
Conflict Minerals Agreements with a total of 231 related suppliers in 2018, and has

undertaken not to procure and use metal minerals from conflict-affected or high-risk areas.
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ESTABLISHMENT OF A TEAM OF EXCELLENCE

The Company is committed to creating a good working environment for its employees.
We attach great importance to the value of talents, carry out selection of high-quality
talent and make good use of their talents. We mainly recruit through on-campus and
general recruitment. Our recruitment procedure is open, fair and reasonable. The
Company has established a series of standardized human resources recruitment and
training programmes and systems, which have been strictly implemented. In 2016, the
Company set up the MOBI Academy to provide educational training and training functions
for all levels of the Company, providing valuable seminars to support and strengthen
the knowledge and skills of employees for the benefit of their career development and
promotion. The Company provides competitive remuneration and its working hours
policy complies with relevant national policies and regulations. We also provide various
types of paid leave, as required by the government, and do not allow any inequality or

discrimination in respect of job opportunities and other aspects.
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STAFF EMPLOYMENT

Employment Chart:

EE BN — Employment Situation

8 A\ — Total Number of Employees
S A —No. of Male

201 AE—No. of Female

Age Distribution Chart:

8 T & D #— Age Distribution of Employees
30 5% M LA R — Age 30 and below
31-40 55— Age 31-40

41-50 55— Age 41-50

51-60 55— Age 51-60

61 M BA_E— Age 61 and above

Education Structure Chart:

8 T2 7 #fi— Education Structure of Employees
#H J LA — Junior high school and below
=/ H E— High school or

technical secondary school
RE— College
ZNE}— Bachelor's degree
W74 K JA_E— Master's degree and above
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company established an occupational health and safety management system which
was recognized by the OHSASI8001. The day-to-day operation of the Company follows
national laws and regulations, including the Production Safety Law of the People's Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Treatment of Infectious Diseases, the Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances, the Regulations on Safety
Supervision of Special Equipment, the Regulation on Work Safety Permits, the Measures
for the Administration of Registration of Hazardous Chemicals and the Measures for
the Administration of Occupational Health Examination, and its health and safety policy
and regulations to ensure a safe and healthy working environment and to protect the
physical and mental health and safety of our employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Company did not receive any report on the violation of laws and regulations related to

health and safety in workplaces.

Staff health examination: The Company provides staff health examinations on an
annual basis. Funded by the Company, all staff are entitled to physical health checks
at medical institutions where medical reports as well as health advices will be

provided.

2. Occupational disease inspections: The Company conducts occupational disease
inspections on annual basis for employees identified with potential exposure to
minimize the risks. In 2018, a total of 348 employees have been arranged for

occupational disease inspections.

3. Work injury data: In 2018, zero work-related fatalities, one minor work-related

injury with a loss of 360 working hours were recorded.

4. Health and safety manual: The Company has provided a health and safety pocket
manual for every employee to enable employees systematically understand the
Company's health and safety concepts, strategies, measures and safety guidelines.
Through illustrations and descriptions, employees can have better understanding of
the right and wrong for risk prevention, and can therefore reduce the occurrence

of health and safety accidents.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Company's MOBI Academy has a wealth of courses, including on corporate culture
and rules and regulations, new employee induction training courses, staff basic skills
training, on-the-job knowledge training, management skills and leadership, and other
aspects. The course lecturers include the Company's in-house instructors and external
lecturers from external schools and training institutions. In 2018, the Company completed
a total of 101,865 hours of training, with a total of 14,960 attendants, representing an

average of 6.8 training hours per person.

The Company has also cooperated with a number of tertiary institutions. Through the
provision of pre-courses to send students to the Company as intems, we hope to alleviate
the disconnection between school learning and the actual needs of enterprises with

common training of practical talents.

The Company has established an intemal platform for career development and promotion
in operations, technology and management. Through a well-functioning mechanism,
employees are encouraged to exert their talents, expand their horizons and maintain
their vitality, ensuring that the development of our employees synchronizes with the

development of the Company.

I. Aseries of training activities

(1) Induction training of new employees:
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(2)  Future star training: (2 XRRZEFZI:

(3)  Elite training class: (3) HHEEIM :

(4)  Firedrills: (4 HBEE :

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}
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(5)  “Hawk” training camp for 2018 graduates: (5) ARBEER &K & :

(6)  1SO 45001 training activity: (6) 1SO 45001 3L HIEE :

E o

(8)  Proposal improvement, summarization and recognition event: (8) REXELERTEH:

p—

74 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

LABOR STANDARDS

The Company strictly abides by national laws and regulations, including the Labor Law of
the PRC, the Labor Contract Law of the PRC, the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, the
Employment Promotion Law of the PRC, the Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration
Law of the PRC, the Law on Safeguarding Women's Interests and Rights of the PRC, the
Law on the Protection of Minors of the PRC, the Implementation Regulation of the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC, the Special Rules on Labor Protection of Female Employees
of the PRC, the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor, the Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees, and the Provisions on Minimum Wages. We do not
employ child labor or use any forced labor in any of our businesses. In the recruitment of
employees, we will verify the age of candidates through an identity card verification system
to prevent noncompliance. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive
any reports of non-compliance. For details, please see “General Rules on Corporate Social

Responsibility of MOBI" above.

The Company provides five insurances (pension, medical, unemployment, work-related
injury and maternity) and one fund (housing provident fund) and other statutory social
welfare plans in accordance with national policies. When necessary, the Company will also

maintain corresponding commercial insurance for employees.

The Company strictly complies with national laws and regulations in providing various
types of paid holidays to ensure every employee have reasonable working hours and
holidays, including statutory holidays, marital leave, matemity leave, paid sick leave, etc,

and encourage employees to achieve a work-life balance.

STAFF ACTIVITIES: CULTURAL CAMPAIGNS AND RECREATIONAL
SPORTS

We pay great attention to humanistic care and team building. For many years, we continue
exploring new cultural and sports mechanisms for staff, and striving to assist employees
in achieving a work-life balance, improving the working and living conditions of staff and

enhancing their happiness and sense of belonging.
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()  Event for Dragon Boat Festival in 2018: () 2018mFEIES :

(2)  Tenth anniversary celebration of MOBI Xi'an in 2018: (2) 20I8ELAZ+BEFEA !

(3)  Tug-of-war of MOBI employees:

wtey o ST

o
&I
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(4)  MOBI gourmet festival: (4 EBLERHES:

(5) Interesting activity for matchmaking of MOBI employees: () EBLEIREBIKES :

(6)  Birthday party for MOBI employees: (6) ELBEI4XRE:

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}
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(7)  MOBI event for Christmas & New Year’s Day: (7)) EBLERETEED:

(9)  Reading activity of MOBI employees: (9) EBLEIEEEDH:
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RESPONSIBLE SUPPLY CHAIN AND PRODUCT LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Company is committed to promoting the integrity of business practices and positive
social responsibility, to guiding the suppliers’ code of conduct, and stipulating requirements
on corporate social responsibility of suppliers in relation to integrity, law-abiding, respect
for human rights, employment of labor, health and safety, environmental protection and
business ethics. We require each supplier to follow guidelines and the relevant laws and
regulations of their place of operation, especially key suppliers with long-term cooperation.
In 2018, we signed corporate social responsibility agreements with 231 suppliers with a
view to exerting influence on their environmental, social and governance requirements.

The types of agreements and undertakings signed are as follows:

“Agreement on Regulating Trading Environment and Behaviour”
“CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) Agreement”
“Supplier's Green Product (GP) Declaration”

Policy and Statement on Not Purchasing “Conflict Minerals”

PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Company emphasizes the management of product liability. During the product
research and development stage, we carry out stringent implementation of product
management, not only to identify product features and performance requirements, but
also to identify the demand in environment, safety, reliability and other aspects for the
products. We strictly adhere to the industry and international standards to meet customer
and legal requirements in all respects. During the production and delivery stage, in
accordance with the processes and standards developed by the Company, we carry out
product checks and tests at all stages from stocking, manufacturing to product delivery
to ensure the safety of products delivered. In 2018, the Company did not receive any
product returns due to product health and safety problems and customer satisfaction

reached 87.78%.
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The Company has implemented an intellectual property policy for many years. We have
documenting procedures and systems to regulate the management and operation of the
Company's intellectual property rights. As of the end of 2018, the Company had applied
for 586 patents, with 78 ones newly increased as compared with that at the end of 2017.
And 459 patents had been granted, with 35 ones newly increased as compared with that
at the end of 2017. No patent infringement incidents occurred in 2018. The Company
also established a product recall system, and there were no product recalls due to product
quality and safety issues in 2018. In accordance with customer requirements, the Company
will sign business framework agreements on mutual cooperation with its customers to
ensure that confidential information of both sides will not be disclosed. In 2018, the
Company did not receive any complaints or litigation caused by leakage of customer
information and confidential data. The Company has established a corresponding customer
complaint and handling procedure to regulate the follow-up of customer complaints and
product returns or exchange. In addition, the Company will maintain product liability

insurance for customers' products in response to their individual requirements.
COMPLIANCE IN OPERATION

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

[t is the basic principle of the Company to carry out operational compliance by abiding
by business ethics and observing the laws and regulations of China and other countries
where the Group operates. The Company is committed to ethical operations and legal
compliance in operations. We practice “zero tolerance” of any violation of laws and
regulations, and any breaches of business ethics. We carry out compliance in operations in
a proactive, effective and scientific manner, and are willing to work with global customers,

suppliers and other business partners to achieve sustainable development.

The business of the Company is mainly carried out by its subsidiaries in Mainland China,
and it is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The operations of the Company strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations of Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the
Reporting Period, there was no serious breach or non-compliance with relevant laws and

regulations.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company actively takes measures against extortion and bribery or any form of
corruption. It has a zero-tolerance policy for corruption, and strictly abides by relevant
local laws and regulations, including the Law of the People’s Republic of China Against
Unfair Competition, Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, etc. The Company
encourages all employees to report any case of corruption and has established a
formalized management system as well as developed a formalized process for the daily
business operations to prevent the occurrence of corruption. The Company has set up
an independent audit department to strengthen the regular review of the operations of
various centers and departments of the Company in order to detect any non-compliance
with the code of ethics. In addition, the Company engages independent auditors to
conduct accounting and auditing of the financial management system on an annual basis to
prevent financial risks. During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any

litigation in relation to corruption or bribery.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT AND CHARITY ACTIVITIES

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a company that values sustainable development, the Company has been committed
to contributing to the interests of the community, and spared no effort in creating more
value for the community, with a view to fulfilling corporate citizenship responsibilities. The
Company will more actively organize employees to participate in relevant charity and
donation activities, and encourage employees to create value for the community, thus

further enhancing our corporate image.

CHARITY ACTIVITIES
During the Reporting Period, the Company has actively participated in various charity
activities organized by Community Party Branch, such as Party Branch charity activities and

basketball games.
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Learning activities of MOBI Party members: . EBHESBEEE:

The Company actively participated in various Party building activities organized by RSNt EASNEEERTE
the community, including a three-day free Party building training organized by the RE=ZACESEMREZERED
Party committee of the community. BAEE o

2. Cross-country race event of the Party Branch of MOBI Xi'an Company: 2. EBHAZAREXHUHEETH
The Company actively participated in various Party building activities organized by BHR2NtEASHSEHERES
the community, including a one-day free race competition organized by the Party BRR-—AEESHEMEETHUTE
branch of the community. IR

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 65, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors and
the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief executive
officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director of
MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002.
Mr. Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian Infrastructure University (now
Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring in radio communication in August
1981. During the period from 1972 to September 1981, Mr. Hu worked in the hydraulic
transmission and control department of the Northwest Industrial University. Mr. Hu
then served as chief of the planning and supply department at Shenzhen Zhongxingxin
Tongxun Shebei Co,, Ltd. for the period from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Hu joined our Group in
August 1999. Mr. Hu was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from
June 2002 to June 2007 and the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong
Shebei Co,, Ltd. from March 2000 to September 2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi

Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Liao Dong, aged 48, Mr. Liao was appointed as an executive Director and chief
operating officer of the Company with effect from 26 March 2015, Mr. Liao graduated
from Chongging University with a doctoral degree in mechanical manufacturing and its
automation in 1999. Mr. Liao had worked at ZTE Kangxun Telecom Co,, Ltd. during the
period from July 1999 to February 2001 and at ZTE Corporation president” office during
the period from February 2001 to March 2003. Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.
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Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 56, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Qu was appointed a Director on |9 December 2002.
Mr. Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further obtained
the qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June 1993 to
April 2003, Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and auditing centre
and the deputy chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was appointed as the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. and since
September 2007, has been the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong
Shebei Co,, Ltd. Mr. Qu joined our Group in December 2002. He is a shareholder of
Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Chen Zhaojun, aged 42, Mr. Chen was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 26 July, 2016 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 13 July, 2018. Mr. Chen is the executive vice-president and
chief financial officer of the Company until I3, July 2018, and is responsible for the financial
management of MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree in
economics from Xiamen University in July 1999, and later obtained a master's degree in
economics from Xiamen University in July 2002. And later obtained a master's degree in
business administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2014.
Mr. Chen became a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
2015. Mr. Chen worked as Senior Project Manager in the Investment Department of ZTE
Corporation from 2003 to 2004. Mr. Chen has been a Certified Public Accountant in the
PRC since 2006. Mr. Chen joined the Group in July 2004.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 65, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed a
Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1976 majoring
in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business economics
at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at Universitat
Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research assistant in the
business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the period from March
1995 to September 1995, Mr. Li worked in Germany for Friatec Aktiengesellschaft, an
international manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to become the future managing
director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft,
an international machinery manufacturing enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of
the management board of KSB and then became the chief representative of its Beijing
Representative Office. During the period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of
regional director of Messer, an international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible
for its business development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits
of its joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northemn China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China Industrial
Gas Co, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System Co,, Ltd. Since
2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech Technology Co., Ltd, a
technical promotion service provider and sales service provider. Since 27 March 2011,
Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Zhong Biao Fang Yuan Anti-counterferting
Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Li has valuable experience in international corporate management

and enterprise resources planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Zhang Han, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq listed
company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit committee since
July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the accounting and financial
reporting processes as well as external and internal audit of the Company. Mr. Zhang
received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking University in 1985. He
later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe International Business School
in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic
Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the Manager in the securities department
of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co., Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the
deputy manager at the finance department of China National Technical Import & Export
Corporation, and also the general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory
Co, Ltd. from 1994 to 1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the
general manager, investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management
Co, Ltd, a fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co,, Ltd, a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great Wall
Fund Management Co,, Ltd, a fund management company in China, from 2004 to 2005.
Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd, a Chinese venture capital
firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due diligence work in respect
of the financial performance, management and corporate government quality of various
companies and conducting financial analysis of listed companies throughout his various

tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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Ge Xiaojing, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 3 August, 2018. She is a partner of SAIF Partners. Ms. Ge
joined SAIF Partners as vice-president in 2009 and became a partner in 2018. At SAIF
Partners, Ms. Ge has been responsible for investments in high-end smart manufacturing,
big data, energy, education, new media and other areas, and has also led the investments
in certain successful enterprises, including Orbbec(E Lt A % ), QKM(Z & B &) 1k ),
UniFortune Supply Chain(B & F 2 £ fE## ), SuperC Technology (& #1 % 5), Hujiang
Education(JE L #X B ), Xinzhi Digital Media (¥ 1 21 # Jand Annoroad Technology(%
F5EE ). In addition, Ms. Ge is currently a director of QKM (ZE£EBt), UniFortune
(B & F|'2), SuperC Technology (B #3%H Jand Xinzhi Digital Media (E7 A1Z{). From
2005 to 2009, Ms. Ge was the deputy general manager and financial controller of Mobi
Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd.(EELL REFEM ORI BR A &) Ms. Ge
has nearly 30 years of working experience in, among other things, corporate finance and
operation, international business development, project management and information
technology. Ms. Ge graduated from The George Washington University in 1994 with a
master degree. She obtained her master and bachelor degrees from Tsinghua University in

1986 and 1983, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shao Zhiguo, aged 55, was an executive Director of the Company from | April 2012
to 25 March 2015 and is the executive vice-president in research and development and
quality of the Company, MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Xian and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr.
Shao graduated from the Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now
Xidian University) with a bachelor degree in wireless equipment structure design in
1984. In 1998, Mr. Shao obtained a master degree in systematic engineering from Xian
Electronic Technology University. During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held
such positions as engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey
and Control Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and
development in the area of telecommunication measurement and control technology and
has received a second class award in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry
of Machine Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao is a senior member of the Chinese
Institute of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June
2007. Mr. Shao joined our Group in August 1999.

Kong Weitong, aged 55, is the executive vice-president of the Company, which
responsible for operation, manufacturing and supply chain. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor's
degree in economics from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked
at the China Aerospace Corporation from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and
audit, where he was appointed as an accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in
1999. Mr. Kong became a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified

Public Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined the Group in May 2002.

Chen Yang, aged 37, is the vice president of the Company, responsible for leading
businesses in the operator market in China. Mr. Chen Yang graduated from Xidian University
majoring in electronic information engineering, in 2003, with a Bachelor' s degree. He joined
the Group in 2003, and has successively acted as sales manager in provinces in China and

general manager in the intemational key account marketing region.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ye Rong, aged 39, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the research and development of RF products. Mr. Ye Rong graduated from
Xidian University in 2005 with a master of science degree in electromagnetic field and
microwave technology. He joined the Group in 2005 and successively held the posts of
electrical engineer, research and development project manager, division head and the

general manager of the radio-frequency product business division.

Wu Qian, aged 30, was appointed as chief financial officer of the Company with effect
from 13 July, 2018. Ms. Wu joined the Group in 2015 and successively held variously
positions, such as manager of investment and financing, manager of investor relationship,
head of securities and investment department, etc. From 2013 to 2015, she joined a joint
venture of the Shell Oil as a management trainee, responsible for matters relating to
supply chain. Ms. Wu obtained a bachelor's degree in management from School of Public
Affairs and another certificate in second major of finance from School of Economics,
Zhejiang University in July 201 1. She subsequently obtained her master's degree in science

from University College London in November 2012

Zhou Lingbo, aged 38, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of administration and personnel. Ms. Zhou Lingbo graduated from the
department of law of Nanjing University in 2004 with a LLB degree. She joined the Group
in 2004 and successively held the posts of director of the infrastructure office and director

of the president’s office.

Zeng Zhi, aged 37, is the vice president of the Company, responsible for leading
antenna product research and development businesses. Mr. Zeng graduated from the
School of Electronics and Information Engineering, Harbin Institute of Technology majoring
in communication and information system in 2006, with a Master of Engineering degree,
and from the Shenzhen Graduate School, Harbin Institute of Technology majoring in
communication and information system in 2015, with a Doctor of Engineering degree.
Mr. Zeng jointed the Company in 2006, and has successively acted as antenna engineer,
research and development project manager, department manager, technical director, and

general manager of the antenna business department.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lau Wing, aged 46, is our deputy financial officer, authorized representative and company
secretary. He is also the deputy financial officer of financial centre of MOBI Shenzhen.
He is responsible for our company secretarial, financial and accounting management and
internal audit affairs. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor's degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1996, and later obtained a master's degree in business
administration (financial service) in 2005. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lau has over |8 years of experience in finance,
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters. Mr. Lau had held senior financial

positions in several listed companies. Mr. Lau joined our Group in May 201 1.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16
December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on |7 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of antenna system,
base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage extension solution.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during

the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 10 to 34 of this annual report. This

discussion forms part of this report of the directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2018 and the state of affairs of

the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages | 17 to 224.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
29 May 2019.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a 5 years summary of the resufts and assets and liabilities of the Group

Report of the Directors

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the audited financial

EEEHRE

MBERHRE
TREAAEBBEDENBFRENEER
BEMABE REBRERREEGVHR

statements. XKoo
Year ended 3| December
BZNA3HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 2017 20164 20154 2014%F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT ARETRT ARBTIT AR®ETR

RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 1,257,215 1,422,441 1,459,704 1,585,788 | 648466
Profit(loss) before taxation BRI (E518) 10,021 (60980) 71956 98,560 107,497
Taxation IR 6,668 12,471 (6,107) (8,904) (9.921)
Profit(loss) for the year FARFE(ERE) 16,689 (48,509) 65,849 89,656 97576
Profit(loss) and the total ARAEE ARIGH 16,689 (48,509) 65,849 89,656 97,576

comprehensive income FEMBEER) &

(expenses) for the year e ONGE LS

attributable to owners

of the Company
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EBERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE 537,626 540,782 488,249 476,873 481,154
Current assets MENEE 1,764,814 1,807,204 1,702,773 1,769,030 1,904,525
Current liabilities mEBE (1,126,905 (1,157942) (859,794) (956909)  (1,253374)
Non-current liabilities EnRBEE (12,773) (12,797) (81,849) (84,493) (7.384)
Net assets BEFHE 1,162,762 1,177,247 1,249,379 1,204,501 1,124,921
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M¥E - BERZE
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year FN- AKENX  BERRENEZSHE

are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

On 13 January 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.00000| each of the
Company at price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant to the underwriting
agreement of the IPO of the Company. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on |
June 2010, a bonus issue of 72,446,099 shares of USD0.00000| each of the Company is
issued to the persons whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis of one share for every ten shares held

on | June 2010. These new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all aspect.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year

are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial statements, respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the share option scheme of the Company as set out on pages 97 to 100, no

equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to RMB494.0 million. This amount includes the Company's share premium account
of RMB434.7 million at 31 December 2018, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 82.2% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 26.4%.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than 17.3%.

The Directors' Interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the paragraph
headed "Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts” on

page 103 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Liao Dong

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian
Chen Zhaojun (Note )

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han
Ge Xiaojing (Note 2)

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr. Hu Xiang and Liao Dong, executive
Directors, will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 114, Ms. Ge Xiaojing, an independent non-executive Director

will retire from office and, being eligible has offered himself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board still considers

each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent from the Company.

(Note 1): On 13 July 2018, the board of directors approved the re-designation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun
from executive director to non-executive director with effect from 13 July 2018. On 21
March 2019, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun from non-

executive director

(Note 2):  On 3 August 2018, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Li Guinian from
independent non-executive director and approved the appointment of Ms. Ge Xiaojing as

independent non-executive director with effect from 3 August 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 83 to 90 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Except for Mr. Liao Dong, an executive Director, has entered into a service agreement
with our Company commencing from 26 March 2018 for a term of three years, and Mr.
Chen Zhaojun, a non-executive Director has entered into a service agreement with our
Company commencing from |7 July 2018 for a term of three years, each of the executive
Director and non-executive Director has entered into a service agreement with our

Company commencing from |7 December 2018 for a term of three years, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Han and Ms. Ge Xiaojing
has entered into a letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from |7 December 2018 and 3 August 2018 respectively (except for Ms.
Ge Xiaojing whose engagement with us commenced on | July 2007) and renewable by

mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in

relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage

for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors' duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME g g
Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 27 to the financial KRR BERESSFBANTBEREN T

statements. 27 °

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share option scheme during TREERARBREAEFANE

the year:
Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
£ FREEH  RA4EH  (ARW) T ENHATE ERiRd Rl FAEAR  FREROR
Directors:
g3
Hu Xiang 20150ptionA 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 450000 — — — 450,000
] DISFEREA
20150ptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 450,000 - - - 450,000
0I5 5ERMES
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 600000 - - - 600000
WVISFEREC
Lizo Dong 0130ption A 2312203 109 162015 -23.122023 300000 — — — 300000
ER DIFEREA
013CptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 23.122023 300000 — — — 300000
13FERED
0130ptionC 2312203 109 [4-2017 - 23.122023 400,000 - - - 400,000
VIFEREC
20150ptionA 2632015 147 142016 - 25-3.2025 510000 — — — 510000
DISFEREA
0150ptionB 2632005 147 142017 - 2532025 510,000 — — — 510000
I5FERED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 680000 - - - 680000
WISFEREC

EHBRERLA
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Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asatend
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
£ FREEH  RA4EH  (ARW) T ENHATE ERiRd R FREAR  FREAGE
ChenZhaojun ~ 20130ption A 23122013 109 162015-22.122023 300000 — — - 300000
RkE DI3EEREA
0130ptionB 23122013 109 142016 - 22122023 300000 — — — 300000
I35ERES
0130ptionC 2312203 109 142017 - 22122023 400,000 - - - 400,000
VIFEREC
2015C0ption A 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 330000 — — - 330000
DISFEREA
2015CptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 330000 — — - 330000
I5FERED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 440,000 - - - 440,000
WISFEREC
Qu Degian 0130ptionA 2312203 109 6201522122023 150000 - - - 150000
Ef% VIIFEREA
013C0ptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 22122023 150000 — — - 150000
I3FERES
0130ptionC 2312203 109 142017 - 22122023 200,000 — — — 200000
I13FEREC
2015C0ption A 2632015 147 142016 -253-2025 150000 — — - 150000
DISFEREA
2015CptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 150000 — — - 150000
I5FERED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 200,000 - - - 200000
WISFEREC
Sub-totat: 7300000 - - - 7300000
NGt

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
i FREER  R4E®  (AR®) q1TEHE ENHATE ERid FRi#  FREAE  FREAGRE
Other participants:
Hfpg8E
Participants 2005 Option 3182005 06655 3182006 - 3082015 — — — — —
puE 2005 FERfE
Participants 0130ptionA 2312203 109 [62015- 22122023 - - - - -
28% DI3EEREA
013CptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 22122023 — — — — -
I3RS
0130ptionC 2312203 109 142017 - 22122023 - - - - -
V3FEREC
Participants 20150ption A 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 - - - - -
baE DISFEREA
20150ptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 - - - - -
0I55ERiE
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 - - - - -
WISFEREC
Sub-total: — — — — —
NGt
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Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asatend
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
4 BRESN  RHEH  (ARM) qTEHE ENMATTE ERiRd Rl FREAR  ERHAGRE
Other employees:
K8
Employees 013CptionA 2312203 109 [62015- 22122023 8,135,000 — (1,350,000) - 6,785,000
& DIIFEREA
013CptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 22122023 8,699,000 — (1,350,000) — 7,343,000
13 ERED
0130ptionC 2312203 109 [42017-22.122023 12072000 - (1,800,000) — 10272,000
0I3FEREC
Employees 2015CptionA 2632015 147 142016 -25.3.2025 7137000 — (1,383,000) - 5754000
& ISFRREA
20150ptionB 2632015 147 1420172532025 7137000 - (1,383,000) - 5754000
0I5 5ERMES
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 -25.3.2025 9516000 - (1,844,000) — 7672000
2015 FERHEC
Sub-totat 52696000 — (9,110,000) — 43586000
it
Total: 59,996,000 — (9,110,000) — 50,886,000
a5t

The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which the HEEREETEHEA - RO NETY
options were exercised was HK$1.53. WHERISIETL -

.1 OO MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the chief
executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™) ) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positons which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code"), were as follows:

Report of the Directors
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EEHESRITBRAERRKRA - 1264
BROREFNEZRAXR
R20I18F12A31H EE  SRTHAER
HEENHBEARRRASIEBEERCE
ERBFRBEGRI(TERRRERAE
XVED) B - HERG REFREERE
BEERBEERFIEXVHETRESHEAM
SRR RBRAAER AR (BERE
ERLBEGROIE ESRAEE R TOR
B) RRBEEFRBEGRIEI2GELT
RARRFENECMANEZRAR -
BRELTETAESETEFI ST ES
AI([1R2E<P A ]) B g AR B KB A TR
mIOKEWT ¢

Ordinary shares of the Company: AREEER

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares and issued capital

Number of underlying shares HIEARAT

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares underlying shares R4 % 2RT

EEps BEME BHEE HERABE MEROEE BANEDL

Hu Xiang Personal 25,710,500 1,500,000 27,210,500 3.32%
A fEA Long Position Long Position Long Position
58 58 58

Liao Dong Personal 12,000,000 2,700,000 14,700,000 1.79%
BR fEA Long Position Long Position Long Position
&8 58 =8

Chen Zhaojun Personal 2,332,000 2,100,000 4,432,000 0.54%
BRIKE EPN Long Position Long Position Long Position
RE kB =9

Qu Degian Personal — 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.12%
JE1ER fEA Long Position Long Position

59

EHERAERRZSF

2018 £F 3§

=9}

101



102

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors interests in share options of the Company are set out in the

Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 3|
December 2018, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the Company
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ARRBRE

EERANRERERANESFBEENA
[ FERRE | — A o

B EXFTEEESN - 2018F 128318 K
NRAIEESRRITHRAEBERNRARHE
EMEEEZB(ERRAELFRAEBKIEXY
H)MkG - BEARMRELFTERBER
BEADIEIEHEXVEETRESH A
HEeARRARBRMOERSAE(BER
BESRBEGRIIZEIRAEENERK
KE)  HREEH KB EGIE 352 5B
BRAABFEZBLMANBRIAE -
SARREESFRIZB G AR A B R AT A3

L INA
AR °

FERERKLG  HEROZEFFREELH
BERXE

BAAREZRERITHASRM 722018
FI12A31 8 BRR(ARBEERSRITH
ABBRIN AR R RS RIBERND+#EE
BEELERAEKRIEXVBELREINH
ARAAABRBNREIAR @ AEFERAE
NABEEFRPERIENRRFEZE
offERRABDT -



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Ordinary shares of the Company: RAREBER

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares and issued capital

Name of Substantial Number of underlying shares HEERT

Shareholder Nature of Interest Number of shares underlying shares B4R =% ¢6)

IBREEH BEME RHABE HERGHE BERGBE  BRANEIH

Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 230,607,300 — 230,607,300 28.12%
Ho\dings Limited EnBBA Long Position Long Position
EERBRA =9} R

Morning Star Beneficial owner 80,265,994 — 80,265,994 9.79%
Resources Limited BB A Long Position Long Position
9= =3

Li Xiaoyong Beneficial owner 49,568,000 — 49,568,000 6.04%
FNE BEREAAN Long Position Long Position
=9 =9

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2018, Directors' interests in a major customer were as follows:

ZTE Corporation (“ZTE")

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian, Directors of the Company, are members of the 39

EERRG ZYREHNZERE

=
HEWISENANR EXEXFPHME

EENhHEEMT -

R EEA RO AR AR ([ EEE )

shareholders (“Beneficial Owners") of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Ltd. (“Fangyi”),

a substantial shareholder of the Company.

. The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 16.6% in

ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018,

through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd.

(“Shenzhen Weixiantong"). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49% shareholding interest

in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxin”), which in

turn had approximately 33.87% shareholding interest in ZTE.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian together held approximately 4.1% shareholding interests

in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect shareholding interests in

ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

EHERAERRZSF

2018 £F 3§

RRAREFRAMEESZ BERF]
ERBEFHEERER AR HE Dm
NEBRR(BEZHBADZKE °

HEWBFENAINBILFE B#&
BEANEBN R THEELBSE
BRABNFEYELER])MIERK-
BMEEBEASEREAZEPHEBAL
16.6% B IR o RIS mEEARYIT
hEFTEMREER AR P ER])
49% AR iE - A BN B A R BB A
#133.87% KRR HE ©
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As at 31 December 2018, Directors' interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd. (“Kang Cheng")

Kang Cheng is a supplier accounted for 3.0% purchases of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 5%

shareholder of Kang Cheng

Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their shareholding interests in

Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shenglongfeng”)

Hu Xiang, Director of the Company, has directly maintained approximately 2.0%
equity interest in Shenglongfeng, a supplier accounted for 0.08% purchases of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Shenglongfeng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 20%

shareholder of Shenglongfeng.

Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Shenglongfeng through their shareholding interests

in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxindi") which former name as
Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a
supplier accounted for 0.02% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen
Weixiantong was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen Weixiantong
owned 49% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn had a 70%

shareholding interest in Zhongxingxindi.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their shareholding

interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company's or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its connected entities had a material
interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are set out
in note 35 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares of the Company in
public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the minimum public float as set

out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports to the

Board of Directors.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company, who are of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards and legal requirements,

and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Hu Xiang
Chairman

26 March 2019

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development Co,, Ltd.
(the “"Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages |17 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS REESLER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most FARERZEEABRMNEEHET XA
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. HEAMERRPEEENSIE - RINE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial BB AUERREE N ESEELRANT
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a HRER  MAedtESEEERRER -

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

HEELER RARELRNMEEERERER

Valuation of inventories

FEfMGE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter  Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories included:

due to the use of judgment and estimates by the management

L ‘ . . Understanding how management estimates the allowance of obsolete and
in estimating the allowance for inventories.

slow-moving inventories items;

In determining the allowance of inventories, the management

considers the aging analysis, technology development of the . Obtaining the inventory aging analysis and checking its classification by age

. . . on a sampling basis, to related documents;
industry, net realisable value for obsolete and slow-moving

inventories that are no longer suitable for use in operation and . gz ating the reasonableness of the allowance of obsolete and/or slow-
subsequent sales or usage. moving inventories identified by the management with reference to the
aging analysis of inventories, market information, subsequent sales and

usage of inventories;

BARFELRERTABREZSTE  RRAREEE RMNABFERERRNEFEE:
it E R R E R A kbt o

T RSB B R E ST SRR
EETHEREN  SEEEEIENGERBAN
FREE  FEEA SERGENE R R RE
M HFRR 2R FE - . DEEBELRGENELSN  TEEH  BEOEEEERN
FRmENEE L SR ERENA B ;
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Key audit matters

HEERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMRECRNTEEERELER

Valuation of inventories (Contd)

FEMbEE)

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
inventory was RMB448,692,000, net of the write-down on
inventories of RMB70,462,000.

MGEETBHRRMTIOFMEE R2018F 12 A3
H ZEREEHSARKE4486920007T @ IR FE
HUR A R 70,462,000 7T °

Checking on correctness of the inventory aging analysis and subsequent

sales or usage of inventories on a sampling basis to related documents;

Checking on the net realisable value of inventories to the subsequent

selling prices on sampling basis;

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance estimation by
management by comparing historical allowance made to the actual selling

prices and actual loss incurred; and

Assessing the reasonableness of reversal of allowance for inventories
previously recognised by testing the receipts from sale of respective

inventories, on a sample basis.

UHEEEREFENKE DTN ERENEEHREXERRIA
RIS

NHBEEEREF R ERFERKEER

BALBERHEERNELRBREREENEL  FHEEE
EHBEA BRI R

DB AREE  UEARAALEFEMEIERINGTE
BEB NS ETAE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RARELRNAEEHERERSA

Estimated provision of expected credit losses for trade

receivables

B RYRRABEEBR 2 G RE

We identified the estimated provision of expected credit
losses for trade receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables to the Group's consolidated
financial position and the involvement of subjective
management judgment in evaluating the expected credit losses
("ECL") of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's net trade receivables
amounting to RMB529,664,000 which represented
approximately 23% of total assets of the Group. As disclosed in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in the current
year, the Group adopted Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 “Financial Instruments” (HKFRS 9) and recognised
an additional impairment of RMB4,189,000 as at | January
2018 in accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.

BN E 2R AR R EE 2 G EERE A
BREGEE  BERSEKEREAEEEAN
HRZ BEMARR 2 RARTEAEDE S LT
HESRERER (BN AER B REREER
41 -

R20I18F12A31 8 AEENEZFRIEFFER
AR 529,6640007T  (hASEREEMNA 23% © 40
RAMBREMTLMEE  RAFE - AKERHM
ERENBRELENEIR eI A (BBMBRE
EAFEIR)  WREBRAMBHRELENFEIRNBE
IR TER 20185 | A1 BEINREA R 4,189,000
5E o

Our procedures in relation to estimated provision of expected credit losses for

trade receivables included:

. Obtaining an understanding of key controls on management’s process in

estimating the loss allowance for trade receivables;

. Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made by the Group as at |
January 2018 on initial adoption of HKFRS 9;

. Testing the integrity of information used by management to develop the
provision matrix, including trade receivables ageing analysis as at | January
2018 and 31 December 2018, on a sample basis, by comparing individual
items in the analysis with the relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and

other supporting documents;

. Challenging management's basis and judgement in determining credit loss
allowance on trade receivables as at | January 2018 and 31 December
2018, including their identification of credit impaired trade receivables, the
reasonableness of management's grouping of the remaining trade debtors
into different categories in the provision matrix, and the basis of estimated
loss rates applied in each category in the provision matrix (with reference

to historical default rates and forward-looking information);
RMEBEZRUEREREEHRE RENEFEE
o TREEBMGIBEZRISRT ZERBEREN T RIEHIEE

o HEAKER208F A BERRMBE M BREEREIRR
fEH R FEHE B B 1R B A1
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B S

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RARELHNMEEERERER

Key audit matters

HEERER

Estimated provision of expected credit losses for trade
receivables (Cont d)
BERURRBMEEBR A REE)

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
in estimating the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables,
management uses provision matrix through groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss pattems after considering internal
credit ratings of trade debtors, ageing, repayment history and past
due status of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates
are based on the Group's historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. The loss allowance amounts
of the credit impaired trade receivables is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

As disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional amount of
RMB280,000 of impairment of trade receivables for the current
year and the Group's lifetime ECL on trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately RMB14,122,000.

WREMBREMT4TEE  CEEEHRIER
HRIEETR Rk ERRBASESREER
RafERE  EREARARRUEBERANTRE
PR AR R R B (LA B SRR T &
HEHEERESE - (A BREDNEASERER
RIEBFHANBATERENERNE  KE2EH
ANHTUBRKARE N ESNAEB A Y #F
RMATEMEER  RBAEENBEEORET - K&
ERAY  AEESENTHBETERENE T
ERAEMENNES - b REEREHREE
WERE SRR SERNFHEREESE - 58
REEZRUERNEERECENEREEREES
B RRRERERABAZHNEZETE > YEH KB
HARREESSE -

WERA M BRERM T THE  AEBFERNEINE
REFRUETRESTEAARE 2800007 UK
AEER2018F 12A3 BNE SRR FERE
HREEEEAHARE 14,122,000 °

Assessing the reasonableness of the allowance for expected credit loss
determined by management with reference to the trading relationship,
historical settlement pattern, subsequent settlement information and
financial position of the debtors;

Checking the accuracy of management's estimated provision of expected
credit losses for trade receivables under the provision matrix; and

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment assessment of trade
receivables in notes 2, 3 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEREL2ZEHME  BEAEEN  RESEEHNEKE
TP BRRREENRBEEERR BN EIMETHE |

BREERERBEBEERMLTE S REGEESREEBEZE#REDN
AR ]

G A B BIRRME « HisE3 KM R AR E B RN
(BRI REE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

]

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is

Wong Kit Sum.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2019

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeRaRkEMEEREERR

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

2018 2017
20184 2017
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FiE ARBTR ARETT
Revenue WA 5 1,257,215 1,422,441
Cost of sales HE R (999,187) (1,176,352)
Gross profit EM 258,028 246,089
Impairment losses, net of reversal WEEE - HRED 9 (280) (7927)
Other income and expenses H A R A% 6 41,073 32,374
Research and development costs W EE R AR (89,065) (106,747)
Administrative expenses TR (103,377) (18,111
Distribution and selling expenses D REERX (82,445) (91,707)
Finance costs BT RS RAR 7 (13,178) (14,568)
Share of results of associates Y NI (735) (383)
Profit (loss) before tax BRI (&) 10,021 (60,980)
Income tax credit PSR 8 6,668 12,471
Profit (loss) and the total comprehensive ERAREBARGENEERE
income (expense) for the year (BR)REZEWE(FX) AR
attributable to owners of the Company 9 16,689 (48,509)
Earnings (loss) per share BREAN(ER)
~ basic (RMB cents) —ER(ANRESD) 13 2.03 (592)
— diluted (RMB cents) - BE(ARED) 13 2.03 (592)
BLtERABRALA 117
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e FHIR R &R

At 31 December 2018
R2018% 12 A31 A

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETR ARBTFIT
Non-current Assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment W - RN 14 392,348 412,760
Deposits for purchase of plant and equipment BEMFELREEE RS 6,270 10,029
Prepaid lease payments BREERIE 15 26,091 26,758
Deferred tax assets REFTAEE 16 50,317 42,858
Intangible assets BV EE 17 61,310 46,352
Interests in associates REE AR ER 18 1,290 2,025
537,626 540,782

Current Assets REEE
Inventories "E 19 448,692 413,384
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A fE Ut BR 5K 20 843,665 1,030,477
Income tax recoverable BT AT 3,704 5553
Prepaid lease payments ANBEERIE 5 668 668
Pledged bank balances EHEMRITAER 21 171,744 166,658
Bank balances and cash RITEBRIIRS 21 296,341 190,464
1,764,814 1,807,204

Current Liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 RE MR ERK 2 907,142 868,300
Contract liabilities aEaE 23 22,939 —
Bank borrowings RITER 24 196,800 287464
Deferred income EEBA 25 24 1,452
Dividend payable FERTAR B — 726
1,126,905 1,157,942
Net Current Assets REEEFH 637,909 649,262
Total Assets less Current Liabilities REERRDEE 1,175,535 1,190,044

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FE AR R ;R

At 31 December 2018
#2018%F 12 A31H

2018 2017
20184 2017
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FiE ARBTR ARETT
Non-current Liability FRBER
Deferred income WA 25 12,773 12,797
12,773 12,797
Net Assets BEFH 1,162,762 1,177,247
Capital and Reserves MR AR
Share capital LR 26 6 6
Reserves 5 1,162,756 1177241
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARAER NEEER 1,162,762 1,177,247

The consolidated financial statements on pages |17 to 224 were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Xiang
ik
DIRECTOR
=%

ELERERLA

FBITE2LAEBNGEVBRREEESE
201943 A 26 BRLEFMIREETIZE - WHA

TESERREEF

Liao Dong

BX
DIRECTOR
ES
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERBEHEHR

For the year ended 3| December 2018

HZE2018F12 31 BILEE

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
expansion reserve reserve
Share Share fund fund Special (note 27) Retained
capital premium LERR EERH reserve  FERIERE earnings Total
Ra  BROEE -5 NEE BRRE  (WE27) REEA L h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETRT ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARBTR AR%T:R
(note b) (note a) (note a) (note c)
(H=ED) (H&Ea) (MzEa) (M&Ec)
At | January 2017 RI7F1A18 6 488,160 3034 63,744 2999 25761 665675 1249379
Exercise of share option e R 3266 — — — (808) — 2458
Recognition of equity-settled BRARREER
share-based payment AR AETEATH — — — — — 2,649 — 2,649
Loss and the total comprehensive FEFBREZAERN A
expense for the year — — — — — (48,509) (48,509)
Dividend recognised as distribution ERAE D IR AR 2
(note 12) (BE12) (28442) — — — — - (28442)
Shares repurchased (note 26) BRI (R 26) (288) — — — — — (288)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F124318 6 462,69 3034 63744 2999 27,602 617166 1177047
Adjustment (see note 2) PE(RHE2) — — — — — (3561) (3561)
At | January 2018 (restated) 201851 A1 BEE5]) 6 462,696 3034 63,744 2999 27602 613,605 1,173,686
Recognition of equity-settled BRNERGE
share-based payment IR R AEE 83 - - — — — 427 — 427
Profit and the total comprehensive EEFBERZANREE
income for the year — — — — — 16,689 16,689
Dividend recognised as distribution BREDRNRS
(note 12) (BE12) (27,675) — — — — — (27,675)
Shares repurchased (note 26) FERIRR(A (MizE26) (365) — — — — — (365)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%E12A31 8 6 434656 3034 63,744 2999 28029 630294 ,162,762

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes:

(®)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two
statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which
are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net profit after tax reported
in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis
are decided by their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base

of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share premium of the
Company may be applied for redemption or purchase of any shares of the Company, payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, payment of its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, dividends were

funded out of its share premium.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of Lt KT ORI A
fE 2 &) MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in connection
with the acquisition of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired pursuant to the group
restructuring completed on 19 December 2002, at which time the Company entered into an

equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in MOBI Shenzhen.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE
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Consdlidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBHERERR

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES g
Profit (loss) before tax BATAE (&18) 10,021 (60,980)
Adjustments for: FATIEBEELAE
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH 52,931 45,235
Finance costs BT RAR 13,178 14,568
Cash discount from suppliers upon settlement REERKBHERNHERSITN (5,896) (837)
Impairment loss, net of reversal HEEE - MEREE 280 7927
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 1,457 55,228
Share of results of associates il YNSIE i 735 383
Release of prepaid lease payments RN HERE 668 668
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payment RS EE RS
RERHOMR 427 2,649
Interest income from bank deposits RITEFFEHA (4,881) (3,702)
Government grants related to assets HEEMRBNBNEDS (1,452) (4,620)
(Gain) loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE R ER
(M) B8 (1,074) 138
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ~ KT ZE & EEATH
KEReRE 66,394 57,657
Increase in inventories FEEM (36,765) (128410)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables B 5 RE YRR A (3B ) 182,341 (94,486)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H At e 5 BR BRI A 44,384 190,772
Increase in contract liabilities BRAEEM 14,019 —
Cash generated from operations rEmEHRS: 270,373 25,533
Taxation receipt (paid) B (BER)THE 1,687 (8323)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES MELPELRTFE 272,060 17,210

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consdlidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEHERERR

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

2018 2017
2018 201745
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Placement of pledged bank balances FEEEMRITHER (303,880) (369,985)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  HFERRE (36,552) (55,990)
Development costs paid and capitalised BENRERMEERKA (24,077) (18,248)
Deposits paid for purchase of plant and equipment REERE LRE MRS (1,135) (5,553)
Withdrawal of pledged bank balances BB EARITER 298,794 327,939
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE - BFE RRENMERIE 28,394 9,399
Interest income from bank deposits RATEHRA B WA 4,881 3,702
Government grant related to assets HEERBNRAHEE — 2,400
Capital contribution to associates [IHEE A E A — (2,200)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REGBMARSFE (33,575) (108536)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HELH
Repayment of bank borrowings BRERITER (256,259) (253975)
Dividends paid ERRE (28,401) (28,486)
Interest paid BEAAFLE (13,178) (14,568)
Repurchase of shares 17 B el (365) (288)
New bank borrowings raised FTIBIRITIE 165,595 285,172
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of share options 1718 B A% #2517 A% {0 FT 1S 3U0E — 2,458
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHMAREFE (132,608) (9,687)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RekBReEBMFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS L) 105,877 (101,013)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT | JANUARY RIAIBNRERA2EEY 190,464 291477
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER, R 12 A3 BWHAL RELZEY
represented by bank balances and cash (AMRITHERRIRE) 296,341 190,464
BEL#*RERASF 123
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

GENERAL

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock Exchange™) on 17 December 2009. The address
of its registered office is Maples Corporate Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KYI-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is 7 Langshan First Road Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

also the functional currency of the Company and its principal subsidiaries.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first

time in the current year:

—REH
BEHERERAR(AAR])REH
SHRBEAMKINARERAF B
BAPR209F2AITRERERA
RGMBEBAB(BRM]) £ B
i % £ B #9443 Maples Corporate
Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KYI-1104,
Cayman Islands * HF 2 X MEH AH
BERE R TE LR ZERL—
BT o

ARAREFAR(AEENOER
EBREERBERGLERES A
FEG -

RAaPBRRAARETAREDZ
> ARBRRARAIREBRFAA
HIREEH

FERHIE RN BREER
((BERUBREEANDRER
B R AMERT A
FEERFERZHATEBUBRS
EARERMBREEWSTE
RAEE  AEEERRAAETES
AEAE((FEGMAE ) RMEN
THFABEBRBRELRREBY
BREEAERTA

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
BRI BREEREIR CRTH
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendments

BERMBImELERLSE 155
HK(FRIC)-Int 22

REEPEDOMBRARRERIER]

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

B (BRMBHERERES) —R2BF 2 INEZ S RIBNRE
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
BERMBREERE2R(EFTA) B X R FH 0 5E NG 8

Amendments to HKFRS 4
BEMBRELERNF 45 (BTX)
ImEMIA
Amendments to HKAS 28
BRGHERFE 285 (1BFT )
Amendments to HKAS 40
BRGIENE 405 (BRI AX) KRENMEEE

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
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As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
BRI IMEER 2014 F 2016 FERFEUENFD

Transfers of Investment Property



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year(Cont d)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS 15
superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS || Construction Contracts and the related

interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of initial application, |
January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained earnings (or other components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance
with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at | January
2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS [

Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue the following major sources which arise from

contracts with customers:

. manufacture and sale of antenna system and related products;

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}

2.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

BRI B RN BREER
([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)
FEERBERZHATEBUBERS
EURBBUBRELAETA ()
SR ES  RAFERBHFTER
FHREEREBEMHRE LR E
AR UAKEAFRERBEFREL
MBRBRMRAR, F bt S5
HEABLBBELBEATE -

EBUBHEEATISHREEFE
HIHA
AEEERAEEEREREBNE
FERAE 155 - BEMBRE L]
FISROAKBEBGTERE 185K
A BEGHENE I REEEOR
HERE -

AEECEPEAE BN BME L]
FI55 - MERERZEANNREE
ZREXNERBE0I8FEIAIHE
R BRERABBMNEMERERRY
REBBF P (SO EMARLS
WEm)ER - MLESFILLEER
BEAN - RIBE BB REERIE 1557
RBEKRY  AEBEEEERZE
AEBBNAE08FE I AIBH AT
KEEH - Bl BEFLREMKY
HREEAGHENE IBRUARSE
BEHENE I REEAOREER
BRANLBERATLLYE

ARBERANTRATFRAONER
LON

s HENHERREARLMEBE

o .
o

]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. FERFITEBUBHREED

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current AEERENER T BB B RS

year(Cont d) RAREBBUBREEMETR(E)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont d) BB BREERFISEREEFE
HRA (&)

. manufacture and sale of base station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystem and o BUERHERUEGIA([HIA]) T

related products; and

AR EEER R

+  manufacture and sale of coverage extension solution. o BUANHEBELEMRAR -
Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the accounting policies NE ERABMBREERSE IS
resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively. SMELNBNEERGTBENE

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

BIE R BIRPHEE S R MTRE 3 ER -

BABRAZENBEREERE 1557

ELNTENE
The following adjustment was made to the amounts recognised in the consolidated UTARENR2018F I AIBWEREH
statement of financial position as at | January 2018, Line items that were not BHRAKRAERZNSBAELOH

affected by the changes have not been included.

B HE2IIAXEHTENER -

Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously reported under HKFRS 15
at 31 December at | January
Note 2017 Reclassification 2018
REEBMHE
SRR 20176 HEERME 1558
12A31 B2® R2018F1A1H
PiaE HAREE EXiipa HAREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETT AR®T R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMENERR (a) 868,300 (8920) 859,380
Contract liabilities BHEE (a) — 8920 8,920

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year(Cont d)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Contd)

Note:

(3 As at | January 2018, receipt in advance from customers of approximate RMB8,920,000
in respect of manufacturing and sale of antenna system and related products, base station
RF subsystem and related products and coverage extension solution and related products

previously included in trade and other payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
current year for each of the line items affected. Line items that were not affected

by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

2. FERAFTEBUMBREER
([EEMBHREENDRESR
b (ICHENE )
FEERFERZHIBEBRBERSE
RARBEBUBRELENETR(E)
BB BHEEREISHREEF &
HIWRA (&)

WIsE

() M2018FIAIA  ZFFAZEZRE
MENRRNEEERHERRRR
RAABESR - b 58T R4 RAGE
ERALBEEERAERERERA
70 TR U B P RRIE 49 A R 58,920,000
TEERHEEENEE -

TRBMERE B IERELERSE IS
W AREBMN20I8F12A31 HHELR
EHBRARRERAFENGZEE
HREMEEARSREFE-BXY
EHENTE -BEZITXEYT
ZMIEE o

HEaNBRRENZE

Amounts without

application of

Note As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
AERBENH
HAER
s BEEW AR BISHNEHE
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT ARBFT
Current liabilities nEEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMENRR ©) 907,142 22,939 930,081
Contract liabilities aHaE ) 22939 (22,939) —
Note: MIEE -

(@) As at 31 December 2018, receipt in advance from customers of approximately
HK$22,939,000 in respect of manufacturing and sale of antenna system and related
products, base station RF subsystem and related products and coverage extension solution
and related products are classified as contract liabilities that would have been included in

trade and other payables without application of HKFRS [5.

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}

(a) M20I8F12A31 8 BEERHEEX
BEGREBER  EUFEFES
REAERUREBEEEHEA R LIEHA
EmE BRI E P IR 22,939,000
BTOBEATEERESMBRESE
AIF ISHMmE AR S REMERNK
BHWEHERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

AN ERMBHRELER

([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year(Cont d)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont d)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

FEERBERZHATEBUBERS
EARBERBUBREENBITR(E)
BBUBHEEREISHIEEFE?
HRA (&)

HrEEHERBRN A

Amounts without

application of

As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
RERE BT
wmEER
R BNE  BISHNEHE
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARET T ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER (note) (PfF&E)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K LAt e - R BRI 44,384 14019 58,403
Increase in contract liabilities BRBEEM 14019 (14,019) —

MisT : @EESEHIBEN2018F1 A1 H
MENGEEMBERRRAE - FER
WHisT2[ FE AT A F AT RIS B0 4R &
MR REENTE RE -

Note: Movements in working capital have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at | January 2018 as disclosed in ‘Impacts on opening
consolidated statement of financial position arising from the application of all new

standards’ in note 2.

Except for the above, the application of HKFRS |5 has no other significant impact Br Bt ESN  ERAEBMBRE LR
to the consolidated financial statements. FISKWBEREUBRKREELEHM

BAYE -

BBUBHEERAEIREMTA
REEE  AEECERAEEMBR
HEAEIFEMIANEMEBERS
EREAAENEEERIAR - BEH
BREEREIRH NEREENS
BAEBHNOBENGE DEREEN
BRREEER(BREEBR]) R3)
—REPEEIIAFHRTE

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for |) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3)

general hedge accounting.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year(Cont d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont d)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at | January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as
at | January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at | January 2018 are recognised in the opening

retained eamings without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}

2.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

FERHFIEBMBEHREER
([EEMBREEL RER
MBREENBITRE)
FEERHERZHITERUBERSE
RAREBBUBREEMETR(E)
EBBHEEREHEMBTIA ()
AEEERBEEAMBRELAE IR
FrEmBEL R EREEMBERE
HERFEoN - BIE20I18F I AIB(E
RIEMBE) MAKIERANTAREH
RS BERGEER(BERREER
BREABTHHE) BEXEHER
20184 | A1 B LR T AEMME
AER R0I7FI12A3IBHNEE
BEHER018FIAIBNEREENE
ERNPORERNTHER BUEE
SILLEE RS o

Al BEFLEBERRVERRBES
BEERNENFERIAE  BAX
STERENLEEREL L E -

EREBMBREERIE 9SS B
SEIBREBERHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (Contd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont d)

Summary of effects anising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial assets

subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, |

January 2018.

BRI B RN BREER
([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)
AEERHERCHTERMBERSE
EURBBUBRELAETA ()
BBYBEREREREINEHMTA (F)
BXERE BB ERE T AE
ERIZEME

TERAPRBEEAVBRSENE IR
KEBGTERNENRARESEHE
EEERTHEREENENERA
H(2018F 1 A1 B)MHERETE »

Amortised
cost (previously

classified as loans

Deferred tax

Note and receivables) assets  Retained eamings
B AR (SR
PRRERR
et BYESR)  EEHBAE RE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTL  ARETR
Closing balance at R2017F 12831 RWER
31 December 2017 - HKAS 39 GH-BAEIEAUEIN 1290923 42,858 617,166
Effect arising from initial application BREREBNBEREER
of HKFRS 9: FORELNTE:
Remeasurement EXtE
Impairment under ECL model BHEERE
BATBTHRE @ (4,189) 628 (3561)
Opening balance at | January 2018 R2I18F 1 A ANBNER 286,734 43,486 613,605

130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year (Contd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (Cont d)

Note (a):  Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL which uses a
lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. Except for those which had been determined
as credit impaired under HKAS 39, trade receivables have been assessed individually
with significant balances and the remaining balances are grouped based on the

Group's internal credit rating.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including other receivables, pledged
bank balances and bank balances, are assessed on |2-month ECL basis as there had

been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at | January 2018, credit loss allowance of approximately RMB4,189,000 and its
corresponding deferred tax effect have been recognised against retained earmnings.

The loss allowance is charged against the respective assets.

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

BRI B RN BREER
([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)
AEERHERCHTERMBERSE
EURBBUBRELAETA ()
BBYBEREREREINEHMTA (F)
BXERE BB ERE T AE
EHFEGE ()

Wik (o) * FRAR R BEASIASUE T MO

ASEERBEEMGREEREIR
WA ERBEEER - M
BESRUERERFEREREER
B - BRIRBEEE G EE9HRK
BEREEREMNZEFREN EF
BREHRNEHRERRERERF
b MB TERDREAEEANDE

Bt En -

AR B ERAREERRITEX
DRIB AN - R B SR AN 51 R O L A 5
BE(BREMBYIGRN - CHEMRT
R RBTHEB)NEREEBRE
128 ARMIEEEREAEFE -

R201BFIAIR FEBREFED
ABARE4189,000T R EBBETH
EXECHRARRERN - BEER
TERBEETMRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (Contd)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (Cont d)

All loss allowances representing trade receivables as at 31 December 2017

reconciled to the opening loss allowances as at | January 2018 are as follows:

BRI B RN BREER
([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)
AEERHERCHTERMBERSE
EURBBUBRELAETA ()
BBYBEREREREINEHMTA (F)
BXERE BB ERE T AE
EHFEGE ()

RI7E N AN BN ABEEE
(B1E SR 30) E 20185 | A |

BB IEERENERNT
Accounts
Receivables
FE W BR X
RMB’000
ARBTR
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318
~ HKAS 39 — BB G EAE 39 11,660
Amounts remeasured through opening retained eamings FREVRE BN ER G ENKIE 4,189
At | January 2018 20181 A 1R 15,849

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (Contd)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial position arising from the

application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position had to be restated. The following table

shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected. Line items

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

BRI B RN BREER
([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)
FEERBERZHATEBUBERS
EURBBUBRELAETA ()
FEFEFTE#T AT R R B AR & R
KELHF

AR EEAEE G HREE - B
FEMBIMRKRAES - TRETH
B-AXYERBRIANAE - HE

that were not affected by the changes have not been included. 2H AT e ERIEE -
31 December | January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
20175 20185
12A318 AAHMBHRE BAMBRSE IA1B
(&) ERUE 5% ERIFEIR (RE5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Non-current Asset ERBEE
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 42,858 628 43,486
Current Asset RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWAR R 1,030,477 — (4,189) 1,026,288
Current Liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E MR 868,300 (8,920) — 859,380
Contract liabilities BHAE — 8920 — 8,920
Capital and Reserves R K
Retained eamnings RE BN 617,166 — (3561) 613,605

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities under indirect method
for the year ended 31 December 2018, movements in working capital have been

computed based on opening consolidated statement of financial position as at | January

2018 as disclosed above.

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}

MisE : tiRIREZE T A2MEE2018F 12 A
BIHIEFEMEEFHELERENE
ME “EEEYHRE AR
BR20I8F | A | BRI HEGRE BB
MKRETHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 16
BRRBHREERE 165
HKFRS 17

BERMBRELERIE 175
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
EE(ERTBHERERES) REBE LT
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BEMBRELRIF 3R ETX)
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BERMBHRELEREIRUEFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

BRMBRELERE 0 REEGERFE 285 (EFIA)

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8
BERGEAE | FRBBGTENE R (BTAR)
Amendments to HKAS 19

BB EAE 19K (BFTAR)

Amendments to HKAS 28
BREGIERIE 285 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKFRSs

BEBMBHELER(EITR)

\ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 202 |

BRI B RN BREER
([BERUBREEANDRER
B mEEAMETT R (2)
BREMEERERZHETEBIER
EEAREBMBREESTA
AEEYERPEA TS EMAER
REBZHFBEARBREENRE
ERBEREEAETT A -

Leases'

HE'

Insurance Contracts’

RBRAK:

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
FrieHEEm T HEE L

Definition of a Business*

XGHER

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'
BEBAmEMRAENSITE!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture?
REEHREBENRHA LR HANEELEITA?
Definition of Material®
BERMESS
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement!
BE CHREEE
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
REE AR A EERNRIES
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'
BRMBREERA2015F 22017 FEANFENE

R2019 | A1 Bz & RABEEEEM
ER

2 REHETE R #lsk 2 R R iae) F B A
»

3 20214 1 B 1 B3z % FaH) & E B
E3

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd)

4 Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is

on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after | January 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS |7 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales
and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS
I5 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.

HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

EHBRERLA
2018 F

2.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

FERFI BB BREEA
([BERMBHREEARER
MR EERNBITRE)
EEMAENRERZHTEERBR
EEAREBUBHRELENBITE
(%)
4 HR020F 1 B I B2 B FABMEESF
EHRs 2 mmE R M ERA R
BENEER

5 R20205 | A1 Bz & RBEEEER
ER

B T 3CATit 2 3R] BB B 5 S B R
REBUBEREERET AN - AR
AEERE ERMARMHIEE
FHREEREBEMHREERE
AIARA R RA G BRI REK
EREATE -

EBUBHEERE 16 HHE
EEVBRELERNE 6K AZR HA

A AEBRANHER LS REE S
A—EFEEER - EEEHBREE
RIS 16 SR AEME - AR BB G E

AIE 17 E RAENRE -

BEEMBRELRE 16 KREAMBH
BERTHEFEHREYBERR
BRK Mo BEMBMEENF
R EERERARZREREY B

WMELNF SRAEAEREHEER
CEERHEANRNBEMNET - &
BUBREELE RN BERES
HREEEHNHATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Contd)

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease

payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.

For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash

flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related finance
lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these assets depending on whether the
Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which

the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Contd)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB9,278,000 as disclosed in note 28. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value

or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
RMB764,000 and refundable rental deposits received of RMB2,106,000 as rights
and liabilities under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the
right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be considered as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received

would be considered as advance lease payments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Contd)
The application of new requirements may result in changes in measurement,

presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

The directors of the Company expect that, such changes would increase the assets
and liabilities of the Group, but would not result in significant impact on the financial

performance of the Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36

Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level |,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions

of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets of
the associates other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the

date on which the investee becomes an associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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% wR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Investments in associates (Cont d)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest in an
associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that

the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS |5, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance

obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS I5 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

(Cont'd)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

All of the Group's revenue are recognised at a point in time and there is no
material difference on the timing or amounts of the Group's revenue recognition

under HKFRS 15 and HKAS 18.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue recognition (prior to | January 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar

allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Goods and interests
Revenue from the sale of goods including sales of antenna system, base station
RF subsystem and coverage extensive solution is recognised when the goods are

delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such construction in progress are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other

property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than
construction in progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the

effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building elements, the entire

property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Intangible assets

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities (or from
the development phase of an intemal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the

following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be

available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Intangible assets (Contd)

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible

asset during its development,

The amount initially recognised for intemally-generated intangible asset is the sum
of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interally-generated intangible assets are reported

at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Intangible assets (Contd)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (Contd)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since | January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont d)

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All of the Group's financial assets are measured at amortised cost.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting

period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 including trade receivables, other receivables,
pledged bank balances and bank balances. The amount of ECL is updated at each

reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the

current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and collectively

using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk

of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) (Cont d)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
eg. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) (Cont d)

()

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying

significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For intemal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) (Cont d)

(i)

()

Credit-impaired financial assets (Cont'd)

(d)  itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that

is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.
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Fe)

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

BB R M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) (Cont d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial

instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade receivables and
other receivables are each assessed as a separate group. Pledged bank
balances and bank balances are assessed for expected credit losses on

an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case

interest income s calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on [ January 2018)

All of the Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Cont d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of

HKFRS 9 on | January 2018) (Contd)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank balances
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

EHBRERLA
2018 F

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

FTESTHBER#E)

SRIEE)

EHEE(E)
EHBEEMSEREEER2018
FIRIAEFEEYNHEREERE
FA1)(8)
EXRERERAEEEXATEEN
HEVEERTSRENETESH
BE - RERERE  ERRERE
H(BEEHREMERERN - 2EE
RITHBARBITHEBRRIRE ) ABR
Pl R IR SR AR T AR ERT &

FMBWAZERFI R ERR - R
MU AR R (A SRR IL BN
B o

CHEERER2018F 1 A1 HEF
BB BIEERE I AT)
REZRBRAGEEHEERTHR
RETR - EEXBEBRRAGNE
REMEERBE—HERLEEN
BYEMEENMEITRRARRER
NFER  SREERARME -

RENTBERANRE

o BITARBFILBREAMBRE
£k

o EH MERSIEEMENF
BEARE &

o ERABAEHFREXVBEE
e

FURFASHNEBREZEINE
BRASBEBENRTER AERT
ENREZRFHEEROEFEN
AR B 51 3t 7 4 T AAOR o B B R R
ERRERERN I BRES -

155



156

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)
(Cont'd)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of retumn for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)
(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received

and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,

sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
All of the Group's financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and bank borrowings) are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share option scheme

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar

services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at the grant
date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on

assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.

The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained eamings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit/loss before tax as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Taxation (Cont'd)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle

its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are classified as
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

EHBRERLA
2018 F

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

TEETHEEE)

BERAE

W BESLEARBREE(RHEE
E-BERAIARTRERHES)
BEREHEERARTAZETEENK
K BEEZFEEANRAERTEBE
FHERAL -

FAEEMEERAGRESE HEER

Az 27
mIER o

BR#ES
BEERBBRAEEKETHBHMN
BEHIEKESEAHD R SRR
Bf#E o

RASERHDERANBENER
RAHERRAHE RA#YEE
AN BEEER - ARME T8
RESAKEARBE BRIAEM
HRAMBIRRBEENRTRHEERN
FRAEMBRABRAERBELR
A YREBEENAERFHRE
Ao hAEMEEERERES -

BRBECEENR B REMAE
MARER‘NGTEEHEREAR
SELHBRANERERGHEYE
RIEWER R B A B 2R TR o

RKBR KA

BIRE BRI BI (WD BRIE
HEEETED O ER - BB RB AR M
FEHET 1 BRI IR -

ERREMRAESRE

REER BN ZREBREARE R AR
BTN R RBAERE T AR
Re-MERHNRERANKHERSH
X EEHERMGRELNRER
EHAFFRBMFABERARIRRID -

161



162

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits (Cont d)
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by
the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
Any changes in the liabilities carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest
and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that

another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that may have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year.

Write-down on inventories

The Group writes down inventories based on an assessment of the net realisable
value of inventories. Allowance is applied to inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than the cost of
inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories requires the use of judgment
and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the inventories. The management
may consider the aging analysis, technology development of the industry, net
realisable value for obsolete and slow-moving inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in operation and subsequent sales or usage. Where the actual
outcome or expectation of the net realisable value of inventories is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-down on inventories in the period in which such estimate has changed.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December 2018 is RMB448,692,000, net
of write down of RMB70,462,000 (2017: RMB413,384,000, net of write down of
RMB69,005,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate the lifetime ECL for the trade
receivables through groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns
after considering internal credit ratings of trade debtors, ageing, repayment history
and past due status of respective trade receivables. The estimated loss rates are
based on the Group's historical default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and taking into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually. The loss allowance amounts
of the credit impaired trade receivables is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows with

the consideration of expected future credit losses.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the ECL is disclosed in note 31 and the detail of the Group's trade receivables is

disclosed in note 20.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM have been

aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Antenna system - manufacturing and sales of antenna system and related products

Base station RF subsystem - manufacturing and sales of base station RF subsystem

and related products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5.
The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:
(Cont'd)

Coverage extension solution - manufacturing and sales of a wide array of coverage

products

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

All of the Group's revenue are recognised at a point in time when the customers
obtained the control of the antenna system and related products, base station
RF subsystem and related products and coverage extension solution and related

products.

Information of segment revenues and segment results
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AEERBEBMBRELRERM
AEHRELIHMT
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Em
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SR ARRER - BUEH AT RSB N
BERNNBEEMRTRIEBEM
TR IR TR o

BRI BRARSBEENER
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Segment revenues 2 EBA

Antenna system PNE L 712,493 754,791

Base station RF subsystem EU ST 4 460,721 592,806

Coverage extension solution BERMAE 84,001 74,844

1,257,215 1,422,441

Timing of revenue recognition AT R Y B

A point in time A A By i B e R 1,257,215 1,422,441
Segment results DS

Antenna system PN L0 144,442 154,147

Base station RF subsystem EUSTRT R4 (729) (41,997)

Coverage extension solution BELHAR 25,250 27,192
Reconciliation of segment results to profit (loss) DEEEETAAE(BE)HER

before tax: 168,963 139,342
Impairment losses, net of reversal BEESE - NRED (280) (7.927)
Other income and expenses HA A R 41,073 32,374
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEERX (185,822) (209,818)
Finance costs B I (13,178) (14,568)
Share of results of associates - YNSIE | (735) (383)
Profit (loss) before tax R0 (&518) 10,021 (60,980)

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)

5. WMARDHBERE)

BRI BRARS BEEANER(H)

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Other segment information HitpHER
Depreciation: E
Antenna system PN L0 9,649 9477
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 6,239 7,443
Coverage extension solution BELHAR 1,138 940
Segment total (note) o B R (PHEE) 17,026 17,860
Unallocated amount PVl e 26,786 21,103
Group total SEA 43812 38963
Research and development costs: BRI
Antenna system NS0 45,656 55,406
Base station RF subsystem EU ST Z M 38,497 47,698
Coverage extension solution BELMAER 4912 3,643
Group total (note) S @ () 89,065 106,747
Amortisation B
Antenna system PN L 5,539 3517
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 3,580 2,755
Group total (note) SB @ () 9,119 6,272
Write-down on inventories FE WA
Base station RF subsystem RIS R ,457 55,228
Group total (note) SEEE (PH3E) 1,457 55,228

Note:  Amounts included in the measure of segment results.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)
Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external customers.

There are no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3. The Group does not allocate impairment
losses, net of reversal, other income and expenses, unallocated corporate expenses,
finance costs and share of results of associates to individual reportable segments
when making decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and
assessing their performance. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such information
is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and information about

products

Revenues from each group of similar products within the operating segments are as

5.

BARDBER(#)
EFENRERERER D

R B AR R LE m AR Bl R WA

follows: T
2018 2017
20184 2017 %
RMB'000 RMRB'000
ARBTR AREFIT
Segments |
Antenna system ARZG
Multi-band/Multi-system antennas L VESS PN 293,623 202,841
Low-band refarming/loT antennas BEBEH D RERE 143,399 235936
WCDMA/FDD-LTE single-band/ WCDMA/FDD-LTEE 8,/
multi-band antennas ZIRARER 128,126 118,094
TD-LTE/SCDMA antennas TD-LTE/SCDMA X 48 60,212 47202
Microwave antennas TR K45 22,164 21,374
CDMA/GSM antennas CDMA/GSM K48 15,113 34,270
AAU antennas AAU Z BB K 45 7,375 16,708
Other antennas Hib KR 42,481 78,366
712,493 754791
Base station RF subsystem B HF R4
WCDMAV/LTE RF devices WCDMA/LTE §f 3888 1 234,963 184,736
Low-band refarming/loT RF devices ESEE# W BT AR 1 106,141 203,404
TD/TD-LTE RF devices TD/TD-LTEFf #8231 62,050 79951
GSM RF devices GSM gT SRR 14 47,393 93,055
Other devices Hfth 28 1 10,174 31,660
460,721 592,806
Coverage extension solution BEEMLE
Aesthetic antennas E2 TN 69,635 70,821
Other products HoAh 2 14,366 4023
84,001 74,844
1,257,215 [ 422,441
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Information about major customers
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group are as follows:
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WARDBERE)
EHTXEEFMNEN
RERBBEEHAEERABER
R 0% EFPHRALT :

2018 2017

20185 20175

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBEFTT

Customer A EPA 332,245 655577

N/A?

Customer B? PR 290,773 TER?

Customer C! zEC 268,722 230,497
N/A3

Customer D? =ED? THEA? 236,795

Revenue from antenna system and base station RF subsystem.

Revenue from antenna system.

’ The revenue amount of the customers did not contribute over 0% of the total revenue of

the Group in the corresponding year.

Geographical information
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented

based on the location where the goods are delivered to:

RAXRBZG RIS BT RGO
N

2 KREKBREFHMBA -

’ REBFEEHASBRAREERAR
BIOXHELIRASEE -

HEER

ERAAREERGINIERPHBANER

TRBERXNEYMHNEZT

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

The PRC s 846,630 [,143,301

Overseas N
Other countries/areas in Asia DINEMBER & 188,583 93,079
Europe B 129,449 115,648
Americas EN 92,553 70413
Subtotal NE 410,585 279,140
1,257,215 1 422,441

All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are located in

the PRC.

EHBRERLA
2018 F

AEEMAFRRDEE(ELHBEE
BRIM IR E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

6. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES 6. HMWARREX
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Government grants BB
— related to expense items (note) —Hif < 18 B AR (P ) 8,407 9,157
— related to assets (note 25) —BEEEMRB(ME25) 1,452 4,620
Rental income HelA 8,770 8,859
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF M B WA 4,88l 3,702
Cash discount from suppliers upon settlement REZRREHERMNR ST 5,896 837
Gain (loss) on disposals of property, HEME - BE kR EH W (BE)
plant and equipment 1,074 (1,138)
Compensation income mERA = 4425
Net exchange gain B 3 W20 )5 58 9,970 —
Others Hity 623 1912
41,073 32,374
Note: The amounts represent incentives from various PRC government authorities in connection s ZEFRBEEFAPESBIKEBRZ
with the enterprise expansion support, technology advancement support and product BOERE BIMESRERFAEM
development support during the year, which had no conditions imposed by the respective BTHEE - S HETBBTHE
PRC government authorities. 2T o B2 B I 1 B A (5 4 o
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAEEAE
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Interest on bank borrowings RITETAE 13,178 14,568
1 70 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

TAXATION 8. WA
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T ARETT
Current Tax: BIEATRIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT") REREMER(TEEMAER]) 19 371
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH — 55
19 426
Under provision in prior year: FFEEEEIR:
BT TRMEH 144 —
Deferred tax (note |6) RIERIE (MEE 16) (6,831) (12,897)
(6,668) (12471)
Hong Kong b

The applicable tax rate of the Company and MOBI Technology (Hong Kong)
Limited (“MOBI HK") is 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been recognised as the Group had no

assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the current year.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}

RARARBEEMR(FR)ERAA
(TELLEE ) ME R R

HRERRE A 16.5% o

AEEASEYEEREELTME
RMAME - WL ERFEMN GRS

B
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TAXATION (Contd)

The PRC

In September 2014, MOBI Shenzhen was defined by Shenzhen Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal
office of the State Administration of Taxation (the “Authorities”) as a High and
New Technology Enterprise and therefore was entitled to 5% preferential tax
rate from the EIT for three years starting from the year ended 31 December 2014,
according to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. On 31 October 2017, the
Authorities have further extended the preferential tax rate for another three years
starting from the year ended 3| December 2017. Accordingly, the tax rate for
MOBI Shenzhen is 15% for the years ended 3| December 2018 and 2017.

In December 2016, MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Xian") was
defined by Province Finance Bureau and Administrator of Local Taxation of
Municipality and Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation in Shaan
Xi, as a High and New Technology Enterprise and therefore was entitled to 5%
preferential tax rate from the EIT for three years starting from the year ended
31 December 2016, according to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law.
Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Xian is 15% for the years ended 3| December
2018 and 2017.

In November 2016, MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co., Ltd.
("MOBI Jian") was defined by Province Finance Bureau and Administrator of
Local Taxation of Municipality and Municipal office of the State Administration of
Taxation in Jiang Xi, as a High and New Technology Enterprise and therefore was
entitled to 5% preferential tax rate from the EIT for three years starting from the
year ended 31 December 2016, according to the New PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law. Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Jian is 15% for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries are 25 % for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: 25%).

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

BWIE(E)

FE

201459 A - BE LR I & R I8
BB~ RYIT 5 B R KR Y T E
ZEBRIERDRERSHEM
¥ FUrREFFECEMEH
FHEZE20M4FNA3BLEEER
ZER ISR EEREMMEEMRG
Bo M2I7FI0A3IB ERBHE
—HBEEREREZE2017F 1243
ALtFERBER=F FEilt - Bl
FIHREREZ 2018 F R 2017F 12
A3 BIEMEFEER15% °

R2016F 127 BHEHER(BER)ER
NE(EL AR ])BEREEE B
BRIP4 3t 75 B B I PR & B K A 75
BREF/BTRMEE - BT RE
P BEREREHEZEHE20I65F12
A3 BIEFER=ZFISHHERR
RYMPERGEH - At BAR
REZ2018F %2017F 128318 1
FREMNTER 5% °

R2016F 11 A - BHBEARMN(ER)
ERAB(TELER])EIRENK
B IAgANERRIAAEK
BRERREARIRMEE - Buta
BEFFECEMSTEEEE016
FI2A3BIEFER=FIAI5%MNE
BERMERMMEEMEN - Bt - Bt
HERREE20185F 2017512 A3
BIEMEFEAHER 5%

HEWISENAINRBILEE Hif
AR A AR A25%(2017
F 1 5%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (Contd)

The PRC (Cont'd)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to profit (loss) before tax per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

BiIE ()

HE (&)

FARBA ERARR R EM2EK
R HBR AT AR (B 18) SRR T

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBFT

Profit (loss) before tax BATAE (&18) 10,021 (60980)

Tax at EIT at 15% (2017: 15%) (note a) BEEMERTE 5%

(20174 : 15%) ;T B MFIB

(FizEa) 1,503 (9,147)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose NERIER EH S MR & 1,635 2438

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERBRANRGZE (382) (41

Tax effect of share of results of associates e AREENTBTE 168 82

Tax benefit (note b) B A (FiEEb) (10,724) (6,177)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBRBEENNETE 2,976 1,513

Effect of different tax rates of group entities SEERNTARENTE (1,988) (769)

Under provision in prior year FEEREIR 144 —

(6,668) (12,471)

Notes:

() Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of MOBI

Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian, the major subsidiaries of the Company.

(b) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, additional 75% (2017: 50%)
of the qualified research and development costs are allowed to claim as PRC income tax
credits. Such PRC income tax credits are accounted for deduction from current income tax

expenses when relevant conditions are fulfilled.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}

Wi

@  IS%MBRAEREEERRAEET
NAELRY - B ERREXAR
BIERFTS B

b) BEREABHERURER 4%
TRE B AR BB SN 75% (2017 5+ 50%)
AEFERAMEHER - ZEREAHN
BRIERPIEB G ERE AR
HEEMERAIRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

9.  PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting) the following

9. FENB(HH)
FEMBBR)ENBRGIA)ATE

items: B :
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Directors' remuneration (excluding equity-settled share EE B & (TR IENEREE
based payment) (note 10) PARR D BRI 30 (BTEE10) 3,084 5,430
Equity-settled share-based payment DA R B E AR 1 AT
(including for directors of the Company) HNR(BRARRES) 427 2,649
Other staff costs Hi B TR 257,235 311,869
Retirement benefits scheme contributions HAth 8 TRREF B4R
for other staff 30,843 29,993
291,589 349,941
Auditors' remuneration ZERE
— audit services — B IRT 2,551 2,551
— non-audit services —ERBRT — —
Operating lease rentals in respect of BEBRUTEENKEHER S
— rented premises —BEMME 6,937 9,505
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Mm% - BERERETE 43,812 38,963
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 9,119 6,272
Release of prepaid lease payments fRIRTEN B E A 668 668
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERARAXHTFERR 999,187 1,176,352
Write-down on inventories (included in cost of sales) 17 & R (FT A SHE AN 1,457 55,228
Net exchange (gain) loss B X (Y ) B 1BRE (9,970) 2425
(Gain) loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BE L&RED
plant and equipment (fezs) B8 (1,074) 1,138
Impairment losses, net of reversal, HEBE - MR
— trade receivables — B HRIERER 280 7927

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 10. EERFETHAEMS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERTETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and chief executive BEEAN EmEA LA TR TR
by the Group in connection with the management of the affairs of the company B AERREEARNREAERS
and the Group, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies BENSENREERTETHRAES
Ordinance are as follows: NS T -
2018
018%
Other
emoluments Equity-
Retirement (mainly basic settled
benefits salariesand  share-based
scheme allowances) payment
contributions Httie IAERLE
Fees RIKER Bonus (XBEHE NRB A Total
g EHR RE EHFRER) ERNOR #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR%®TR AR¥TR ARBTR ARET:R
Executive directors HITES
Hu Xiang (note a) A () 88 — 292 693 21 1,094
Liao Dong BR 70 19 268 699 24 1,080
Chen Zhaojun (note b) ~ FRIKZE (FffsEb) 41 10 — 379 16 446
Non-executive directors FHTES
Qu Degian EEE 85 = = = 7 92
Chen Zhaojun (note b) ~ BRJKZE (Fiiztb) 29 — — — — 29
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Li Tianshu FRAF 158 — — — — 158
Zhang Han 5RO 135 — — — — 135
Ge Xiaojing (note c) ErE (o) 50 = = = = 50
Li Guinian (note c) ZRE(MEC 68 = = = = 68
724 29 560 1,771 68 3,152

EHERAERRZSF

2018 £F 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

[0. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

10. EERFETBRAEME (@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont d) BEERTETHAEME(E)
2017
2017%
Other
emoluments Equity-
Retirement (mainly basic settled
benefits salariesand  share-based
scheme allowances) payment
contributions Hife AgERgE
Fees RIKEER Borus  (FEEH R A Total
e B ®#e EFREH) ARONR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
Executive directors BTEE
Hu Xiang (note a) A (Pt a) 87 — 1,084 657 109 1937
Liao Dong BR 69 21 955 633 135 1813
Chen Zhaojun (note b)  FRIKZE (FizEb) 69 20 725 609 91 1,514
Non-executive director FHTES
Qu Degian [EiEE 86 — — — 9 128
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Li Tianshu FREF 156 — — — — 156
Zhang Han R 121 — — — — 121
Li Guinian (note c) FHEMEC) 138 — — — — 138
726 41 2,764 1,899 377 5,807

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as

directors of the Company and the Group and their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors emoluments

shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd)

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which

are determined based on the performance of the Group.

Notes:

@

Mr. Hu Xiang is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments

disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

The retirement benefit scheme contribution of Mr. Hu Xiang is paid by Shenzhen
Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. /R A B4 STBRFE AR AR (“SZWS")
as Mr. Hu Xiang is also a director of SZWS. SZWS s controlled by a group of common
controlling shareholders of the Company, detail of which is set out in the prospectus of the

Company dated 4 December 2009.

On I3 July 2018, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun
from executive director and approved him as non-executive director. On 21 March 2019,
the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun from non-executive

director.

On 3 August 2018, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Li Guinian from
independent non-executive director and approved Ms. Ge Xiaojing as an independent

non-executive director.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no emoluments were paid

by the Group to the directors or the chief executive as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors

or the chief executive has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

10. EERFETBRAEME (@)
ESRIETBRAEME(Z)
ARRETHTESAREREARAEK
ERREEREL

B -

@)

BALETRAARRITHAR AL
ENE B EEERITRAHER
PR E S -

A ThEELEBRBEARARR
Yl e 1) 2 Mok & X TR KR
FEtE8ME - DETHALETRR
Y BESE - T LBRAAR
FORYIE S B ey — A SR E R AR SR A
2h - AR BERARDFR 2009 F
12 A4 BHRENBRER -

018F7R 138 EZSHAERKE
REBIRTES  THEZERR
FHITEE209F38218 EF
SRERKE L LRI HERDTES -

018F8A3H  EZCIAETHEL
EBHEBUERTES  UHERE
BEETULABUIFNTES -

BZE2018F R20I7F12A3IBIEF
B AEBEYEMESHEETHA
ExfIBe  EREFMEIRNME
AEEENRE  HERBEBRMEE -
HZE2018F R2017F12A31HLF
B BEENESFHFETRAER
FHFERELEEAHS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES I,
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2017: three) directors
for the year ended 3| December 2018, details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2017: two) highest paid individuals

are as follows:

FuEEFHFMES
BZ018FNA3NRBILFE K&
EhEsafMATeERA(Q017
F:=ZR)EF FEOMSFEERN
X EBR=20Q017F : ME)&a
HHALTOBESEI AT

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

— salaries and other benefits —HehEmEF 1,736 L1110
— bonus —1#% 496 [,632
— equity-settled share based payment — AR AEBE AR REER K — 180
— contributions to retirement benefits scheme — RURBFFTEIMER 49 40

2,281 2,962

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

WEOFHMNRIATEE -

2018 2017

20184 2017

No. of No. of

employees employees

BEAH B8 A

— Nil to HK$1,000,000 —Z % 1,000,000 % 7T 3 —
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 — 1,000,001 /T ZE 1,500,000 7 7T = 2

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

DIVIDENDS 12.

BRE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:  F ATERIED REIILE. -
2017 final dividend of HK$0.04 per share 2017 FRHIR S BAR0.04 87T
(2017: 2016 final dividend of HK$0.04 per share) (20174 : 2016 FREBAR B
FHR0.04%T)

27,675 28,442

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.02 per
share in respect of the year ended 3| December 2018 amounting to approximately
HK$ 16,404,000 (equivalent to RMB14,012,000) has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

The final dividend of HK$0.04 per share in respect of the year ended 3| December
2017 was approved by the shareholders in the 2018 annual general meeting on 24
May 2018.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}

REFBER%Z ESERRTEHZE
018F 2 A3 BEFEMNRBRES
B2 0027 7T - & F£ 49 16,404,0007% 7T
(HERAREE 14012,0007T) © BER
RREERRBFERG Lt AR AE

o

i}

\;

HEWI7ENAINBILEEH KRS
% B 80048 TR 201845 A24H
M0ISFRRAFANE FEREH
oHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

3. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 13.
The earmning (loss) figures for calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

BREMN(EE)
RAGERARREBRATARLS
BRERREZRN(EE)NRN(EB
BIBRFRE MEER -

2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Earnings (loss) BF(ER)
Profit (loss) for the year and attributable to ARAVER ANEEFEAMNE(EE)
owners of the Company and eamings (loss) RRETESRER RS
for purpose of basic and diluted earnings BEF(ER)nEN(EE)
(loss) per share 16,689 (48,509)
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for R EERERLEE
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings EF(ER) T mARnE 92
(loss) per share 820,489 819,364

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the computation of diluted eamings per
share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s options because the exercise

price of those options was higher than the average market price for shares.

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the computation of diluted loss per share
does not assume the exercise of the Company's outstanding share option since

their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

1 80 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

4. Y% BERRE

Furniture
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment  improvements Motor Plantand ~ Construction
Buildings RE HE vehicles machinery in progress Total
BF EBERRE ML AE  BEREESE HEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR%®TR AR¥Trn AR%TR AR¥Trn AR%TR AR%¥Tn
COST B
At | January 2017 R2017F1A1R 289,546 26,556 10626 6,135 222,557 31,900 587320
Additions AE 3,900 11,058 309 712 30,502 2833 74812
Transfer BE 6,830 — — — — (6,830) —
Disposals HE (206) (3939) — (943) (18420) — (23,508)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 300,070 33675 10935 5904 234,639 53401 638,624
Additions NE | 544 4173 164 491 21414 22934 50,720
Transfer [EF 5,009 95 936 902 27,649 (34591) —
Disposals HE (470) (3,627) — — (42,490) — (46,587)
At 31 December 2018 R20I18F 128318 306,153 34316 12,035 7297 241212 41,744 642,757
DEPRECIATION HEREE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At | January 2017 K271 AR 37,855 13814 4969 3573 139,66 — 199,872
Provided for the year FRERE 10,488 4689 32 790 22964 — 38963
Eliminated on disposals HEKH (44) (2,514 — (668) (9,745) — (12971
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 48299 15,989 5001 3,695 152,880 — 225,864
Provided for the year FREE 10991 4563 1,041 936 26,281 — 43812
Eliminated on disposals B 5 (173) (2,182) — — (16912) — (19,267)
At 31 December 2018 R20I18F 128318 59,117 18,370 6,042 4631 162,249 — 250,409
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 8 247036 15946 5993 2,666 78963 41,744 392,348
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 251,771 17,686 5934 2209 81,759 53401 412,760

ELERERLA

2018 £ %}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or
30 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 31.7%

Leasehold improvements 3% - 33.3%

Motor vehicles 9.5% - 19%

Plant and machinery 9% - 33.3%

The Group's buildings are situated in the PRC under medium-term land use rights.

The Group was in process of obtaining certain relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with carrying amount of approximately RMB 18,353,000
(2017: RMB14,507,000) in property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2018.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership

certificate can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

4. Y% BERREE)

WE - BE R R E(ERTREN)E
B 3 B T 5 A 68 PR 4R B PO B B
BREE RIS RS BERENTE
EH R AEHE

BF HEFHHI0F
(\BREERE)

BE - REREE 19%-31.7%

HEMEEE 3% - 33.3%

it 9.5% - 19%

[ 5 R i 2% 9% - 33.3%

AEBURPEOBFRDHLIHNE
ARSI -

AEEEENEETERFNERE
EMERE EVE BELRXHE
R2I8FENAIBMEEENAA
R #18353,0007C(20175F : A R ¥
14507,0007C) e RARIEERA - A
FEBGHEBEEEMERESE  mig
EEERNA -

15. AANHAERE

2018 2017
20185 20175
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT

Land use rights in the PRC FAFR B £ 3t {sF A
Medium-term lease FHIEE 26,759 27,426

Analysed for reporting purposes as: EX N

Current portion BNERER 2 668 668
Non-current portion FERNEAED 5 26,091 26,758
26,759 27426

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS l6. EEBHIBEE
Excess of Unrealised
accounting  Allowance profit of
Allowance depreciation for inter- Share-
for over tax doubtful company based
inventories depreciation debts sales  Tax losses payment Others Total
BitHE NEE DY)
BHBE HEN AER
FERE TENEE RERE KBRAE  HEBSA AR Hity @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTT ARBTR AR®TR AR%TR
At | January 2017 201751 A1H 2967 4483 813 9,090 6,622 3,936 2,050 29961
Credit (charge) to EEREREAR
profit or loss (10k) 7994 (2,635) 905 (5015) 11,372 276 — 12,897
At 31 December 2017 72017412431 H 10,961 1,848 1718 4075 17,994 4212 2,050 42,858
Adjustments (note 2)  #8% (Mf3E2) — — 628 — — — — 628
At | January 201851 A1H
2018 (restated) (&gE51) 10,961 1,848 2346 4075 17,994 4212 2,050 43486
Credit (charge) to FEEHBRAR
profit or loss (40kz) 339 (115) (259) 558 7,065 64 (821) 6,831
At 31 December 2018 720185 12431 H 11,300 1,733 2,087 4,633 25,059 4276 1229 50317

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

6.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB174,859,000 (2017: RMB126,128,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of RMBI51,413,000 (2017
RMBI15,805,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining RMB23,446,000 (2017: RMB10,323,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses is tax loss of
RMB174,859,000 (2017: RMB126,128,000) which will expire in the following years

ending 3| December:

l6. EHLEHIBEEE)

REBBKR AEERPABBE
1B AR ¥ 174859,0007(20174 + A
FE# 126,128,000 7T ) 7] A3 B8 4 85 K 2K
FE - ERAECEHESHEEAA
R #151,4130007T(20175F : AR ¥
115,805,0007T ) © A B B 5 % B R K
REFMTOTATEAMN - BOLER
#% T AR #234460007T(2017 4
AR 10,323,000 ) BRI E1E -
ABANBEREENBEEEAR
#174,859,00070(2017F : A R ¥
126,1280007T) * R IATEHZE 12 A
3IAEFEER

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBTR ARBTT
Unused tax losses with expiry in: RUTEEREN A BREESE -

-2019 —20194F —
-2020 —20204F 4270 4270
~2021 —2021 44,149 44,149
-2022 —2002%F 77,709 77,709
-2023 —20234F 48,731 —
174,859 126,128

Under the relevant laws of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits eamed by the PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB463,462,000 (2017: RMB437,212,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

BLEE

Development

costs
BRERA
RMB’000
ARETT
COST A
At | January 2017 R2017%F 1 B 18 70,767
Additions NE 18,248
At 31 December 2017 B2017F 12 A31 8 89,015
Additions NE 24077
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31 H 113,092
AMORTISATION # 55
At | January 2017 R2017F 1 R 1B 36,391
Charge for the year FAHER 6,272
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 4,663
Charge for the year FAME 9,119
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 12 A31 B 51,782
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2018 M2018%F 12 A31 B 61310
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 46,352

REZR(TERBERZ RHRE) RE
AT RR(LTERRRRERR L
EP &R ) WEEK AN AR
B RATHE R E3ENNESE
B AEERVEEZRAFHA
REs546BETL(017F : ARKE337
ABEL)EREERTRARNERER
B B ET AR - ReetER
ERENERERERHeAAEBE
HHREREFE WU ERRRNES
B

Development costs on antenna system (LTE antennas and Multi-system Antennas)
and base station RF subsystem (LTE filters and new models dedicated for some
customers) are internally generated and amortised on a straight-line basis over the
3 years when they are ready for use. Included in the cost of the Group's intangible
assets, approximately RMB 54.6 million (2017: RMB 33.7 million) were relating
to development of systems not ready for the intended use and, accordingly, no
amortisation was made. The developments of systems not ready for the intended
use are expected to generate net cash flow to the Group, and no impairment loss

has been recognised.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe)

BB R M

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd)
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group conducted a review of those Group's

intangible assets, which are not ready for the intended use.

The recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
the new products’ growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct
costs during the period that cash flow forecasts are made. Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the intangible assets. The growth rates
are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs

are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the market.

For impairment purpose, the Group prepared cash flow forecasts based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 3-years period, taking into account
the anticipation of further expansion of 3G and 4G market in which the intangible

assets are developed for.

As at the end of the reporting period, any reasonably possible change to key
assumptions applied are not likely to cause the recoverable amounts to be below

the carrying amount of intangible assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtENT 2R
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Cost of interests in associates N AN PR E A 2,700 2,700
Share of post-acquisition profits and other FEAE W BE 12 MR e EL 2 [ s
comprehensive income, net of dividends received Sl IR ) (1,410) (675)
1,290 2,025
Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as follow: UTAESRBARAEENEZ QAN
FHER

Country of  Principal

Incorporation/ place of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights  Principal activity
Name of entity registration  business interest held by the Group held by the Group
EMAL/ AEBREN AEBREN
BRER AMER  TEERME BEABRLA ERELA TEXRED
2018 2017 2018 2017

20185 20175 20185 20175

Shenzhen Borynet Co, Ltd. (note)  the PRC the PRC 15.1% 15.19% 15.1% 15.19% Software technology development
A EENRERAF
(Fitit) P PE FHRRFEE
Shenzhen Letengwireless Co, Ltd.
(note) the PRC the PRC 12% 12% 12% 129 Hardware development
R EREGARAT(HE)  PE el iR
Note: These companies are accounted for as associates as at year end date as the Group has fr: AR ZEL T ESeEXRARNEEN
directors in the board of these companies and is able to exercise significant influence in EEHAREFAEZELNTBITELA
these companies. YE RERIRFEHEBERBARI

fEREE AT o

EHBRERLA
2018 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

19.  INVENTORIES 9. BE&

2018 2017

20185 20175

RMB’000 RMB' 000

AR®TR ARBFT

Raw materials JEA R 75,441 74,603
Work-in-progress T2 37,390 33938
Finished goods BUpK an 406,323 373,848
Less: allowance for inventories o FERE (70,462) (69,005)
448,692 413384

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 BESRHMEWERR

2018 2017

20185 20175

RMB’000 RMB' 000

AR%TR AREFTT

Trade receivables B YRR 543,786 497,589
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEEERE (14,122) (11,660)
529,664 485929

Notes and bills receivables e 163,125 419,638
Rental and utility deposits & ke 1,397 871
Advance to suppliers ) FEE 2R 37,977 41616
Value added tax receivables JE BB AR 73,566 53,646
Other receivables and deposits oo R BR TR S iR & 37,936 28,777
843,665 1,030,477

188
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES(Contd)

As at 31 December 2018 and | January 2018, trade receivables from contracts

with customers amounted to RMB543,786,000 and RMB497,589,000 respectively.

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base
station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry to
its trade customers, which range from 30 to 240 days (2017: 30 to 240 days), for
a significant number of the Company's products. For the Group's major customers
which are network operators and domestic and overseas wireless network solution
providers with good reputation and repayment records, a longer credit term may
be extended to them, depending on price, the size of the contract, credibility
and reputation of them. In order to manage the credit risks associated with trade
receivables effectively, credit limits of customers are evaluated periodically. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness

of the new customer and assesses the potential customer's credit quality.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit

losses presented based on the dates of the control of goods transferred:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

20. EZREMBWERARE)

R2018F 12A31BR2018F 1 A
B REBFEANEFEREERSD
Bl B A R 5437860007 & A R #
497,589,000 7T

AEERNESEPRERGRS &
AT R R B SR T REELT
XLREINEEN KARAKREE
MEEEHNT0E 2408 (20175 ¢
30£240R) - BR BB EBEEE L E
NINERBERBATREENEAS
REERNRZENASETER
P o EREBERNEER BT
B aRAK EAEPONERE
LBEMTE - RAREERBHEK
RREANEERR - ANRFE Y
EPMEERBETTM  ASEE
MEMBELH GREZEHEP
HIERTE R EEEFPNEEER

NTREEmEHEERAHHNE
HREER (R EEBRER) R

e AT -
2018 2017
20185 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
0to 30 days 0£30H 152,331 142,581
31 to 60 days 31 260H 110,780 74,198
61 to 90 days 61 Z=90H 68,429 43,556
91 to 120 days 91&120H 48,616 38,296
121 to 180 days 121 2180 H 43,516 42,056
Over 180 days i@ 180 A 105,992 145,242
529,664 485,929

EHBRERLA
2018 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES(Cont )

At 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB 144,021,000 which
are past due at the end of the reporting period. Out of the past due balances,
RMB58,334,000, has been past due over 90 days and is not considered as in default
because the trade receivables are of good credit quality and repayment records

history. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2 1,703,000 which are past due as
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

20.

EZREMBEYRERRE)

R2I8FENA3IAR RERPXRD
MR ENEREAESRXARY
144,021,000 et AR KRB 2 B 5 EK
AR AR o 18 HR A5 R A R 5 58,334,000
TOBHBBE0NR BAWRAE
K RARESRERUERGEEERR
BEEFEHRT - AEEHMESE
FARZSEANERY -

R217F 128318 st AKREEZ
EORKESEH AR ZHAHER
HimASE YL B RAEERE 2 EK
RREREES AR 21,703,000 ©
AEEMEREANZEERNIER
%o

BB ELEREN S5 ERIEN R
B -

2017
2017 %
RMB'000
ARETT
0o 30 days 0%&30H 4,460
31 to 60 days 31260H 3,502
61 to 90 days 61 £90H 2,869
91 to 120 days 91ZE120H 696
121 to 180 days 121 & 180 H 641
Over 180 days 838 180 H 9,535
Total st 21,703

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/Contd) 200 EFREMEWRR(E)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREEZE
2017
2017 F
RMB'000
ARBFT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 5,628
Impairment losses recognised BEHRHRERE 7927
Write-offs ki (1,895)
Balance at end of the year FARER I'1,660
As at 31 December 2017, no allowance for doubtful debts was individually R2017F12A31 8 #EEFRE
impaired which had either been placed under liquidation or in financial difficulties in MRRBBRERINEEREESE
repaying the outstanding balances. AR BT B TR
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the year ended HEWISENAINBLIEFENE S
31 December 2018 are set out in note 31. N A W BR BORUE RT A eV s B E R
PHEE3I -
The following is an aged analysis of notes and bills receivable presented based on NTREEREHIEER AR aE
the dates of the control of goods transferred: WEBNREAST
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBETT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 27,925 90,410
31 to 60 days 3IE260H 36,805 65,523
61 to 90 days 61 290 H 31,745 86,292
91 to 120 days 91Z120H 43,775 52,365
Over 120 days i@ 1208 22,875 125,048
163,125 419,638
As at 31 December 2018, none of the Group's notes and bills receivables is R2018F12A3IA - A&EEHEE
pledged to secure bank borrowings. R R AR IR TRE K
BLtERABRALA 191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

20.

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

As at 3| December 2017, carrying amount of approximately RMB70,657,000 notes

and bills receivables are pledged to secure bank borrowings (note 24 (a)).

Detail of pledge of assets set out in note 32.

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group's pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original maturity
within 12 months and carry fixed interest rate from 0.3% to 1.5% (2017: 0.3% to
1.55%) per annum. They are mainly pledged to banks to secure bills payables and

certain of the bank borrowings of the Group.

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.30% (2017: 0.001% to
0.30%) per annum.

Certain of the Group’s pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash with an
aggregate amount of RMB3 11,098,000 (2017: RMB313,141,000) were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international market.
The government of the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the government of the PRC.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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21.

RI7ENANR REFEHRE
EEL AR 70,657,000 TR R Z1E
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&
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HAE+-_HAR - REFIEZEIS
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1TE R

AEENRITEHRLBLEEREF
1 F0.001 B Z0.30E (20174 : 0.00!
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S RBITHER ©

AEBEETEHEBRITEBERITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

22. EEREMEMNRR

2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Trade payables BHREMNER 544,732 458,248
Notes and bills payable ERNERE 258,824 262,444
Payroll payable ERNIE 26,142 42,580
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment B & ¥1% « BE L& BB ERN 32,248 37,469
Value added taxes payable FEfTIEER 21,639 25,283
Receipt in advance TEWKRIE — 8920
Accrued expenses TERRER 8,208 19934
Others Hity 15,349 13422
907,142 868,300
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the dates of REEmEHEBREHRANE SR

the control of goods transferred:

LGk g N

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 106,320 117,696
31 to 60 days 3IE260H 111,597 156,005
61 to 90 days 61 £90H 98,306 73,687
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180H 163,096 58,165
Over 180 days 838 180 A 65,413 52,695

544,732 458,248

Typical credit term of trade payables ranges from 60 to 120 days.

HEHRNETNEES —REER 60
HZI120H -

EHBRERLA
2018 F
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For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

22.

23.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd) 22. EFREMESKRRE)
The following is an aged analysis of notes and bills payable presented based on the N E s REE At ERE
dates of the control of goods transferred: BERORESTTIT
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTT
0to 30 days 0230H 51,185 76814
31 to 60 days 3I260H 54,670 71,673
61 to 90 days 61 290 H = 4,601
Over 90 days Ha4#90 B 152,969 109,356
258,824 262,444
Typical credit term of bills payables ranges from 90 to 180 days. ERNRENEEH-—RBEEROBEE
180 H -
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all AEECHETBERERBE - N
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. ERAEENEFEREERANER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. BHNEE
31/12/2018 [/112018%
20185 20184
12A31H I A1 R*
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
{iFsg AR T ARBTT
Receipt in advance from customers HREPEKIRIE
from contracts (a) 22,939 8,920

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application of HKFRS 15.
Note (a): The increase in contract liabilities in the current year was mainly due to more
customers prepaid in advance near the year end.

Contract liabilities are to be settled within the Group's normal operating cycle and

are classified as current liabilities.
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23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd) 23.

All carried-forward contract liabilities amounting approximately RMB8,920,000 are

recognised as revenue in the current year.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities

recognised are as follows:

For revenue recognised upon manufacturing and sales of antenna system and
related products, base station RF subsystem and related products and coverage
extension solution, the Group receives certain of the contract value as advance
payments from customers according to the contracts terms. The advance payments
result in contract liabilities being recognised until the customer obtains control of

the respective goods.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

BRNEREE)

E#EELLHAEHNANRES920000
TRAEEER AN o

HERANENABESHELREN
— ARG T -

REERBEERBEARBEED
RIS TR REBERARER
EHRARARMERNERENES - &
SEREANERUBBLELE -
EARFPBMANE - BNRBERE
%ﬁﬁﬁxﬁ% SRR miE R

BANK BORROWINGS 24. RATEER
Categories 5l 2018 2017
2018 F 20175
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Short-term bank borrowings: FHIRITRE SN
— Secured fixed rate borrowings —BEATERER (2) 41,800 60,000
— Secured floating rate borrowings —BHEMZEER (b) = 52,464
— Unsecured fixed rate borrowings —EIEATEBER () 155,000 175,000
196,800 287,464
The amount is repayable as per follows: FZHERM T HREER
— Within one year -——FR 196,800 287464
Amounts shown under current liabilities RREBEET25E 196,800 287,464

(@  The RMB secured fixed rate borrowings carried interest at the rate of 4.79%
(2017: 8.34%) per annum and were secured by pledged bank balances (2017:

notes receivable). Details of pledged assets are shown in note 32.

EHBRERLA
2018 F

@) AREEERTESBROFEMNEX
B479EQ017F 1 834E) * |
ETAEERRITELRQ017F -
ERZER)IERMR - EEB
TBRMIFE32517R -
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

24. BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the HK$ secured floating rate

borrowings carried interest at the rate ranged from the London Interbank

Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 1.0% per annum and were secured by pledged

bank balances. Details of pledge of assets are shown in note 32.

() The RMB unsecured fixed rate borrowings carried at the rate ranged from

5.44% to 6.53% (2017: 4.79% to 5.44%) per annum.

25. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received for

acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment. The deferred

income is released to the profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant

assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are as follows:

24. BITERE)

25.

()

BZE2017F12A3BLEE
ABITEERZBEFIRRBUIRT
RIZEFEME([RIRITRIER
BRE)MIOBEFFETE
AEERRITERMEERR - EE
B ERIFE 325 -

AREEIRTTSETNER
K B544E ZF653E(20174F -
479EES44[E) -

I SE WA
SEIEWN 15 B WO IR S & 1 U 48 B
& ARBRERRENE  BERR

& e

BN Z A EENER A &

BERBARRR - FRETRAN

2ET

2018 2017
20184 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETT

Government grant related to assets HEEMBNBA#EDE
At beginning of the year REF) 14,249 16,469
Additions NE = 2,400
Released to profit or loss REBREEA (1,452) (4,620)
At end of the year NER 12,797 14,249

Analysed for reporting purposes as: IMEZHRARE

Current portion BIERER 7> 24 452
Non-current portion FEENEAEE 12,773 12,797
12,797 14,249
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE
26. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

26. DERA

Number of shares Issued capital

BRZEE BRITRAE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 % 2017 % 20185 20175
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares shares shares
EER gl BER EiBk
‘000 ‘000 USD (note i) usb
Tk The Er(ME) e
Ordinary shares of USD0.000001 each &% 0.000001 3£ THJ
gl
Authorised: ERE
At beginning and end of the year RENRER 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued and fully paid ERITRME
At beginning of the year REA) 820,704 818907 820.70 81891
Exercise of share options TR A — 2,092 = 2.09
Share repurchased and cancelled (note ii) A% 188 ] K2 st 85 (BT aE ii) (487) (295) (0.49) (0.30)
At end of the year RER 820,217 820,704 820.21 820.70
Issued capital
BEITRE
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
equivalent equivalent
ZEEER FEEBK
RMB RMB
AR®R ARET
Issued and fully paid ERITRAE
At beginning of the year REA) 5,738.97 5727.12
Exercise of share options 1Tl AR — 13.87
Share repurchased and cancelled (note i) R BB L K et aH (FTaTii) (3.18) (202)
At end of the year RER 5,735.79 573897

EHERAERRZSF

2018 £F 3§
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

26. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd) 26. REIRAE(E)
Issued capital shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 20184 K2017F 12A31 B+ R 4R
December 2018 and 2017 were rounded to RMB6,000. B BMRABRRINTHBEBITRAL
RANEEE6,0007T
There is no movement of authorised ordinary share during the two years ended 3| HZEISENAIBIREEE
December 2018. SETF LR EES) o
Notes: B e
(i) USD is short for United States dollar. (i) ENREBRETES °
(i) During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through The Stock Exchange as (ii) ER - KRARBE BB IR T AR
follows: BoHAHRA
No. of ordinary
shares of Price per share
USD0.000001 each BRER

Month of repurchase BREE Lowest Highest Aggregate consideration paid
BEAH 0.000001 £ 75 -4(:4 BB BERARE

EERBE HK$ HK$ HKS$ RMB

BT BT BT AR
July 2018 2018%F7A 487,000 0.86 093 431,870 364,741
The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase. VA F @A A O A i s 8 o
None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the FR - ARBNFARMEREE -
Company's listed securities during the year. EXELR AR RMEM LTES
27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. UROZANRS

Share options were granted on 23 December 2013 (“2013 Option”) and 26
March 2015 (“2015 Option”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 22 December 2023 and
25 March 2025 respectively. Under the share option schemes of the Company,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to an individual consultant or advisor who renders or has rendered bona

fide services to the Company.
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

As at 31 December 2018, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding was 50,886,000 (2017:
59,996,000), representing 6.20% (2017: 7.31%) of the total ordinary shares in issue
at end of the reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. For 2013 Option and 2015
Option, options may be exercised after the completion of relevant vesting period

to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

2013 Option

30% of total number of options of 2013 Option (2013 Option A") are exercisable
on the second anniversary date of grant, 30% of total number of options of 2013
Option (“2013 Option B") are exercisable on the third anniversary date of grant
and the remaining 40% of total number of options of 2013 Option ("2013 Option
C") are exercisable on the fourth anniversary date of grant. In addition, 2013
Option is also subjected to the performance condition of the Group and individual

employee to exercise.

Pursuant to the board resolution on 29 May 2015, the 2013 Option was amended
whereby the vesting dates of the option has been accelerated. 2013 Option A
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | June 2015, 2013 Option B
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | April 2016 and 2013 Option C
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | April 2017. Such amendment
is applicable prospectively to the unexercised 2013 Option and result in a net
decrease in fair value of such option measured immediately before and after the
modifications, of which no adjustment for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017 needed to the fair value of the 2013 Option.

EHBRERLA
2018 F
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For year ended 31 December 2018
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27. LUROXNBRE (&)

R2018F12A318 - BRiBEBERE
RHEBMHRITROBRERS K E
i# % & B A508860008%(20174F :
59,996,000/% )  IEREWMEARE % /T
LR 6.20%(2017F : 7.31%) °

BEEREEREMEMNOEE - - 3t
013FHRER20ISFHEREMS -
BERENAHEBERTRNEZRE
AET-EFHAMTE -

2013 FEERE

2013 F 5 AR #E O B AR R 42 B AN 30%
(MOBFEREADTRAREARE
ZEBEFHETE  2013FBERAER
PR AR 2R A 30% ([ 2013 FEEARAER]) /]
RELBHE=FERFAMIE M
2013 F FE IR A B AR M 4 BU O BR T 40%
(MOI3FERECHAIRFLAMSE
C{E A 5 B HRAT(E  BEAh - 20135 F8
RETAFEASEREABEENE
RIGHEA AT

BIBWISESAVANEES RZ
£ 013FBRETIAER - HhEE
PRIER S B B IR AT - 2013 F AR
BARBRK20I5F6H I BHRE - LEZ
BA FI7{F  2013FBRERBBR
064 BEB - YEZBRAT
T R20I3FERECKHN2017F4
AIBRE YEZBREATITE - %
ERTEHEARRITERN20I13FER
o BRERET N RERBE A
ENBREATELRADFE  H
FEZ2018F K2017F 128318 1
FEBAH0BFERENRTEE
TR -
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For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

27.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

2015 Option

30% of total number of options of 2015 Option (“2015 Option A") are exercisable
on the second anniversary date of grant, 30% of total number of options of 2015
Option (“2015 Option B") are exercisable on the third anniversary date of grant
and the remaining 40% of total number of options of 2015 Option (“2015 Option
C") are exercisable on the fourth anniversary date of grant. In addition, 2015
Option is also subjected to the performance condition of the Group and individual

employee to exercise.

27. UROXNNRE#)

2015 FEERE

2015 4F B8 AR 1 1O BB AR R 48 BN 30%
(MOISFHEBREADITRAEEARE
“EBEEHETEE - 2015 FERER
PR8I 30% ([ 2015 FRERR#ER]) 7]
RELBEHE=EBEFAHITE M
2015 F FE IR A BB AR PE 4B U0 B8R T 40%
(MOISFBEBRECHAIRKEBEE
MO EEF BERAT(E o Uboh - 20155 B
BRETAFEASERERBEENX
B ERATE -

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

BRENARERNFENT

Fair value

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period Exercise price at grant date

REASH

BRESH RiAH BRH s e NVE

2013 Option A 23122013 23/1212013 0 31/05/2015 0110612015 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS

WI3EREREA W3F1ABA WIENABAHE WSE6AIAE AEBIOT  ARBOSIT
WISE5A3IA WBF12A0H

2013 Option B 23122013 23/1202013 0 31/03/2016 011042016 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS

2013 FBRIER W3F1ABA WIENABAHE WeF4R1AE ARBIOT  ARBOSIT
WIEIA3IA WBF12A0H

2013 Option C 23122013 23/1202013 0 31/03/2017 011042017 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS

013 FREREC W3F1ABA WIENABAHE WI7E4R1RE ARBIOT  ARBOSIT
WI7E3A3IA WBF12A0H

2015 Option A 2610312015 2610312015 to 31/03/2016 0110412016 to 25/03/2025 RMBI 47 RMBOS

2015 FRREA 2015%3A2H W5F38HZ WeF4R1AE ARE 141 AR%06IT
WI6EIA3IA 2005F3R25H

2015 Option B 2610312015 2610312015 to 31/03/2017 0110412017 to 25/03/2025 RMBI 47 RMBOS

2015 FHMRIER 2015%3A2H W5F38HZ WI7E4R1RE ARE 141 AR%06IT
WI7E3A3IA 2005F3R25H

2015 Option C 2610312015 2610312015 to 31/03/2018 0110412018 to 25/03/2025 RMBI 47 RMBOS

2015 FRREC 2015%3A2H W5F382H% WIsE4RI1AE ARE 141 AR%06IT
WI8E3IA3IA 2005F3R25H

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 27. URBZAHRS &)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held by TREZEBEBRALTEENA N G
eligible persons: 5 A 1
2018 20185
Qutstanding Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired  Outstanding
at during during during during at
Option type [/1/2018 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2018
20185 20185
IAIH RER RER RER RER 128318
BRI EE e RATBE & R T EW ERITE
2013 Option A 0I3FEREA 8,885,000 —  (1,350,000) — — 7,535,000
2013 Option B WI3FHERESR 9,449,000 — (1,350,000) — — 8,099,000
2013 Option C 013 FEREC 13,072,000 — (1,800,000 — — 11,272,000
2015 Option A 2015 FREREA 8,577,000 — (1,383,000 — — 7,194,000
2015 Option B 2015 FHEMRIER 8,577,000 —  (1,383,000) — — 7,194,000
2015 Option C 2015 FEREC 11,436,000 — (1,844,000 — — 9,592,000
59,996,000 — (9,110,000) — — 50,886,000
Exercisable at the end AIRERITRE
of the year 50,886,000
Weighted average
exercise price IEFHTEE RMBI.3448 —  RMBI.3736 — —  RMBI 4074
ARE ARE ARE
13448 7T 1.3736 7T 14074 7T

ELERERLA

2018 £F 3§
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 27. URB NS (&)

2017 2017 F
Outstanding Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired  Outstanding
at during during during during at
Option type BRERS 11112017 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2017
R20175 R20175
IAIA RER RER RER RER 128318
e RAT 6 i L 1t EM  ERITE
2013 Option A 2013 BRIEA 10,106,000 — (546,000 (675,000 — 8,885,000
2013 Option B 2013 REB 10,692,000 — (546,000) (697,000 — 9,449,000
2013 Option C 0138 R C 14,256,000 — (464,000) (720,000) — 13,072,000
2015 Option A 2015 BRIEA 9,000,000 — (423,000) — — 8,577,000
2015 Option B 2015 B REB 9,000,000 — (423,000) — — 8,577,000
2015 Option C 2015 B R C 12,000,000 — (564,000) — — 1,436,000
65,054,000 — (2966000)  (2,092,000) — 59,996,000

Exercisable at the end A[RERTHE
of the year 59,996,000
Weighted average IEFT6EE RMBI.4324 —  RMBI3934  RMBI.I957 —  RMBI 3448
exercise price

AR AR AR% AR
14324 7T 1.39347C 11957 7T 13448 7T

In respect of share option exercised during the year ended 31 December 2017, the

weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is RMBI.39.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB427,000 (2017: RMB2,649,000)

for the year ended 3| December 2018 in relation to share options granted by the

Company.

202
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28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASE 28.

The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the
following future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises under non-

cancellable operating leases with outsiders and a related party, which fall due:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

REHE

AEEEREEA

REFHKR  FAERESREFEIINTA
TR—BEEALIT LA HEEL
EHEAFAMEAMENR T
BRI R RRERS

2018 2017

20I8F 2017F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Within one year —FR 5,199 5425
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFENF(EREMEREEN) 1,389 2214
6,588 7,639

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of one to five years.

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease payments:

HEDHEME  —E2LFHEHHAN
HEREE

AEEERHBA
REREF  AEBDRASTHY
ARBEBENKMT -

2018 2017

20185 20175

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Within one year —FR 11,266 11,208
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF(EEMFRELEA) 7,690 12,099
18,956 23,307

The Group entered into an arrangement with a third party in the PRC to lease

rented premises are negotiated for terms from one to five years.

EHBRERLA
2018 F

AGEREPR-—ZFE=JFIUR
B UHEBEEDR  KHEAsl—
ERfFo
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For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

29. BAREE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in & B U EE W3 « BB R E R

the consolidated financial statements in respect BETRERESE M B]RE
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 5 H) & R 11,971 31,743
30.  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. EXEREE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to REEEBEERNUBRAEEET
continue as a going concemn while maximising the return to shareholders through BRBAIARESE  WiHHERE
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy BHNRETE  AREFRZAMD
remains unchanged from prior year. W BEFR  AEENBREBRBR
The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net of cash and REEBMNEARAEEBERTER B
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising ERRCEFBMIFELRRAEEA
issued share capital, share premium and other reserves. EiEER(BREEEITRE - R E
BEMERE)
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. KRR EEGYFRIAENERE -
As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks RBFHN—Hn  EEEBEEARKAK
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendation of the directors, the HEBENEENRR REEEN
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, o AEERBEBRIAKRE - BT
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new bank loans. Bk - RO BB RFTERITERAF
EREENBEERNGERE
31.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 3. BMEEKREREBEREE

Categories of financial instruments

ERMITENESE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR ARETT

Financial assets CREE
Amortised cost b DN 1,198,145 1,290,923
Financial liabilities tRER
Amortised cost AR 1,074,095 1,102,353

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include credit risk, market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the financial assets best
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with

its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
annually. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade balances
individually and based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

EHBRERLA
2018 F
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ERAREERREREE

(&)

HEAREERRREE
ARENTIEZSRIABRES A
MR - BIEARITHER - R1T
BHkAT BEHNEMBENERRAR
RITER - HEFEMTANFEER
M ERE - BTSRRI AR
WEREREERR TmHRREE
R EMERER) RRBESRR © &
MEBRRNBEREIMT - ERE
ERVEFRAAAR  AREREE
BRHITIRE N -

EERR KRR EE
R2I8FENAIB ¢MEENE
HESREREASEMAXOESE
ERRE - AEEMEFEEIAERY
FHMEERREEAREERMEE
HEEERBRIRRRE -

ELHHEFHAN B S ENEN

RBEEEERR TEEEEERZR
KEREBARRBEEEERSE  FE
HRREMERRERF - ARBRKIR
ETE - WEBMER - ARERA
EEHEFH  eRAABEEFD
ERHHEEEPZEEERRER
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

(Contd)

The Group sells most of the products to a limited number of customers in the
PRC. If the Group is unable to broaden the customer base and expand relationships
with major wireless network solution providers and major network operators, the
business may continue to be impacted by unanticipated demand fluctuations which
can have a negative impact on the revenue and business, and an adverse effect on

the results of operations and financial condition.

The Group has a significant concentration of customers credit risk as 29.2% (2017:
22.4%) and 68.8% (2017: 78.4%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively. These major
customers are network operators and domestic and overseas wireless network

solution providers with good reputation and repayment records.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 73.9% (2017: 72.5%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2018.

Pledged bank balances and bank balances

The credit risk of the Group on pledged bank balances and bank balances is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are intemational banks or state-owned
banks, all of which are with high credit ratings.

Other receivables

The Group's other receivables representing notes and bills receivables and other
receivables. The directors of the Company consider that the credit risk on other
receivables is limited and the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on these other receivables individually. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk on other receivables

is significantly reduced.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

3I. MEEBEEBSEREEK

(Cont'd) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d) EERRNRENE (&)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following AEENALEERBESHT®IE
categories: AT EER
Internal credit rating  Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
A ERAE ERPAR A B 5 YR HtnA K& E
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not  Lifetime ECL — not credit-  12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts impaired
KRR HFHTHNEDRREIE - B ET 85 FENEHEERE- NEAAEHEEER
ABEEERE
Watch list The counterparty has amounts past-due but is Lifetime ECL — not credit-  Lifetime ECL — not credit-
continuously settling after due date and with continuous  impaired impaired
business transactions with the Group
BRELE ZESRCAY  BUFHIRIMERSEER GEYRPEEERE- GENRIEEEE-
WEAKEREETERRS ABEEERE AEEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-  Lifetime ECL — not credit-
since initial recognition through information developed  impaired impaired
internally or external resources
e BEBABERZ ERSIIMNBERETNINHER GFENRHPEEEE- GENRIEEEE-
& EERREEZMN ABEEERE AEEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired impaired
B FREBRTEBAECREEERE FENENEERRE- HFENEHEESE-
FEEERE FEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
6 FREBBEREBABABRENYHERALANEE MEEHER MHEEBER

TRAREAREIABFUR

EHBRERLA
2018 F
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31.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 31.

(Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets

representing trade receivables, other receivables, pledged bank balances and bank

balances which are subject to ECL assessment:

ERAREERREREE

(%)

FERBRAENE (&)
TRHAFAEEAETRAEEER
bz emEENESREERS - &
b FE MR - ERRITHEBRRIRITE

)2 EERR
Financial assets at amortised costs RBHERASRERMEE
External Internal
credit credit  |12-month or Gross carrying amount
rating rating lifetime ECL AIREE
2018 Notes shap AE NREAR
2018 F e  FEFR FEIR FEHNRNGESR
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT AR%TR
Trade receivables 20 N/A (note 3) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 341,118
Watch list  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 189,057
Loss  Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 13611
Write-off  Amount is written off * 543,786
5 R ARK 20 ~ER (E3) FEHNERCEEBR(EEER)
BELE GFEREURBEERE-RELE
EEER
BE HENRHEERE-ZA
EEER
iE WEAETE
Pledged bank balances 21 (note 1) N/A  12-month ECL 171,744 171,744
EIMIRITHER 2| (PsE1)  TER REAEPEEESE
Bank balances 21 (note 1) N/A  12-month ECL 296,341 296,341
RITHEER 21 (P=r1)  TER NREAEBEEEE
Other receivables 20 N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 200,396 200,396
(note 2)
Hit YRR 20 NER EBRR REAEDEEERE
(MEE2)

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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(Cont'd)

Notes:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 3. PIEREEEERBEK
(%)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d) FERBRBENME(E

Financial assets at amortised costs (Cont d) BBHEAEIRC EMEE (&)

* Gross carrying amount of RMB2,007,000 debtors are defaulted and assessed at lifetime * IR E A AR 2,007,000 70 79 & 4k
ECL-credit-impaired that have been further written off because there is evidence indicating FREY YR FERBHEEEE
that the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery, detail of which is set in below. EERERETH ZERBEDE—

S BREERERAEEER
EARRMEIIE - BRI -
BiRE
The external credit ratings are quoted from the rating scale of international and domestic SN EETANSEE S A e BB RE
credit rating agencies. WIE ERT R R RIR%E -

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information 2. TALEERBEEmNS  ~NEEF

to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. BaHER T AR EREEER
BREEE KIEEM -

Not past due/No fixed
Past due repaymentterms Total

FEH,/ EEE
bkt BN &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
Other receivables H s R — 200,396 200,396

3. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances and credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on these

items by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal credit rating.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}

3. HEZRUERME  ARBECKRA
BERUBRSLENEIRBIEAER
EHEMEEEANEREE - RE
BARBELHREERENEIE
PO REEEBEANBERETRS
ArmBREEEEEZSREEMNEEE
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For year ended 31 December 2018
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

Financial assets at amortised costs (Cont d)

Provision Martix - internal credit ratings

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit
rating for its customers. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed based on provision
matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding balances and credit-impaired with gross carrying
amounts of RMB189,057,000 and RMB2,007,000% respectively as at 3| December

2018 were assessed individually.

* Gross carrying amount of RMB2,007,000 debtors are defaulted and assessed at lifetime
ECL-credit-impaired chat have been further written off because there is evidence indicating

that the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery.

Gross carrying amount

31

MERKREREEZEREGE
(#)
FERBRBENEL(E)
BRIz HEE (&)
Rt B — N E AR
ERAEEEERRER 2 —#1H -
AEEHERPERNBEETR T
FREEBEFIREEREERRED
B ZEEHRBERFRTIRIE2018
FNRAJNBREER(FERERE
EEB-REEEERE)TME R
018F12A31B TAEBERKRE
EREAEREER AR 189,057,000
TRBELEFEREBEREAAR
#2,007,000% 7T ) 9 & 4 BR 5K HE 1T 1 R
T o
* m AR E A AR #2,007,0007T 8 FE U BR
JeEf UREERERCEBRRE
WEE T ZERERE S
# HEEERBETAEEER F T4
WA -

BERHEE

Average loss rate  Trade receivables

FHBRE  EIZEYRN

RMB’000
ARBT R
Internal credit rating NEEERR
Low risk Ve # 37,67
Watch list BRAE # 272,181
Doubtful 3~ 2% 31,670
341,118
# The percentage was lower than 0.1%. # BAHAERO 1% °

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The Group rebutted
the presumption of default under ECL model for trade receivables over 90 days
past due based on good credit quality and repayment records history for those
customers. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group reversed RMB3,678,000
impairment allowance for trade receivables based on the provision matrix.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment allowance of nil™ and
RMB3,958,000 were made on debtors with significant outstanding balances and

credit-impaired, respectively.

~ Amount is less than RMBI,000 and disclosed as nil.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised

31

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

ERAREERREREE

(%)

EERBRRETE(E)

R BREDENEFARNBRFY
RBEABREORMGS  YREFR
LB B ARG ) AT EUS HO AT 1E
BHAE -ARAEEFPNEREER
FBEENRCERY  FEAKELD
EBNEHEEFRER TAMBEB
OBRMESEUETBRONRKRR -
EEESEHENZOM  AERE
I EEBAZEEER -

BHEWIBFNANBILEE  K&EE
EREHEREGE 5 R BER IR R E
B ARBE36780007T © B E 20184
RA3ALFE  DRREENKRE
BHEBREEERENEEETIRAE
BET ~ R AR 39580007T

” PRARE 1000 THEBRERT -

TRETREBEECECERNESE

for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL (not

credit- impaired)

WBRR 2 B TR A

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

FRAEN FRARY
FEFR(xE FHEFRRE Total
EEERE) FERE) AR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR
As at 31 December 2017 under R217F 12831 BRE
HKAS 39 BEREHEREI9R — 11,660 1,660
Adjustment upon application of JERE BT RS ER
HKFRS 9 FIREMAE 4,189 — 4,189
As at | January 2018 — As restated M20I8F 1 A1 B-REF 4,189 11,660 15,849
— Impairment losses recognised —REBE®RR — 3958 3958
— Impairment losses reversed —REBERE (3,678) — (3,678)
— Write-off — i35 — (2,007) (2,007)
As at 31 December 2018 R20I18F 12831 H 511 13611 14,122

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 31.
(Contd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly due to:

B¥EBEERERBE
(&)

EERBRRETE(E)

HEHRUERNERBREESH TR
DN

31/12/2018
20185128318
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
FEMRBEEEREN(RD)

Not credit-
impared  Credit-impaired
AREFERE REFERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AR®T T

Trade debtors with a gross carrying amounts BERE(E AR 2,204,000 TEH

of RMB2,204,000 defaulted and transferred TEZEEEEHENE S RUERK

to credit-impaired (2,204) 2,204
Trade debtors with a gross carrying amounts BEEEE AR 1,754,000 TELIW

of RMB,754,000 defaulted and recognised HAREEBRENE ZREKERT

as credit-impaired — 1,754
Whrite-off of the credit-impaired trade debtors MHEEBRARRERARE

with a gross carrying amounts of RMB2,007,000 2,007,000 TLH) & 5 YR TN -

as there is evidence indicating that the Group hasno BRI BB BB R AEEERE

realistic prospect of recovery BB PLAT R — (2,007)
Settlement in full of trade debtors with a gross BEEEEAR 1,474,000 TTH)

carrying amount of RMBI,474,000 B RBRTEREE (1,474) —
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating EEBHMBREEABDEEENER

that the debtor is in severe financial difficutty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. None of the trade receivables that have been written

off is subject to enforcement activities.

Credit risk is not increased significantly since initial recognition for other receivables
and all gross amounts balance of other receivables RMB200,396,000 are rated as
low risk and assessed with |2-month ECL that no material impairment losses have

been recognised as at | January 2018 and 31 December 2018.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

HASREMNEEMSE  flwm- &
BABERBRICEARERRF K&
EMEE SRR - CHEE S
WEFG I ATEDZE -

HnEWEFHNEERR BT ER
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2 E A sr a5 A R 200,396,000 7T 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)
Market risk

(0

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade
receivables, bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings of the Group
are denominated in HKD, USD, Euro (“EUR"), and Swiss franc (“CHF"),
currencies other than the functional currency of the Company's principal
subsidiaries, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary

assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

3I. MEEBEEBSEREEK

(&)

hisER

() EEmEE
AEBBINEHELRE - A
SENETEZRKIRN - R/IT
ek BRRNRFRMRITER
AT & BT(TBT)) R
B R BR (M LOKBR ) 5t E (%
FEBAFARABEEFRAIN
NEEER)  BAKEAEAEN
HRER o ANEE B A EE A
BEOPHR - A - EEEEE
ROMNER - W ERZEEITE
REYHME R ©

RERPARAEEINEHER
EREEREBAAENKREEN

follows: T
2018 2017
20185 20175
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
gE &fE BE afE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®BTR ARETT AEREBTT
HKD BT 11,099 451 12,027 53,081
usb EV 270,378 12,905 165,723 1,037
EUR BT 20,575 — 1,409 —
CHF o 1A BP — — 6 —

EhkERERLXT
2018 5 3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

31.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont d)

(i) Currency risk (Contd)
The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) change
in RMB against HKD, USD, EUR and CHF. The 5% (2017: 5%) represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign
exchange rates. No sensitivity analysis is presented for CHF against RMB
as the effect is insignificant. The sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period have been
determined based on the adjustment of translation of the monetary assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting period for 5% (2017: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates a decrease in
post-tax profit (2017: an increase in post-tax loss) where RMB strengthens
against HKD, USD and EUR For 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of RMB against
HKD, USD and EUR, there would be an equal and opposite impact on post-
tax profit (2017: post-tax loss).

31

MEEBREREREREE
(&)
AR (E)

()

BrmEpg (&)

TRAELEBARBHLET -
T BT RImTIEBB 5%(2017
F5%)BBMBREFE 5%
(20174 : 5%) B EHNE
PE RS IZ R A RE B BYAORT A o
TEWHEXN  WUEEIHT
EBHARBHREAN - K&
BN 2R BAENINE R R
NERESMHIREKEERE
BEREMEAREN5%(2017F -
5%) SN [ 3 B B /E I i B 5 3
BET UTAERTARKELR
BT ELRBTAEER TR
BRER A (2017F : BEEB
#m) o  RAREEET ET
R BT B2 B 5%(2017 4 « 5%) M
ORBEAMBQITE : HES
B) e HRESERRNPE -

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

If RMB strengthens against HKD WARE S BTIAE
If RMB strengthens against USD AR R ETIHE
If RMB strengthens against EUR MARBHBRTHAE

(400) 2057
(10,728) (6959)
(781) (60)

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

2 1 4 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont d)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from
pledged bank balances (note 21) and fixed rate bank borrowings (note 24).
Pledged bank balances and fixed rate bank borrowings are mainly short-term
nature. Therefore, any variation in interest rate will not have a significant

impact on the results of the Group.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from bank
balances (note 21) and floating rate bank borrowings (note 24). The Group
keeps its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair

value interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The positive number below indicates increase in post-tax profit (2017:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

3I. MEEBEEBSEREEK

(%)

misER(E)

(1)

FIE 2

AEBEHEERRITEBRL
F21) RE BRATE R (M 24)
EENRTFENERR - EE
BERRTEBRTE BRITERE
ERMEME - @At - EAFE
BT SUREBMEEERK

AREEERITERE2) K
FRRITIESR (M 24) EERR
EnEMNERRE - REEZE
RHERE  UEERS D FET
KRR -

RSB B AR R SRR

- EREeERMEER
WHERFBRHZRBEHEAN X
BB o

PATR IE 80K OR B4R I 2 A0

decrease in post-tax loss), and vice versa. (20175 : MEBERD) k2
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET R ARBTT
(note a) (note a)
(Bt5Ea) (PiteEa)
If the interest rate goes up fisi I %= £ F
Increase in post-tax profit w12 FEE N
(2017: decrease in post-tax loss) (20174 : MIRBERD) 710 751

EHBRERLA
2018 F
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont d)

(i) Interest rate risk (Cont d)

31

B¥EBEERERBE
(%)
mERR(E)

(i)  FIFE@BE (&)

2018 2017
20185 20175
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETT
(note b) (note b)
(FffEEb) (ffEED)
If the interest rate goes down i Fll = T b2
Decrease in post-tax profit T3t 18 N R Rl >
(2017: increase in post-tax loss) (2017 F - iR EIRIE ) (690) (724)

Notes:

() If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and interest rate
on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher and

all other variables were held constant.

(b) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign currencies
had been 0.1 basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and interest rate
on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all

other variables were held constant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group amounting to approximately RMB
290,000,000 (2017: RMB953,906,000) granted the Group for the bank borrowings,
bills payables and letter of credits.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 31, MERKBEEEZEREGE
(Cont'd) (&)

Liquidity risk RBEEER

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source of liquidity. As at 31 December KREEBKBRITERIEALHE
2018, the Group has available unutilised banking facilities of approximately RMB © KR R2018FE2A3IB K
18,319,000 (2017: RMB601,953,000). SEEUHARARTAENOAR

B18319,000(20175F : A B
601,953,000 7T) °

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its TRAEAEXREBSHABEH AR H
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash BOFE  TRDEASEETE
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be YTANEEHERESRAEN R
required to pay. RREenERH
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest ZREVFERTERSRE o 7
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve BIZEHRE - AIRITE S EIR
at the end of the reporting period. SHRBANF R Zz1E o
Weighted Total Carrying
average effective Payable undiscounted amount at
interest rate on demand 0to30days  3lto60days  6lto%0days  9to 180days  over 80 days cashflows 31 December
¥ BXFR RI2A3IB
EBAZ  ERERE 0Z30R 31Z60R 612908 9IZI00B  EBINA RER Raf
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR

2018 0I8E
Trade and other payables  E5 REMEFNER NIA
AR 385,365 201,073 173512 108,851 16,703 = 885,504 885,504
Bank borrowing L
- Fied inferest rete -EEHE 562 - 9 50922 677 63563 86,358 202442 196,800
385,365 201,995 4434 109,528 80,266 86,358 1,087,946 1,082,304
017 W7E
Trade and other payebles B REMERER NIA
MNER 157730 267,159 147,785 158,743 75,105 7641 814,163 814,163
Dividend payable MRS NA
ili % - - - - - 7% %
Bank borrowings EihIEE
-Fredinterestrte  —TEEFIE 584 - - 10068 81,043 115897 52084 19092 235000
~Floating interest rate.~ — 28| % 18] - - - - 52978 - 52978 52464
158456 267,159 157853 219,786 243980 59,725 1,106959 ,102353
. . . . ., X Ny e A T (== 3
The amount included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative fiEOTESBARTETAZFEH7
% #eh o3 ko
financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to REHRIBMAREE 2 Bt FIEA
—] o) J_- faray Az"z
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period. Al BIBZS DA AZ B
E o
BEL#*RERASF 217

2018 4F &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

31

32

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 3. BBEBEEEERBE
(Cont'd) (#&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERIENAFEFE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial RRBEERE  REBHEKANGT AL
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial AHBERENSREELRSHEBER
statements approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting period. The fair FHERERERBARORAFEMR
value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with B ooRMEENEREENATLER
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. RRAEBERX  BENARERED
ImMERE °
PLEDGE OF ASSTES 32. BEEER
Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged to secure bank FHENTHEED TER  IKE
borrowings and bills payable granted to the Group. REBERNFITERNEMNZE -
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Pledged bank deposits ERRITER 171,744 166,658
Notes receivable e — 70,657
171,744 237315
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 33. BRAKERGE

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the local govemment. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian are required to contribute 4%, 20% and 20%, respectively, of the payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the

specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted to
RMB 30,872,000 (2017: RMB 30,034,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 4. BMEEBHRELAENHE
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing TRAMAEEREZTDMELEE
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing HEE BERERFEREEZEH -7
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BRDEANBBENEESARKERES
in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing MERREEENGZERESRERA
activities. PERRETYMELRERENE
& o
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities for the years ended 31 B ZE2017FR2018F 2A3IHLEF
December 2017 and 2018: B RERBMEENEEHERNT
Total
liabilities
from
financing
Dividend Bank activities
payable borrowings RMEEHAR
PR ITIER ek
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At | January 2017 K207 1 A1A 770 256,267 257,037
Financing cash flows MERERE (28,486) 16,629 (11,857)
Non-cash changes Rz #
Finance costs B AR — 14,568 14,568
Dividend recognised as distribution RIEDIRHIAR B
(note 12) (PfEE 12) 28,442 — 28442
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 12431 8 726 287464 288,190
Financing cash flows BERERE (28/401) (103,842) (132,243)
Non-cash changes HEEE
Finance costs BT AR — 13,178 13,178
Dividend recognised as distribution RIED RAIIE
(note 12) (HE12) 27,675 — 27675
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12431 A — 196,800 196,800

ELERERLA

2018 4F &
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)  During the year, the Group has the following transactions with SZWS.

35.

BEALRS

(@)

RER » AE@EERY| 4 LEE
TUTRS -

2018 2017

2018 20175

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

Nature of transaction REME ARET ARBETT
Rental expenses MeZH 1,331 956
2018 2017

20185 20175

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

Related party balances BEALHES ARBT R ARETT
Other receivables Hh U BR X 72 72
Other payables HAh & 1+ BR 5K 106 106

Note: The balances are unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

(b)  Operating lease commitments
As disclosed in note 28, at the end of the reporting period, the Group was
committed to make the following future minimum lease payment in respect

of a rented premise under non-cancellable operating lease with SZWS,

which fall due:

BisE « EHAEER  2ARNERE

18
REREAE

M 28I NEE - NEHY
R AEEERBERIELB
I RRE SR E ARG R
P R 3R SO T At 5 ) 2 B
HARRERS :

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —FR 222 1,331
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZENF(EEMFREEN) — 222
222 1,553

The lease is negotiated and rental is fixed for lease term of five years (2017:

five years).

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 35.

©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

were as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

BEALTRS(#)

() FEEEBEASHERM
EENTEEEEAMKENT
BT -

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Short-term benefits A 8,875 13940
Equity-settled share-based payment AR A B AR R ETE R K 83 557
Post-employment benefits BERR 1B A 162 183

9,120 14,680

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid by

SZWS for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as set in note 10.

EHBRERLA
2018 F

EERTRITRABNFMIR
BEARBETSBEMET

BZ2018FR2017F12A31H
EFE - —BEENRKEHNE
Bt BRI LB (FIE
FHRHIEE10)
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

36.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company's

subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date

of establishment/

Issued and fully

paid registered

36. KRB EEFATHE

RWfEZ2

T

Equity interest

attributable

MUK ARAFRAIFE

Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/share capital to the Group  Principal activities
B/ s ERTRER
TREAEE Rt E K B dAMER/RE  AREEGRE FEXHB
2018 & 2017 2018 & 2017
20185FR2017F 2018FK2017F
MORBI fian the PRC RMB267,000,000 100%  Production and sale of antennas
23 May 2006 and radio frequency subsystems
B &R0 hE AR 100% HERBEEREHM
200655 423 H 267,000,000 7T BREHATRER
MOBI Shenzhen @ the PRC RMB220,000,000 100%  Production and sale of antennas
12 August 1999 and radio frequency subsystems
BRI FE AR® 100% £ RIHE RIRA
199958 A 128 220,000,000 7T ERBHIAT AR
MOBI Xian © the PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Production and sale of antennas
29 April 2008 and radio frequency subsystems
BL A% e e AR 100% A& RHERZM
200844 429 A 120,000,000 7T BRESATER
MOBI HK® Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100%  Trading of antennas and radio
|5 December 2010 frequency subsystems
BHERO BR 10,000,000 & 7T 100% REMEBLRESIET
20106128158 E5E

O MOBI Jian is directly held by the Company and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the

PRC.

2) MOBI Shenzhen is directly held by MOBI Jian and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the

PRC.

(3) MOBI Xian is directly held by MOBI Shenzhen and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in

the PRC.

(4) MOBI HK is directly held by the Company.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A3 BILFRE

37. AT BEMR TR

2018 2017
20185 20175
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTFIT

Non-current Assets ERBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RFREIRIELETIRE 375,761 375,334
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMF R BIFIE 66,759 133,124
442,520 508,458

Current Assets TEVEE
Other receivable H e I BR 3N 5,752 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE I+ R R FRIE 76,211 81,707
Bank balances and cash BTER MRS 5,284 ['1,546
87,247 93,253
Current liabilities TEAE

Short-term bank borrowings R HERITIE R — 52,464
Other payable H A T BR R 255 427
Amounts due to subsidiaries JENTARIFIA 35,481 33,834
Dividend payable FERTAR B, — 726
35,736 87451
Net Current Assets RBEEFRHR 51,511 5,802
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERRDER 494,031 514,260

Capital and Reserves R K
Share capital (note 26) PR AR (P L 26) 6 6
Reserves G 494,025 514,254
Total Equity B 494,031 514,260

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2018 £ %}
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 BILFRE

37.  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd)  37. AATMBERREE2)

Movement in reserves RE2H

Share

option reserve

(note 27)

Share B Retained

premium wE earnings Total
Ko R(E (Kraz27) RERF @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TR ARWTRT ARET=

At | January 2017 R2017E1 /1R 488,160 25,761 27,648 541,569
Exercise of share option TR R 3,266 (808) — 2,458
Recognition of equity-settled HRNEREE

share-based payment PARR D BETEE T3 — 2,649 — 2,649
Loss and the total comprehensive EEFRRZERXAE

expense for the year — — (3,692) (3,692)
Dividend paid ERRE (28,442) — — (28442)
Shares repurchased BERRR (288) — — (288)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31R 462,696 27,602 23956 514,254
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREE

share-based payment PABR D BE TR 3 — 427 — 427
Profit and the total comprehensive EENEREZEKEEE

income for the year — — 7,384 7,384
Dividend paid ANEESS (27,675) — — (27,675)
Shares repurchased ARl (365) — — (365)
At 31 December 2018 M20I18%F 12A31 R 434,656 28,029 31,340 494,025
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MOBI EELL

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
E L #&RERER @ F

www.mobi-antenna.com

E & EEBR QA
MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Add b ik C FBERA R L R E BRI — B SR EE L K=
MOBI Building, 7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel E5E . 86-755-86186100

E-Mail & : public@mobi-antenna.com

Website ##F : www.mobi-antenna.com

P.C ##R . 518057
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